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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

MEETING NOTICE 

 

 

In compliance with the provisions of Neb. Rev. Stat. Section 84-1411, printed notice is hereby given 
that a Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State Colleges will convene at 
Hillcrest Country Club, Lincoln, Nebraska on January 16, 2018 

Executive Session                   January 16 –    9:30 a.m. 
Business Meeting                   January 16 –    1:30 p.m. 
           
This notice and accompanying agenda are being distributed to members of the Board of 
Trustees, the presidents of the state colleges, the Associated Press and selected Nebraska 
newspapers. 
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Break 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

JANUARY 16, 2018 
HILLCREST COUNTRY CLUB – 9401 E ‘O’ STREET 
LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
 
 
MONDAY, JANUARY 15 
 
1:00 – 5:00 Council of Academic Officers Meeting  Jodi Kupper Office 
 
 
  3rd Floor 
1:00 – 5:00  Council of Student Affairs Officers Meeting  Conference Room 
 
 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 16 
 
8:00 – 9:30 Marketing Presentation – Rachel Henry Ballroom Section B 
  & ERM Update – Angela Melton and John Dunning 
 
 
9:30 – 11:30 BOARD EXECUTIVE SESSION Ballroom Section A 
  Discuss Litigation, Personnel & Liability Issues 
 
 
11:30 – 12:30 BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 Academic and Personnel Committee Ballroom Section A 
 Student Affairs, Marketing & Enrollment  
  Committee  President’s Room 
 Fiscal, Facilities & Audit Committee Ballroom Section B 
 
 
12:45 – 1:15 Lunch  Ballroom Section C-D 
 
 
1:30 BOARD OF TRUSTEES BUSINESS MEETING Ballroom Section A 
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Call to Order 

Approval of Meeting Agenda 

Public Comments 

Minutes Approval 

1 Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State Colleges - Regular Meeting - Nov 17, 
2017 8:00 AM 

1. Items for Consent Agenda 

1.1 Approve Authorization for Chancellor to Sign Contract for Andrews Hall Fire 
Alarm System for Chadron State (FFA) 

1.2 Approve Authorization for Chancellor to Sign Fire Alarm Upgrade Contracts for 
Peru State College (FFA) 

1.3 Approve Authorization for Chancellor to Sign Construction Contracts for Wayne 
State College (FFA) 

Items for Discussion and Action 

2. Academic and Personnel 

2.1 Approve Contract for Study Abroad Program in Cuba for Chadron State College 

2.2 First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 5405; Retirement 
Plan; State College Employees 

2.3 First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 5006; Drug-Free 
Workplace; Standards of Conduct and Board Policy 8035; Facilities; Alcohol Use 

2.4 Approve Addition of Supplemental Endorsement in Health Sciences to Bachelor 
of Science in Education in Family and Consumer Sciences Degree for Wayne 
State College 

3. Student Affairs, Marketing, and Enrollment 

3.1 First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board By-Laws 

4. Fiscal, Facilities and Audit 

4.1 Approve Acceptance of Basic Financial Audit Report for Year Ended June 30, 
2017 and 2016 

4.2 Approve Acceptance of Single Audit for Year Ended June 30, 2017 

4.3 Approve Continuation of Bookstore Contracts 
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4.4 Approve Budget Request Guidelines and Preliminary Capital Construction 
Requests 

4.5 Approve 2019-2021 Biennium NSCS Capital Construction Board Initiatives 

4.6 Approve Naming of Foundation Suite in Press Box at New Sports 
Complex/Stadium for Chadron State College 

4.7 Approve Reallocation of Contingency Maintenance Funds for Chadron State 
College 

4.8 Approve Real Property Acquisition for Wayne State College 

4.9 Approve Use of Unappropriated Cash Funds on a One-Time Basis for Property 
Acquisition for Wayne State College 

Items for Information and Discussion 

5. Academic and Personnel 

5.1 Reports of Personnel Actions 

5.2 Foundation Employee Compensation Report 

6. Student Affairs, Marketing, and Enrollment 

6.1 Marketing Activities and Events Update 

6.2 Fall Enrollment Reports 

6.3 Chancellor's Summary Report 

7. Fiscal, Facilities, and Audit 

7.1 Grant Applications and Awards for Information 

7.2 Contracts and Change Orders for Information 

8. Miscellaneous Action and Information Items 

i. Chancellor's Report 

8.1.1 Chancellor's Report 

ii. Presidents' Report 

8.2.1 President's Reports 

iii. Student Trustees' Report 

Adjournment 

aaa 
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Executive Session - November 16, 2017 

Call to Order - Executive Session 

The meeting was called to order at 10:30 AM by Chair Gary Bieganski.  

Motion was made by Trustee Engles and seconded by Trustee Peterson to go into executive 
session as authorized by Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-1410 for the protection of the public interest, and 
to prevent needless injury to the reputation of persons who have not requested a public hearing 
for the purpose of holding a discussion limited to the following subjects: 
 

 Litigation 

 Personnel matters 

 Liability issues 
 
Chair Bieganski declared that the executive session would be strictly limited to a discussion of: 
 

 Litigation 

 Personnel matters 

 Liability issues 
 

Motion was adopted. Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, 
Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

Motion was made by Trustee Engles and seconded by Trustee Chaney to close the executive 
session at 1:20 PM. Motion was approved. Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, 
Peterson, Blomstedt and Zeiss. 

 
The Board went into executive session at 10:31 AM. The Board reconvened the open meeting 
at 1:21 PM. 

Adjournment - Executive Session 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned by Chair Bieganski at 1:21 PM. 
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November 17, 2017 

Call to Order 

 The meeting was called to order at 8:00 AM by Chairman Gary Bieganski 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Michelle Suarez Trustee Present  

Gary Bieganski Chairman Present  

John Chaney Trustee Present  

Bob Engles Trustee Present  

Carter Peterson Trustee Present  

Matt Blomstedt Trustee Present  

Jess Zeiss Vice Chairman Present  

 

Approval of Meeting Agenda 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and seconded by Trustee Engles to approve 
the Meeting Agenda. Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, 
Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

 

Public Comments 

No public comments 

Minutes Approval 

Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State Colleges - Regular Meeting - Sep 15, 2017 9:00 AM 

A motion was made by Trustee Chaney and seconded by Trustee Peterson to approve the 
minutes of the September 15, 2017 meeting. Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, 
Peterson, Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

1. Items for Consent Agenda 

A motion was made by Trustee Chaney and seconded by Trustee Engles to approve the 
Consent Agenda items. Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, 
Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 
 

1.1 Approve Revised Peru State College Organizational Chart 

 

1.2 Approve Emeritus Status for Dr. Margaret Crouse 

 

1.3 Approve Emeritus Status for Dr. Katherine Bahr 

 

1.4 Approve Emeritus Status for Dr. Spencer Davis 
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1.5 Approve Emeritus Status for Dr. Dan Holtz 

 

1.6 Approve Emeritus Status for Mr. Kenneth Anderson 

 

1.7 Approve Emeritus Status for Dr. Meenakshi Dalal 

 

1.8 Approve Emeritus Status for Dr. John Paxton 

 

1.9 Authorization for the Chancellor to Sign Customer Relationship Management 
System Contract for Wayne State College 

Items for Discussion and Action 

2. Academic and Personnel 

2.1 First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 5104; Support Staff 
Employees Excluded from the NAPE/AFSCME Bargaining Unit 

A motion to approve the First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board 
Policy 5104; Support Staff Employees Excluded from the NAPE/AFSCME 
Bargaining Unit was recommended by the committee to the full Board, which 
approved the motion.  Voting AYES:  Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, 
Peterson, Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

 

2.2 Approve International Studies Abroad (ISA) Contracts for Travel to England, 
Ireland and Northern Ireland for Chadron State College 

A motion to approve the International Studies Abroad (ISA) Contracts for Travel 
to England, Ireland and Northern Ireland for Chadron State College was 
recommended by the committee to the full Board, which approved the motion.  
Voting AYES:  Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, Blomstedt, and 
Zeiss. 

 

2.3 Approve Memorandum of Understanding with University of Thessaly for Greece 
Study Abroad Program for Wayne State College 
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A motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with University of 
Thessaly for Greece Study Abroad Program for Wayne State College was 
recommended by the committee to the full Board, which approved the motion.  
Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, Blomstedt, and 
Zeiss. 

3. Student Affairs, Marketing, and Enrollment 

3.1 First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 3300; Student 
Organizations; Conduct and Discipline 

Revisions to Board Policy 3300 provide a definition for a student 
organization and clarify the permissible sources of revenue for student 
organizations.  Further, the revisions state that faculty advisors must 
accompany the organizations when they travel overnight and that working 
as a faculty advisor is within the course and scope of the faculty 
member's employment.   

A motion to approve the First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board 
Policy 3300; Student Organizations; Conduct and Discipline was recommended 
by the committee to the full Board, which approved the motion.  Voting AYES: 
Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

 

3.2 First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 3400; Tuition 
Remission 

A motion to approve the First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board 
Policy 3400; Tuition Remission was recommended by the committee to the full 
Board, which approved the motion.  Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, 
Engles, Peterson, Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

 

3.3 First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 3401; Non-Resident 
Scholars Program 

A motion to approve the First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board 
Policy 3401; Non-Resident Scholars Program was recommended by the 
committee to the full Board, which approved the motion.  Voting AYES: Suarez, 
Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, Blomstedt,and  Zeiss 

 

3.4 First and Final Round Approval of Board Policy 4050; Academic and Professional 
Organizations 

Policy 4050 is a new policy establishing academic and professional 
organizations.  The definition includes those groups incorporated into and 
in support of the academic programming of the College and which 
support and enhance the professional or career development of students. 
These organizations are added or eliminated by the College and are 
supported with College funds.  Academic and professional organizations 
are not eligible for student activity fees and are distinct from student 
organizations formed under Board Policy 3300. 
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A motion to approve the First and Final Round Approval of Board Policy 4050; 
Academic and Professional Organizations was recommended by the committee 
to the full Board, which approved the motion.  Voting AYES:  Suarez, Bieganski, 
Chaney, Engles, Peterson, Blomstedt, and  Zeiss. 

 

3.5 Approve Agreement with Omaha World Herald for Peru State College 

A motion to approve the Agreement with Omaha World Herald for Peru State 
College was recommended by the committee to the full Board, which approved 
the motion.  Voting AYES:  Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, 
Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

4. Fiscal, Facilities and Audit 

4.1 Acceptance of Revenue Bond Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

BKD completed its audit report for the revenue bond programs at the 
Colleges for years ending June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016.  The 2002 
Master Resolution calls for an annual audit of the records of the revenue 
bond program to show revenues, fees, and earnings credited to the 
program, the financial condition at the close of the fiscal year, 
transactions during the year, a review of insurance carried on the facilities 
and other buildings, the percentage of occupancy and use of the facilities, 
and any other matters deemed relevant and necessary to make the audit 
informative. The audit is a systemwide report, with information for each of 
the Colleges provided, along with system summaries. The audit 
incorporates information for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 
2016, 2016B, and 2016C supplemental issues.  The audit is completed 
on an accrual basis.   
 
Board Policy 9005 requires that CSC and WSC maintain a minimum 
125% debt service coverage and PSC a 135% debt service coverage 
ratio. This policy helps make our bonds attractive in the market. Historical 
and current ratios are shown below.  
 
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 
 
  FY 2014          FY 2015          FY 2016     FY 2017 
CSC 331%  875%              206%         191% 
PSC 292%  332%              320%       233% 
WSC 272%  371%              364%       235% 
 
BKD indicates that the financial statements “present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Nebraska State Colleges Student Fees and Facilities 
Revenue and Refunding Bond Program as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the 
changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.” 

A motion to approve the Acceptance of Revenue Bond Audit Report for Fiscal 
Year Ending June 30, 2017 was recommended by the committee to the full 
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Board, which approved the motion. Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, 
Engles, Peterson, Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

 

4.2 Approve Reallocation of Contingency Maintenance Funds for Peru State College 

Peru State College requests the following reallocation of contingency 
maintenance funds: 
 
From Resolution: 
 
3/18/16  $60,192.50 #6 Centennial Complex, 
Electrical 
 
To: Resolution: 
 
3/24/17 $60,192.50     #3 Centennial Complex, 

Morgan Hall and Student 
Center; Install, R&R Fire 
Sprinklers and Fire Alarm 

 
 
From Resolution: 
 
3/24/17 $130,000.00   #5 Centennial Complex; 

Replace Electrical Panels 
and Wiring 

 
To Resolution: 
 
3/24/17 $130,000.00   #3 Centennial Complex, 

Morgan Hall and Student 
Center, Install R&R Fire 
Sprinklers and Fire Alarm 

 
 

The transfer of these funds will allow the College to move forward with the 
fire alarm projects for the Student Center and Morgan Hall. 

A motion to approve the Reallocation of Contingency Maintenance Funds for 
Peru State College was recommended by the committee to the full Board, which 
approved the motion.  Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, 
Peterson, Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

 

4.3 Approve Use of Capital Improvement Fee Funds for the Criminal Justice Crime 
Scene Investigation Facility for Wayne State College 
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A motion to approve the Use of Capital Improvement Fee Funds for the Criminal 
Justice Crime Scene Investigation Facility for Wayne State College was 
recommended by the committee to the full Board, which approved the motion.  
Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, Blomstedt, and 
Zeiss. 

 

4.4 First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 6006; Depositories 

A motion to approve the First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board 
Policy 6006; Depositories was recommended by the committee to the full Board, 
which approved the motion.  Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, 
Peterson, Blomstedt, and Zeiss. 

 

4.5 First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 8064; Capital 
Construction and Information Technology (IT); Bids 

A motion to approve the First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board 
Policy 8064; Capital Construction and Information Technology (IT); Bids was 
recommended by the committee to the full Board, which approved the motion.  
Voting AYES: Suarez, Bieganski, Chaney, Engles, Peterson, Blomstedt, and 
Zeiss. 

Items for Information and Discussion 

5. Academic and Personnel 

5.1 Online Programs Report 

The online programs reports from each of the Colleges are provided to 
the Board for information. 

 

5.2 Summer Instructional Load Reports 

Summer instructional load reports from each of the Colleges are provided 
to the Board for information. 

 

5.3 Off Campus Course Offerings Summary 

The off-campus course offerings summary report is provided to the Board 
for information. 

 

5.4 Quantitative Academic Reports 

Quantitative academic reports from each of the Colleges are provided to 
the Board for information. 
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5.5 Reports of Personnel Actions 

The personnel action reports are provided to the Board for information. 

6. Student Affairs, Marketing, and Enrollment 

6.1 Marketing Activities and Events Update 

 

6.2 Summer Enrollment Reports 

Summer enrollment reports from each of the Colleges are provided to the 
Board for information. 

 

6.3 Board of Trustees Scholarship Acceptance Report 

The Board of Trustees Scholarships are merit-based scholarships that 
are awarded annually to graduating high school seniors who score a 25 
or above on the ACT. Recipients must be Nebraska residents. The 
number of scholarships available to each College is calculated from the 
full-time equivalent enrollment from the previous fall semester. The 
Colleges are required to report to the Board the number of scholarships 
offered and the number actually in effect. The Board of Trustees 
Scholarship report for Fall 2017 indicates that the total number of 
scholarships in effect decreased from the Fall 2016 report. 
 
The Board of Trustees Scholarship acceptance report is provided to the 
Board for information. 

 

7. Fiscal, Facilities, and Audit 

7.1 Remission Fund Award Report by Category 

In accordance with the Board’s Tuition Remissions Policy 3400, the 
Colleges have provided the Chancellor with a summary of the remission 
funds awarded by category. Remissions are permitted by the state, 
allowing the NSCS to collect either no tuition or reduced tuition from 
students meeting specific criteria that are approved by the Board. The 
categories approved by the Board are spelled out in Board Policy 3400. 

 

7.2 Special Tuition Rate Reports 

Annually the Colleges prepare a report for the System Office on student 
participation in special tuition rate programs. These include the Chadron 
State Eagle Rate, Peru State One Rate Any State, Wayne State Bridge, 
Non-Resident Scholars, and the Dual Enrollment programs. Further 
information will be provided at the meeting. 
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7.3 Physical Plant Status Reports 

Physical Plant Status Reports from each of the Colleges are provided to 
the Board for information. 

 

7.4 Capital Construction Quarterly Reports 

Capital Construction Quarterly Reports from each of the Colleges are 
provided to the Board for information. 

 
Chadron 

1. Stadium Renovation - Interim report 
 

Peru 
1. Delzell Renovation - Interim report 
2. Field House - Interim report 
3. Park Avenue Campus Entrance - Interim report 
4. Theater Renovation - Interim report 

 
Wayne 

1. Bowen Hall Renovation and Addition - Interim report 
2. Carhart Renovation, Phase III - Interim report 
3. Center for Applied Technology - Interim report 
4. Lindahl Drive Improvements - Final report 
5. Press Box Replacement - Interim report 
6. U.S. Conn Library Renovation - Interim report 

 

7.5 Year End Revenue Bond Expenditure Reports 

Year-end revenue bond expenditure reports from each of the Colleges 
are provided to the Board for information. 

 

7.6 Contracts and Change Orders for Information 

The following contracts and change orders are provided to the Board for 
information. 

 
Chadron State Contracts 

· Heating Plant (roof replacement) -- $82,425 
· IT Department (network technical support as needed) -- 

$215/hour plus travel and local lodging; not to exceed $29,999 
annually 

· Student Services (online courses for education on Title IX and 
Alcohol Awareness) -- $5,150 

· Academic Affairs (marketing and consultation services - 
Director of Assessment) - not to exceed $16,000, up to 100 
hours plus max. expenses up to $1,200 

· King Library (provide online examination services to CSC) - 
hourly rate @$6-$15 minimum $5,000 commitment in year one 

· Justice Studies, Education and Business Departments 
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(reservation of plane tickets for study abroad trip to 
London/Dublin) -- $1,094.07/enrolled student 

· Stadium, Press Box and Football Field (replacement 
construction) -- $7,295,000 

 
 
Peru State Contracts 

· Quadrangle (donor fountain) -- $14,500 
· Administration (VPAF search) -- $34,000 

 
Peru State Change Orders 

· Delzell Hall (#9--paint existing exterior fire escape, remove two 
type 11 light fixtures from Great Hall, provide formica for shelf 
under the window on second floor of east stair tower) -- $7,320 

· Theatre (#1-change grading and concrete paving; sidewalk and 
stair modification; demolition, suspended gyp ceiling, 
fireproofing, sign, delete stair to basement ceiling, delete 
plaster skim coat of bulkhead) -- $15,211 

· Theatre (#2-demolish two existing brick infill locations at west 
façade; artistic design of infill sculptural murals for the 
remaining two openings; design lighting for murals coordinated 
with artist) -- $11,500 

 
 
Wayne State Contracts 

· Anderson Hall (install 70 can lights) -- $7,980 
· Carhart Science (roof repairs) -- $4,678.36 
· Benthack, Rice, Pile, Neihardt, Natatorium, Anderson and 

Berry (pipe and tank insulation in mechanical rooms) -- $5,162 
· Peterson Fine Arts (repairs to door 6) -- $1,638.88 
· Rec Center Room 203 (remove old and install new flooring) -- 

$3,823 
· Stadium Press Box (quality control testing and engineering 

services) -- $6,550 
· Carhart Science (roof repairs) -- $16,017 
· Student Center (install sensors in 4 coolers) -- $2,336 
· Network and Technology Services (consulting services) -- 

$19,500 
· Network and Technology Services (consulting services) -- 

$25,000 
· Residence Life (consulting services) -- $4,500 
· Gardner Hall (professional services for roof replacement) -- 

$26,700 
· Center for Applied Technology (construction management) -- 

$12,345,513 
· Stadium Press Box (replacement construction) -- $3,765,000 
· Campus Streets and Parking Lots (snow removal services) -- 

not to exceed $8,000 
· Outside of Connell Hall (signage and banner) -- $3,114.65 

 
Wayne State Change Orders 

· Anderson Hall (#2-add lighting in closets, conceal piping and 
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add access panels) -- $16,825.80 
· Bowen Hall (#1-elevator work-grouting, cleaning/painting, 

ladders) -- $27,825.56 
· Bowen Hall (#17-work to elevator, door hardware, fire 

sprinklers and heads, electrical repairs) -- $35,161.07 
· Carlson Natatorium (#1-line existing drain sumps) -- $1,488.40 
· Stadium Press Box (#1-change to the metal wall system, 

countertops, hardware, carpet, elevator, light fixtures, piping, 
windows, guardrails, etc.) ($404,542) 

 
 
Nebraska State College System 

· Peru State College (draft financial statement information) -- 
$150-$250/hour, not to exceed $15,000 

· Chadron State and Wayne State Colleges (representation in 
connection with radio stations and related FCC matters) -- 
$385/hr-2018; $395/hr-2019; $400/hr-2020; $405/hr-2021; 
$410/hr-2022 

 

7.7 Grant Applications and Awards for Information 

The following grant applications and awards are provided to the Board 
for information. 
 
Chadron State Application 

· Impact of UAV Operations Enhancement on Geologic Mapping 
of Planetary Surfaces (NASA) -- $371,498.03 

 
Chadron State Awards 

· Digitization TCN: Collaborative Research Using Herbarium 
Data to Document Plant Niches in the High Peaks and High 
Plains of the Southern Rockies - Past, Present, and Future 
(National Science Foundation) -- $63,513 

· Eclipse Johnson Space Center Display (Dawes County Travel 
Board) -- $2,500 

· Fellowships, Miles Chasek/Nathan Pindell (NASA Nebraska 
Space Grant) -- $9,000 ($3,000 Chasek; $6,000 Pindell) 

· Nebraska Research Network in Functional Genomics (National 
Institutes of Health) -- $21,135 (year 3 of sub-award) 

· Prairie Restoration Methods for Cool Season Grass Infested 
Rangelands (Mari Sandoz Heritage Society) -- $2,000 

· Space Science for Elementary Students (NASA Nebraska 
Space Grant) -- $6,704 

· Todd Green Multi-Instrumentalist (Nebraska Arts Council) -- 
$1,650 

· TRIO-Student Support Services (U.S. Department of 
Education) -- $253,528 

· Upward Bound (U.S. Department of Education) - increased 
award to $263,934 for year one 
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Peru State Award 
· Bobcat Book Club (Dollar General Literacy Foundation) -- 

$2,000 
 
 
Wayne State Awards 

· Annual National Geographic Alliance Grant 2017-18 (National 
Geographic Society) -- $42,613 

· TRiO Student Support Services (U.S. Department of 
Education) -- $325,244 for year 3 

8. Miscellaneous Action and Information Items 

i. Chancellor's Report 

8.1.1 Chancellor's Report 

Chancellor Carpenter discussed the upcoming Tax Reform Bill and the impact it 
could have on the Nebraska State College System. In the bill, graduate students 
would be taxed for education assistance; i.e., the remissions graduate students 
receive. 
 
Another item in the bill would tax the tuition remissions for employees, their 
spouses and dependents. Colleges would be taxed on the value of providing 
employees with the use of on-premises gyms and other athletic facilities. 
Charitable contributions to the College’s Foundations could be reduced as well, 
due to an item in the bill which would double the standard deduction amount thus 
reducing the number of tax payers who itemize their deductions. This would have 
a negative effect on donations to our foundations. 
 
All of these items would impact the NSCS students and employees in a negative 
way, which in turn would impact the enrollment. We have contacted our 
representatives and senators to let them know the adverse impact of this bill on 
our students and employees. 
 
Chair Bieganski indicated that he invited John Chaney to provide greetings from 
the Board at the fall commencement exercises at CSC and Cap Peterson would 
provide the greetings at WSC. 
 

ii. Presidents' Report 

8.2.1 Presidents' Reports 

WSC President Rames reported on the new marketing portal recently 
launched by the Admissions Office which provides a virtual tour of several 
of WSCs academic programs, student life and NCAA athletics and club 
sports and study abroad programs. She further reported on other activities 
the Admissions Office has planned to increase enrollments. 

 
President Rames also noted the press box project would begin soon and would 
provide valuable meeting space for recruiting events and modern production 
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facilities for broadcasting students. She also noted that 435 students had 
participated in the recent Career Fair. 
 
PSC President Hanson reported on the marketing materials being developed by 
student interns in the Marketing and Communications Department. The materials 
highlight leadership stories of alumni, students, faculty or staff leaders. 
 
President Hanson also noted that Dr. Sarah Crook, PSC faculty member, played 
a role in the PSC Charter Day Commemoration being given “Signature Event” 
status by the Nebraska Sesquicentennial Commission. Finally, he reported that 
Ms. Raeanna Carbaugh, a recent PSC grad, received the 2017 Nebraska State 
Education Association “Rookie of the Year” award. 
 
CSC President Rhine reported on the reaffirmation of accreditation to CSC from 
the Higher Learning Commission without any findings and no interim monitoring. 
The next accreditation visit will be in 2026-2027. He thanked several individuals 
for their help with this including Board members Gary Bieganski and John 
Chaney, Chancellor Stan Carpenter and Vice Chancellor Jodi Kupper. Others 
involved included Dale Grant, Jon Hansen, Charles Snare, Dr. Margaret Crouse 
and Dr. Katherine Bahr. 

iii. Student Trustees' Report 

CSC Student Trustee Ashley Goad reported that the CSC Student Senate had 
recently hosted the Nebraska State College Student Leadership conference.  
WSC Student Senate members attended the conference. The guest speaker, 
Joshua Fredenburg, discussed the 6 Fundamentals of Resilient Leadership. 
 
Ms. Goad noted that CSC is looking at installing charging stations on campus 
and is working on having more water bottle filling stations installed. Another 
project that the CSC students are excited to get going is the “Penny For Your 
Thoughts Campaign.” This is a mental health campaign designed by college 
students for college students. Upcoming events will create awareness of mental 
health experiences that college students face and will empower them with 
knowledge and resources to improve mental health.  
 
PSC Vice President for Enrollment Management/Student Affairs, Jesse Dorman, 
provided the student trustee report for Treyten Nelson was attending a Phi Beta 
Lambda conference. Dr. Dorman reported that the Peru Student Education 
Association hosted the fall conference where they conducted a “Change for 
Change” event. This is an event where each school that attended put together 
loose change to donate. The donation of $1,093 was provided to the Port Arthur 
School District which was hit by Hurricane Harvey. 
 
Dr. Dorman further noted that the Campus Activity Board conducted 10 events in 
10 days for the recent Homecoming and Sesquicentennial celebrations. Student 
Senate hosted the Homecoming parade. The Student Senate is working to find a 
solution for providing transportation for students who do not have vehicles on 
campus and is currently negotiating a contract with a local company to provide 
transportation. 
 
WSC Vice President and Dean of Students, Jeff Carstens, provided the student 
trustee report for Jayme Krejci who was away for a family event. Dr. Carstens 
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reported that the Pi Gamma Mu honor society raised $400 to send students to 
the national convention. Electronic media students created a short horror film 
titled “Orientation” about a freshman who comes to WSC and has an odd 
experience with his roommate. Students from the Health and Human 
Performance and Sport Department participated in the World Heart Day event by 
taking blood pressure, sharing heart health recipes and teaching CPR. Dr. 
Carstens also noted that Spanish Heritage Month ended in October with a fiesta 
celebration which honored the history, culture and contributions of those living in 
the U.S. who have ancestors from Spain, Mexico, the Caribbean, and Central 
and South America.  

Adjournment 

 The meeting was adjourned at 9:36 AM 
 

 

    

___________________________________ 

Stan Carpenter, Chancellor 

aaa 

1

Packet Pg. 18

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
N

o
v 

17
, 2

01
7 

8:
00

 A
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



ITEMS FOR CONSENT AGENDA 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 11/29/2017 8:30 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Authorization for Chancellor to Sign Contract for 
Andrews Hall Fire Alarm System for Chadron State (FFA) 

 
 
 

 
To expedite the Andrews Hall Fire Alarm System upgrade project, Chadron State respectfully 
requests approval for the Chancellor to be given authority to sign a contract with Protex Central 
after negotiations are complete and funding is identified. 
 
The System Office and Chadron State College recommend approval of the Authorization for 
Chancellor to Sign Contract for Andrews Hall Fire Alarm System for Chadron State. 
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ITEMS FOR CONSENT AGENDA 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 1/3/2018 4:09 PM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Authorization for Chancellor to Sign Fire Alarm 
Upgrade Contracts for Peru State College (FFA) 

 
 
 

 
Peru State requests authorization for the Chancellor to approve contracts for the following 
projects: 
 

Fire Alarm Upgrade State Buildings (Library, CATS, Campus Services, Hoyt) - These 
projects will upgrade fire alarm systems in four state buildings, and are funded by the 309 
Task Force for Building Renewal. Design is complete and bids will be received in January of 
2018.  All four projects may be combined in one contract with a combined estimated cost of 
around $275,000. 
 
Fire Alarm Upgrade Revenue Bond Buildings (Student Center, Morgan Hall) - These two 
are contingency maintenance projects and a joint design effort with the Fire Alarm upgrades 
for state buildings. Design is complete and bids will be received in January of 2018.  The 
Student Center project is estimated at $89,000 and Morgan Hall is estimated at $192,000.  
The two projects may be combined in one contract if adequate funds are available, or 
contracted separately. 
 
The System Office and Peru State College recommend approval of the Authorization for 
Chancellor to Sign Fire Alarm Upgrade Contracts for Peru State College. 
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ITEMS FOR CONSENT AGENDA 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 11/29/2017 8:30 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Authorization for Chancellor to Sign Construction 
Contracts for Wayne State College (FFA) 

 
 
 
The System Office and Wayne State respectfully request authorization for the Chancellor to sign 
contracts for the following projects: 

 

 Student Center HVAC Upgrade Phase 1 

 Gardner Hall Sloped Roof Replacement 

 Connell Hall Window/Entry System Replacement and South Elevation Ornamental 
Wood Replication* 

 
*The Board had previously authorized the Chancellor to sign a contract for Connell Hall 
Exterior Molding Replacement at its January 17, 2017 meeting, however since then it has 
been determined after consultation with the architect and the Task Force for Building 
Renewal, which is funding the project, that the windows need replaced along with the 
ornamental wood molding around the windows. This request is to include the window 
replacement in the project. 
 
Authorization for the Chancellor to sign contracts in amounts not to exceed available 
funding for these projects will assure that they move forward in a timely manner. 
 
The System Office and Wayne State College recommend approval of the Authorization for 
Chancellor to Sign Construction Contracts for Wayne State College. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\ACADEMIC AND PERSONNEL 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 11/22/2017 10:35 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Contract for Study Abroad Program in Cuba for 
Chadron State College 

 
 
 

 
Chadron State program facilitators, along with a guide, will accompany a group of CSC students 
to Cuba for a nine-day intensive travel and education program. The course is an Essential 
Studies Capstone and assists with Chadron State’s Master Academic Plan (MAP) Priority #1: to 
continue to implement and improve the Essential Studies Program, and sub-priority to heighten 
emphasis on study abroad opportunities that enhance student and faculty engagement.  
 
The System Office and Chadron State College recommend approval of the Contract for Study 
Abroad Program in Cuba for Chadron State College. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\ACADEMIC AND PERSONNEL 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 12/18/2017 2:10 PM A Page 1 

ACTION: First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 
5405; Retirement Plan; State College Employees 

 
 
 

 
This policy is being revised to remove language on employee contribution rates to the primary 
retirement plan that are no longer applicable.  
 
The System Office recommends approval of the Revisions to Board Policy 5405; Retirement 
Plan; State College Employees. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Revisions to Board Policy 5405 (PDF) 
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PERSONNEL, NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 

 

 

POLICY: 5405  Retirement Plan; 

State College Employees Page 1 of 6 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BOARD POLICY 
 

It is the policy of the Board that the retirement program is and shall be consistent with state and federal regulations. 

 

Participation, Annuity 

 

The Board shall provide participating plans for retirement annuities for all full-time employees of the Nebraska State 

College System.  All plan assets shall be held in an annuity, or a trust or custodial account, for the exclusive benefit 

of plan participants.  The Board shall provide such retirement benefits through the Teachers Insurance and Annuity 

Association of America and the College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF).  Old Age and Survivors Insurance 

of the Social Security Administration shall be a part of the plan of retirement benefits. 

 

The State Colleges are authorized to enter into, on behalf of the Board, contracts with employees providing for the 

purchase of such retirement annuity contracts under the provisions of the Technical Amendments Act of 1958 to the 

Internal Revenue Code, as amended. Contracts with the State College employees shall provide that the accounts 

contributed by the State Colleges for such retirement annuity contracts shall be contributed as a result of an 

agreement of the employee to take a reduction in salary, or to forego an increase in salary, but only to the extent that 

such amounts are earned, or would be earned by the employee after the agreement becomes effective. Such an 

agreement must be legally binding and irrevocable with respect to amounts earned while the agreement is in effect 

and shall, in all other respects, conform with the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. 

The right of employees to such retirement annuity contracts shall be non-forfeitable, except for failure to pay future 

premiums; and such retirement annuity contracts shall be non-transferable. 

 

Primary and Secondary Plans 

 

A primary retirement plan intended to constitute an eligible deferred compensation plan as set forth in Internal 

Revenue Code (Code) Section 403(b) shall be provided for all full-time employees of the Nebraska State College 

System. Participation in the 403(b) Plan is mandatory as set forth in the section below relating to Eligibility for 

Participation in the Primary Retirement Plan. 

 

A secondary retirement plan intended to constitute an eligible deferred compensation plan within the meaning of 

Section 457 of the Code, as amended, shall be offered all full-time employees of the Nebraska State College System.  

Participation in the 457(b) Plan is voluntary as set forth in the section below that outlines Eligibility for Participation 

in the Secondary Retirement Plan.  The 457(b) Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan shall be secondary to and a 

supplement for the primary 403(b) Retirement Plan. 

 

Eligibility for Participation in the Primary Retirement Plan 403(b) 

 

1. Employees eligible for participation are any active employee of the State College System 

whose employment status is full-time. Full-time for faculty employees shall mean 

carrying a "full-time load," as defined by the College, for the regular academic year.  

Full-time for all other employees will consist of working full-time, as defined by the 

College, for the regular academic year or at least three-fourths time over a twelve (12) 

month period. 
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POLICY: 5405  Retirement Plan; 

State College Employees Page 2 of 6 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. All eligible employees will begin participation in this retirement plan on the first day of the month 

coinciding with or next following the attainment of age thirty (30). During required participation, 

employees are not permitted to switch from salary reduction (pre-tax) to salary deduction (after 

tax) at any time.  Therefore, salary reduction is to be used exclusively.  As a result, the mandatory 

employee contribution will be treated as an employer contribution for calculation purposes and 

will not be subject to the employee elective deferral limit. Furthermore, during voluntary 

employee participation, those voluntary employee contributions will be subject to the limits under 

402(g), the employee elective deferral limit, in addition to the 403(b) and the 415 limits. 

 

3. All eligible employees may begin participation in this retirement plan on the first day of the month 

coinciding with or next following the second anniversary of their employment and the attainment 

of age twenty five (25). Eligible employees under age thirty (30) may count prior full-time service 

(at least three-fourths time over a twelve [12] month period) with an educational institution toward 

the required service period. Educational institutions include, but are not limited to, public and 

private elementary or secondary schools (K-12) in addition to postsecondary institutions.  

 
Contributions for Primary Retirement Plan 403(b)  

 

The Board shall have power, in its discretion, to provide retirement benefits for employees of the Board, subject to 

the following: 

 

1. The cost of such retirement benefits shall be funded in accordance with sound actuarial principles 

with the necessary contributions for both past service and future service being treated in the 

budgets in the same way as any other operating expense. 

 

 2. The maximum state State College contribution under such retirement plan shall not exceed the 

sum of: 

 

a. the percentage approved by the Board of each employee's salary or wage earnings for any 

calendar year before any agreement for reduction of salary or wage earnings; and, 

 

b. pursuant to an agreement for reduction of salary or wage earnings, the amount of the 

reduction of salary or wage earnings. 

 

3. Each employee's contribution shall at least equal the state State College contribution to any such 

retirement fund but shall not exceed six percent (6%) of each employee's salary or wage earnings 

for any calendar year and shall be calculated before any agreement for any reduction of salary or 

wage earnings, provided that in lieu of making such contribution, each such employee shall enter 

into an agreement for reduction of salary or wages in an amount equal to such employee's 

contribution for the purchase by the Board of an annuity contract for such employee, under the 

provisions of the Technical Amendments Act of 1958 to the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. 

 

4. The retirement benefits of any employee for service prior to the effective date of any retirement 

plan established under the provisions of this section shall be those provided under the retirement 

plan now in force which benefits shall not be abridged. 

 

5. Each participant in this primary retirement plan and each College shall make contributions under 

the retirement plan on a monthly basis during the years of participation, except for months in 

which no salary is paid, in accordance with the following schedule: 
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______________________________________________________________________________ 
  

(Contributions as a Percent of Total Salary to Primary 403(b) Plan) 

 

Participant   State College   Total 

Contribution   Contribution   Contribution 

(salary reduction only) 

     6.0%         8.0%                  14.00% effective July 1, 2005  

 

6. Each participant in this retirement plan who elected the 4.5% contribution rate under the previous 

plan will have an opportunity to elect the 6.0% contribution rate under this revised plan, but may 

choose to remain at the previous 4.5% level. As of January 1, 1990 all newly hired or rehired 

eligible employees shall be required to contribute at the six percent (6.0%) level. 

 

7.6. Under no circumstances or conditions will any contribution of the Colleges revert to, be paid to, or 

insure to the benefit of, directly or indirectly, the Colleges.  However, if contributions made by the 

Colleges were based on mistake of fact, such contributions may be returned to the Colleges within 

one (1) year of the date on which the contribution was made. 

 
Eligibility for Participation in the Secondary Retirement Plan 457(b) 

 

1. Employees who are participants in the primary 403(b) retirement plan are eligible to participate on 

a voluntary basis in the secondary 457(b) retirement plan.    

 

2. To participate in the secondary plan, each eligible employee shall complete and return the 

applicable forms, including a Voluntary Salary Deferral Agreement, to the College benefits office. 

Enrollment shall be effective on or after the first day of the month following the date the 

enrollment forms are properly completed by the employee, including the Voluntary Salary 

Deferral Agreement, and approved by the employer or its designee.   

 

Contributions for Secondary Retirement Plan 457(b) 

 

1. The employer will not make any non-elective or matching contributions to the Nebraska State 

College 457(b) Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan. This plan will accept only elective 

deferrals made to the plan by the eligible employee. 

 

2. Starting the effective date of this plan, and in accordance with the Economic Growth and Tax 

Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001, the Board will permit eligible State College employees to 

participate simultaneously in both the primary 403(b) and secondary 457(b) retirement plans. 

 

3. The 457(b) Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan is an elective salary reduction plan that 

permits employees who participate to supplement their primary 403(b) plan and Social Security 

benefits by setting aside an additional portion of their salary on a before-tax basis. Any such 

elective deferral of salary may be made up to the maximum amount permitted by law provided the 

employee agrees to voluntarily defer a minimum of twenty five dollars ($25) per pay period.   

 

4. Participants in this plan do not pay any federal income taxes on the amounts they contribute, or on 

any earnings on the amount they contribute, until the funds are withdrawn at retirement.   

 

5. A participant shall be fully vested at all times in his or her accrued benefits under this plan.  Such 

accrued benefits shall be non-forfeitable at all times. 
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6. Employees may elect to change their Elective Deferral Rate with respect to future contributions by 

submitting a new properly executed Voluntary Salary Deferral Agreement to the employer.  Such 

change shall take effect as soon as administratively practicable but not earlier than the first pay 

period commending with or during the first month following receipt by the employer of such 

Voluntary Salary Deferral Agreement. 

 

7. Employees may terminate their election to have compensation deferred in this plan by so notifying 

the employer or its designee in writing. Such termination shall take effect as soon as 

administratively practicable, but not earlier than the first pay period commencing with or during 

the first month following receipt by the employer of satisfactory written notice of such revocation. 

 

8. To the extent permitted by law, rollovers may be made to this 457(b) Plan from any other eligible 

deferred compensation plan maintained by a State, political subdivision of a State or any agency or 

instrumentality of a State or political subdivision of a State.  Such funds shall be accepted and 

fully vested and nonfortfeitable at all times.   

 

9. To the extent permitted by the plan, rollovers to the plan are permitted. 

 

Cashability Option for Primary and Secondary Retirement Plans 

 

1. Upon termination of employment, an employee can elect to make cash withdrawals up to the 

entire amount of the CREF accumulation under the Board TIAA/CREF Primary 403(b) 

Retirement Plan. TIAA Traditional Account cash withdrawals can be made in accordance with the 

investment options withdrawal rules that currently allow substantially equal payments over a ten-

year period.  

 

2. Full or partial cash withdrawals upon severance from employment can also be made under the 

Board TIAA/CREF Secondary 457(b) Plan.   

 

Distribution Options for Primary and Secondary Retirement Plans 

 

Employees who sever their employment within the State College System may make an immediate and binding 

election with respect to how they will take their distribution when they retire, or they may defer their decision until 

they are ready to retire, as permitted by law.  Participants in both the primary and secondary retirement plans must 

begin taking a distribution by the April 1st of the year following the year in which he or she attains age 70 1/2 or 

retires, whichever is later.   

 

A variety of payment options are available under the TIAA/CREF Primary 403(b) and Secondary 457(b) plans, 

including, but not limited to: 

 Lifetime annuity income 

 Fixed-period annuity (5 to 30 years) 

 Minimum distribution option (MDO) 

 Full or partial cash withdrawals 

 Systematic withdrawals 

 Interest payment Retirement Option (IPRO) 
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Investment Options for Primary and Secondary Retirement Plans 
 

The Nebraska State Colleges TIAA/CREF Retirement Plans offer employees a variety of investment options.  An 

employee may request that amounts contributed to either plan on his or her behalf be allocated among the available 

Investment Options established under the plans.  Following the initial allocation request at the time of enrollment, 

the investment allocation request shall remain in effect for all subsequent contributions until changed by the 

employee. An employee may change his or her investment allocation by submitting a written request to TIAA-

CREF either in writing, by phone, or online. Such change shall become effective as soon as administratively 

feasible. 

 

Transfer Policy 
 

This plan does not permit transfers of retirement accumulations to investment accounts other than TIAA/CREF. 

 

Questions 
 

Details of participation, current rates of withholding, retirement age, etc., are available in the current retirement plan 

agreement, copies of which are available in the Chancellor’s office and each Colleges’  Human Resources Director’s 

office. 

 

Any questions about the Retirement Plan or any requests for financial advice or retirement counseling, should be 

directed to TIAA/CREF. 

 

Social Security 
 

Employees are entitled to benefits provided under the Social Security Act, subject to whatever conditions may be 

applied by the State of Nebraska or the United States government. 

 

Retirement Age 
 

Retirement is permitted when employment ceases on or after attainment of age fifty five (55). Age based mandatory 

retirement is prohibited. 
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Legal Reference: RRS 85-195 University of Nebraska; State Colleges; Department of Public Institutions; 

retirement annuity contracts; purchases 

RRS 85-320 State colleges; retirement plan, establishment; terms; investment of funds 
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Policy Revised: 11/7/14 

Policy Revised:   
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\ACADEMIC AND PERSONNEL 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 12/18/2017 2:12 PM A Page 1 

ACTION: First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board Policy 
5006; Drug-Free Workplace; Standards of Conduct and Board 
Policy 8035; Facilities; Alcohol Use 

 
 
 

 
These policies are being revised in preparation for the new academic programs planned at 
Wayne State.    
 
The System Office recommends approval of the Revisions to Board Policy 5006; Drug-Free 
Workplace and Board Policy 8035; Facilities; Alcohol Use. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Revisions to Board Policy 5006 (PDF) 

 Revisions to Board Policy 8035 (PDF) 

2.3
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PERSONNEL, NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 

 

 

POLICY: 5006  Drug-Free Workplace;  

    Standards of Conduct  Page 1 of 3 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BOARD POLICY 
 

The Board of Trustees recognizes and affirms its responsibility and commitment to maintain a drug-free workplace 

environment.  In accordance with this responsibility and to ensure worker safety and workplace integrity, under the 

Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, (41 U.S.C. §701), and the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act of 1989, (20 

U.S.C. §1145g), the Board prohibits the illegal manufacture, possession, distribution or use of controlled substances 

or alcohol in the workplace by its employees or those who engage or seek to engage in business with the State 

College System. 

 

The term "controlled substance" refers to a controlled substance as defined  by the Federal  Controlled Substances 

Act (21 U.S.C. 801 ) et seq, or Nebraska Drug Control Laws, Neb. Rev. Stat. 28-401 et seq. 

 

In an effort to bring about a drug-free workplace in the System and to assure employees of a workplace free from 

illegal drugs and their effect, the Board through its College administrations will implement the following Drug-Free 

Workplace Policy and standards of conduct. 

 

SCOPE: Applicable to all employees. 

 

POLICY: It is unlawful to illegally manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess, or use a controlled substance, 

drug paraphernalia or alcohol in the workplace.  The Board, therefore, establishes a drug-free 

workplace policy for its employees. 

 

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 

 

The Board has formulated the following standards of conduct for its employees which prohibit the following acts: 

 

1. Unauthorized use, possession, manufacture, distribution or sale of illegal drugs, drug paraphernalia or 

alcohol on College premises or while on College business or at College activities, or in College supplied 

vehicles either during or after working hours; 

 

2. Unauthorized use, possession, manufacture, distribution, or sale of a controlled substance as defined by the 

Federal Controlled Substances Act, (21 U.S.C. 801) et seq, or Nebraska Drug Control Laws, Neb. Rev. 

Stat. 28-401 et seq., on College premises, or while engaged on College business or attending College 

activities, in College supplied vehicles, either during or after working hours; 

 

3. Storing in a locker, desk, vehicle, or other place on College owned or occupied premises, any unauthorized 

controlled substances, drug paraphernalia or alcohol; 

 

4. Unauthorized Ppossession, use, manufacture, distribution or sale of alcohol or illegal drugs off College 

premises that adversely affects an employee's  work  performance, safety or the safety of others; 

 

5. Violation of State or Federal laws relating to the unauthorized use, possession, manufacture, distribution or 

sale of alcohol, controlled substances or drug paraphernalia; 

 

6. Failure to report within five (5) days any criminal drug or alcohol statute citation, arrest or conviction 

occurring in the workplace to his or her immediate supervisor. The supervisor will immediately report such 

citation, arrest or conviction to the President or designee.   

2.3.a
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PERSONNEL, NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 

 

 

POLICY: 5006  Drug-Free Workplace;  

    Standards of Conduct Page 2 of 3 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

7. Notwithstanding the standards stated above, possession and consumption of alcohol may be allowed 

pursuant to an academic course exception in conjunction with Policy 8035. Under an academic course 

exception, faculty and students are still required to abide by Board, College, state and federal 

laws/regulations regarding access to, use, distribution, and consumption of alcohol. No students under the 

age of twenty-one (21) shall be allowed to register or attend such a course. All alcoholic beverages shall be 

removed from the classroom or lab at the end of each course session and shall be locked in a secured 

cupboard with restricted access.  

 

PROCEDURE 
 

1. All employees, including part-time student employees, and each new hire will receive a copy of this policy. 

 

2. Each employee will receive a drug abuse awareness form which will state it is unlawful to manufacture, 

distribute, dispense, possess, or use a controlled substance or alcohol in the workplace unless alcohol is 

allowed at an event authorized and hosted by the President as outlined in Board Policy 8035 or in 

conjunction with an academic course.  Each employee will sign and date this statement certifying that he or 

she: 

 

A. Understands and will abide by the drug-free workplace policy; and 

 

B. Has knowledge of disciplinary actions which may be imposed for violations of the drug-free 

workplace policy. 

 

The signed and dated statement will be provided to the Director of Human Resources.  The signed and 

dated statement will be permanently maintained in the employee's personnel file. 

 

3. All current employees will receive drug and alcohol abuse awareness training.  New hires will receive the 

training within the first six (6) months of date of hire.  This training shall include: 

 

A. A definition of drug and alcohol abuse; 

 

B. Information on specific drugs and alcohol and the effects of drug and alcohol abuse; 

 

C. Dangers of drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace; 

D. Availability of counseling and treatment services; and 

 

E. Disciplinary actions which may be imposed on employees for violations of this policy. 

 

4. If an employee violates the drug free workplace policy, disciplinary action may be imposed according to 

established Board policy and procedures.  Disciplinary action shall include one or more of the following 

actions: 

 

A. Referral to an assistance program for evaluation and assessment to determine the appropriate 

treatment for rehabilitation; and/or 

 

B. Participation in a drug rehabilitation program; and/or 

 

C. Termination of employment. 
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PERSONNEL, NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 

 

 

POLICY: 5006  Drug-Free Workplace;  

    Standards of Conduct Page 3 of 3 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

5. If an employee is convicted of violating any criminal drug statute while in or at the workplace, he or she 

will be subject to discipline up to and including termination.  Alternatively, the College may require the 

employee to successfully complete a drug abuse program sponsored by an approved private or 

governmental institution at the employee's expense. 

  

6. If the employee is hired on federal contracts or grants, as a condition of employment, the College shall 

notify the Federal granting agency within ten (10) days after receiving notice of an employee's drug or 

alcohol statute conviction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Policy Adopted: 4/14/89 

Policy Revised: 3/11/94 

Policy Revised: 6/2/11 

Policy Revised: 6/10/14 

Policy Revised: 
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FACILITIES, NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
 

 

POLICY: 8035  Facilities; Alcohol Use Page 1 of 1 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BOARD POLICY 
 

The following guidelines will be observed in servingregarding alcoholic beverages at College eventswill be 

observed: 
 

1. Alcoholic beverages may be served at specific alumni and community functions or at an event or program, 

such as a banquet, official entertainment or reception approved and hosted by the President of the college, 

or his or her designee. 
 

2.     No liquor license will be held by the Board or by any of the Colleges.    
 

3. 2. All Nebraska liquor control regulations and statutes will be observed and under no circumstances 

will alcoholic beverages be dispensed to, consumed by, or allowed to be in the possession of any person under 

the legal drinking age for Nebraska.   
 

4.3. Food and nonalcoholic beverages shall also be available any time alcoholic beverages are served. 
 

5.4. The Colleges must comply with Nebraska statutes, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the 

Nebraska Liquor Commission relating to the consumption of alcohol.  
 

6.5. The College may, at the discretion of the President, allow alcoholic beverages to be possessed and 

consumed in conjunction with an approved academic course and curriculum. For example, a chemistry 

course addressing technical/chemical composition may be combined with wine tasting opportunities. 
 

PROCEDURES 
 

The following guidelines will be applicable to dispensing and consumption of alcoholic beverages at scheduled 

events on College property or at College sponsored events that occur off campus.  
 

1. The College is responsible for and shall control the dispensing of alcoholic beverages provided by a private 

individual, group or organization sponsoring or participating at an approved event. 
 

2. The duration of the event shall be restricted as specified by the President or his or her designee. 
 

3. The College may provide, for a fee, all services and set-ups. 
 

4. Unused quantities of alcoholic beverages will remain the property of the private individual, group or 

organization sponsoring or participating in the event. 
 

5. Only persons invited by the College to attend the event and necessary College personnel may be present at 

the event. All other persons shall be excluded. 
 

6. While the Colleges may not sell alcoholic beverages, under any circumstance, the President may authorize 

appropriately licensed vendors to sell alcoholic beverages at events. 
 

7. Each President may promulgate specific College policies further controlling and regulating the dispensing 

and consumption of alcoholic beverages at scheduled events consistent with this policy. 
 

Legal Reference: RRS 53-101 et seq., note especially 53-186 

   

Policy Adopted: 7/24/87 

Policy Revised: 3/11/94 

Policy Revised:  4/9/02 

Policy Revised: 9/15/06 

Policy Revised: 6/2/11   
Policy Revised: 6/10/14 

Policy Revised: 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\ACADEMIC AND PERSONNEL 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 11/22/2017 10:44 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Addition of Supplemental Endorsement in Health 
Sciences to Bachelor of Science in Education in Family and 
Consumer Sciences Degree for Wayne State College 

 
 
 

 
The addition of this new supplemental endorsement is designed to allow persons who hold a 
subject or field endorsement in Science, Biology, Health and Physical Education, Physical 
Education, Health Education, Agriculture, or Family and Consumer Science to teach and 
manage a Health Sciences career field and will be eligible for the Work-Based Learning 
endorsement. 
 
The System Office and Wayne State College recommend approval of the Addition of 
Supplemental Endorsement in Health Sciences for Wayne State College. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 WSC Proposed Health Sciences Endorsement (PDF) 

2.4
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM POLICY: 

 

4100 Program Approval 

 
1. Descriptive information  

a. Name of institution 
Wayne State College (WSC) 
 

b. Name of program 
Health Sciences Supplemental Endorsement 
 

c. Degrees/credentials to be awarded graduates of the program 
Health Sciences Supplemental Endorsement for those who already hold or are concurrently 

earning a subject or field endorsement in Science, Biology, Health and Physical Education, Physical 
Education, Health Education, Agriculture, or Family and Consumer Sciences. 

 
d. Other programs offered in this field by the institution 

Family and Consumer Sciences Endorsement 
Life Science/Biology Endorsement 
Health & Physical Education Endorsement 
Physical Education Endorsement 
 

e. CIP code 
131399 
 

f. Administrative units for the program 
 School of Business & Technology, Technology and Applied Science Department, Family and 

 Consumer Sciences  
 

g. Proposed delivery site(s) and type(s) of delivery, if applicable 
Wayne State College. The courses will be offered in face-to-face or online as they are currently 
offered.  

 
h. Proposed date (term/year) the program will be initiated 

Fall, 2017  
 
2. Description, including credit hours and other requirements (program of study) and purpose of the proposed 
program. 
 
As part of Career and Technical Education, the Nebraska State Department of Education has added the Health 
Sciences Supplemental Endorsement.  Wayne State College has been encouraged by NDE to add the 
endorsement for students.  WSC would be one of the first in Nebraska to offer the endorsement (UNL is 
currently in the proposal process to have the endorsement available in the fall of 2018).  There is a need in the 
public schools for teachers with this endorsement. 
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Health Sciences Supplemental Endorsement (15-16 hours) 

This endorsement requires an applicant to hold, or earn concurrently, a subject or field endorsement in Science, 

Biology, Health and Physical Education, Physical Education, Health Education, Agriculture, or Family and 

Consumer Sciences. 

 

CED 417 Principles of Career Education …………………………..3 
PED 105 Anatomy & Physiology OR 
BIO 220 Human Anatomy OR 
BIO 340 Human Physiology ………………………………….………….3-4 
PED 305 Exercise Physiology OR 
PED 351 Biomechanics OR 
FCS 340 Community Nutrition OR 
NAT 421 Scientific Communications …………..……….………………3 
FCS 497 FCS Internship ……………………………………….………………3 
EDU 409 Content Area Methods and Assessment ……………….3 
 
3. Centrality to Role and Mission  

Assurances that proposed program is consistent with its role and mission, as defined in Nebraska 
statutes, and that consideration of this program proposal at the College included faculty from across the 
institution.  
 
Offering this supplemental endorsement for Wayne State College’s students will provide them an 
additional endorsement in an area where there is need in Nebraska.  Faculty from Family & Consumer 
Sciences, Science Education, and Health, Human Performance and Sports worked together to develop 
the supplemental endorsement.  The endorsement includes existing courses.  Adding the endorsement 
could boost enrollment in the courses from the different departments represented in the program.   
 
 

4. Evidence of Need and Demand  
a. Need for the program – provide information, such as data, surveys, or studies, regarding:  

i. Workforce needs of business, industry, and employers;  
ii. Job and educational advancement opportunities for graduates; and  
iii. Potential for the program to contribute to society and economic development, where  
      appropriate.  
 

The Nebraska Department of Education added the Health Sciences Supplemental 
Endorsement to fill a need for teachers in this area of the Career Clusters Model.  High 
schools are adding more courses and programs of study in the Health Sciences area, and 
teachers with this endorsement would be qualified to teach in these programs and 
academies. Having the supplemental endorsement will make students with an 
endorsement in Science, Biology, Health and Physical Education, Physical Education, 
Health Education, Agriculture, or Family and Consumer Sciences more marketable.  In 
2017-18 majors eligible to work towards this endorsement include:  17 Science, 2 
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Biology, 39 Health and Physical Education, 7 Physical Education, 0 Health Education, 1 
Agriculture, and 27 Family and Consumer Sciences for a total of 92 students.  
  

b. Demand for the program – provide studies, surveys, or other evidence about student demand,  
     including:  

i. Number of students expected to enroll in the program in each of the first five years of 
 operation and minimum number of students required to make the program viable. 

 
Students completing an endorsement in Science, Biology, Health and Physical Education, 

Physical Education, Health Education, Agriculture, or Family and Consumer Sciences 

would be able to add the Health Science Endorsement, which total 92 students in 2017-

2018.  The student enrollment should already be working towards an endorsement and 

would make the program viable.  Students would be enrolling in already existing 

courses, so this program does not create the need for adding courses.  There is no 

minimum number of students needed to make the program viable, but it can be 

available to any of the eligible majors if they desire to add it to their credentials. 

5. Adequacy of Resources –  
 

a. Faculty and Staff Resources  
Number of current faculty and staff required to implement the proposed program in the 
responsible unit; and additional new faculty and/or administrative and support staff required, 
including graduate assistants, along with expected qualifications for these individuals.  
 

This endorsement will only include courses taught by current faculty members. The 

endorsement includes only current courses being offered with no need for additional 

faculty or staff. 

b. Physical Facilities  
i. Location of the proposed program;  
  Chadron State College, regional, and distance delivery sites. 
ii. Additional physical facilities, such as classrooms, laboratories, and offices, which will be  

required for the program; and plans for renovating existing facilities, constructing new 
facilities, or leasing additional facilities for the proposed program within the next ten years.  
 

This endorsement will only require existing facilities. The endorsement is utilizes current 

courses being offered with no need for additional facilities.  

c. Instructional Equipment and Informational Resources  
i. Computers;  
ii. Library holdings;  
ii. Data services; and  
iii. Telecommunication connectivity.  

 
The Health Science supplemental endorsement will utilize current technology 

equipment, library holdings, data services, and telecommunication connectivity. The 
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courses included in the endorsement are currently being offered, with no need for 

additional instructional equipment needed. 

d. Budget Projections for first five years of program  
i.  Projected expenses (CCPE Table 1 or comparable representation)  
ii. Reallocation of existing resources and/or other revenue sources for expenses (CCPE  
 Table 2 or comparable representation)  
  

There are no projected expenses since this degree will only utilize current faculty 

members, facilities and equipment, and library holdings.  There is no need for additional 

faculty members, facilities and equipment, or library holdings that would incur 

increased expenses. 

6. Avoidance of Unnecessary Duplication  
a. Identify other similar programs offered in the state by public or private institutions;  
 

Wayne State College would be one of the first to offer this supplemental endorsement.  The 
University of Nebraska in Lincoln is currently proposing their Health Sciences Supplemental 
Endorsement and hope to have it in place for the fall of 2018. 
 

b. Identify any similar programs offered within the states that are members of the Midwestern Higher  
    Education Compact; and  
 

There may be Health Sciences endorsements available in other states to meet their specific 
requirements; however, the courses in this program meet the specific guidelines set forth by the 
Nebraska Department of Education Rule 24. 
 

c. For graduate and professional programs, identify similar programs offered in contiguous states  
    that would be reasonably accessible to Nebraska residents.  
 

This is a Nebraska endorsement with courses that specifically meet the Nebraska requirements, 
other states’ and institutions’ coursework would not be set up specifically for this endorsement. 
 

7. Consistency with the Comprehensive Statewide Plan for Postsecondary Education 
Explain how this program would enhance relevant statewide goals for education 
 

Goal:  Higher education in Nebraska will be responsive to the workforce development and ongoing training 
needs of employers and industries to sustain a knowledgeable, trained and skilled workforce in both rural and 
urban areas of the state. 

 
The educational system is being responsive to the need for employees trained in Health Sciences.  Many 
Health Sciences careers are on the H3 (high demand, high skill, high wage) list for Nebraska.  The 
Nebraska Career and Technical Education department has developed courses and programs of study at 
the secondary level to be implemented in comprehensive high schools and academies.  There is a need 
for secondary teachers for these new programs, so a supplemental endorsement has been developed.  
When Wayne State College adds this supplemental endorsement, it will create the opportunity for the 
students with the eligible endorsements to be able to fill this statewide need. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\STUDENT AFFAIRS, MARKETING, AND 
ENROLLMENT 

  
January 16, 2018 

 
 
  
   

Updated: 12/18/2017 11:09 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: First and Final Round Approval of Revisions to Board By-
Laws 

 
 
 

 
The By-Laws are being revised to incorporate the student proposal to have new Student 
Trustees be appointed earlier so they can attend additional meetings to learn the process before 
their term begins. 
 
The System Office recommends approval of the Revisions to Board By-Laws. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Revisions To Board ByLaws (PDF) 
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GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION, NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 

 

 

BY-LAWS Page 1 of 6 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

ARTICLE I -- NAME 

 

The legal name of the Board is the Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State Colleges, herein after referred to as 

"Board." 

 

ARTICLE II -- PURPOSE 

 

The Board is a body corporate created by the State Constitution and empowered by statutory authority with the 

general government of the State Colleges as now existing, and such other State Colleges as may be established by 

law. 

 

ARTICLE III -- MEMBERSHIP 

 

The Board consists of seven (7) members, six (6) of whom shall be appointed by the Governor, with the advice and 

consent of the Legislature, two (2) each for terms of two (2), four (4), and six (6) years, and two (2) each biennium 

thereafter for a term of six (6) years, and the Commissioner of Education shall be a member ex-officio. Board 

appointees, even if the appointment is for a specified term, hold office until their successors are duly appointed and 

qualified. The duties and authorities of the Board shall be prescribed by law. 

 

Student Members on the Board 

 

An undergraduate student enrolled full time shall be appointed by the Governor from each of the Nebraska State 

Colleges to serve a one (1) year term. An ad hoc selection committee shall be established on each campus by the 

respective current Student Trustee and the Student Senate Speaker/President. The selection committee shall consist 

of the current Student Trustee, unless the current Student Trustee is seeking an additional term; one (1) Student 

Senate faculty advisor;, the Vice President/Dean of Student Affairs, and four (4) other students as appointed by the 

Board member and current Student Trustee and Student Senate Speaker/President. Only students serving on the 

committee shall have a vote. The committee shall nominate at least three (3) candidates to the Student Senate for 

approval. After January October 1, but before March December 1, the Student Senate or similar body shall nominate 

three (3) candidates to the Governor of Nebraska. The representatives appointed by the Governor will serve one (1) 

year terms ending May 1. If, during the term of the appointment, the representative is no longer enrolled as a student, 

a vacancy shall be created requiring the Governor to appoint another qualified representative for the balance of the 

appointment. Student Trustees are accorded full Board membership and participation except for certain personnel 

and legal matters, and that they are non-voting members. 

 

ARTICLE IV -- OFFICERS 

 

Board Officers shall consist of a Chair and Vice-Chair, and are elected from the appointed membership of the Board 

for a term of one (1) year. Term of office begins July 1, except that said two (2) officers shall hold office until their 

successors are elected and qualified. Any such officer may be removed from office by five (5) affirmative votes. A 

vote for removal of an officer must be at a regular or special meeting of the Board, preceded by the mailing of notice 

to each Board member and to such officer five (5) days prior to such meeting which notice shall set out the proposed 

action. 

 

The Secretary shall be selected by the Board and hold office of indefinite tenure at the pleasure of the Board. The 

State Treasurer shall be Treasurer of the Board by virtue of his/her office. 
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GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION, NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 

 

 

BY-LAWS Page 2 of 6 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
The Chair's principal duties shall be to provide leadership in planning the work of the Board; to aid the Chancellor in 

interpreting the educational needs of the colleges and in devising effective ways to present them to the Board, to 

preside at meetings of the Board; to recommend to the Board the appointment of committees; to act for the Board, 

when such action is required by law, in signing contracts and other official documents; to represent the Board or to 

designate a representative upon occasions when such representation is deemed desirable; and to perform such other 

duties as may be prescribed by law or state regulation or assigned by the Board. 

 

The Board Chair shall preside at its meetings with full power to vote on and discuss all matters, and shall submit 

information and recommendations, as that officer may consider proper, concerning the business and interests of the 

colleges. The Chancellor and/or College President will sign all contracts approved by the Board. 

 

A Vice-Chair shall be elected by the Board at the annual meeting and shall assume the duties in the Chair's absence 

or incapacity. In the event of the permanent disability or death of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall become Chair for 

the remainder of that term and the Board shall elect a new Vice-Chair. 

 

ARTICLE V -- MEETINGS 

 

The Board shall meet at least quarterly and will hold its official annual meeting at or near the close of the spring 

semester. The election of officers for the next fiscal year will occur at the annual meeting. 

 

All meetings of the Board shall be held within the state of Nebraska at such place as determined by the Board or the 

Board's delegates, including a meeting at each institution under its jurisdiction at least once each year, absent 

extenuating circumstances. 

 

All regular or special meetings of the Board shall be publicized as required by State law and provided in Board 

policy. 

 

Board of Trustees Business Meetings are open to the public. Committee meetings and executive sessions are not 

open to the public but must be held in accordance with the provisions of state law. One (1) current copy of the Open 

Meetings Act shall be posted in the business meeting room at a location accessible to members of the public. At the 

beginning of the meeting, the public shall be informed about the location of the posted information. 

 

When it is necessary to hold an emergency meeting without reasonable advance public notice, the nature of the 

emergency shall be stated in the minutes and any formal action taken in such meeting shall pertain only to the 

emergency. Such emergency meetings may be held by means of electronic or telecommunication equipment. The 

provisions of the law shall be complied with in conducting emergency meetings. 

 

The Board may hold a work session preceding regular or special Board meetings upon request and/or concurrence of 

the Board. The purpose of a work session shall be to provide information concerning items of in-depth interest in 

education, briefing and background information items related to the Nebraska State Colleges activities, items to be 

proposed for future consideration, and a review of items on the public agenda in order to assume adequate 

information has been provided to the Board. A work session agenda stating the time and place of the session shall be 

included with the agenda for the regular Board meeting. Work sessions shall be open to the public. No formal action 

shall be taken at a work session. 
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ARTICLE VI -- QUORUM 

 

Four members of the Board in actual attendance of all meetings of the Board shall constitute a quorum. Action may 

be taken by a majority of a quorum on all matters not requiring a positive vote of a majority of the Board as specified 

in these policies or by-laws or by statute. 

 

ARTICLE VII -- MEETING AGENDA 

 

The Chancellor, with the approval of the Chair, shall prepare an agenda to be furnished each member of the Board 

and each college president three (3) days in advance of the meeting, describing briefly the nature of each item and 

providing background information which will enable parties to weigh the subject in advance and research such facts 

as may be helpful in Board deliberation. 

 

ARTICLE VIII -- ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

At all regular meetings and special meetings the order of business will be determined by the Chancellor and Chair.  

 

ARTICLE IX – CLOSED SESSIONS 

 

The Board may hold a closed session by the affirmative vote of a majority of its voting members if a closed session 

is clearly necessary for the protection of the public interest or for the prevention of needless injury to the reputation 

of an individual and if such individual has not requested a public meeting. The subject matter and the reason 

necessitating the closed session shall be identified in the motion to close. The vote to hold a closed session shall be 

taken in open session. The entire motion, the vote of each member on the question of holding a closed session, the 

reason for the closed session, and the time of commencement and conclusion of the closed session shall be recorded 

in the minutes. If the motion to close passes, then the presiding officer immediately prior to the closed session shall 

restate on the record the limitation of the subject matter of the closed session. The Board shall restrict its 

consideration of matters during the closed session to only those purposes set forth in the minutes’ motion to close as 

the reason for the closed session. The meeting shall be reconvened in open session before any formal action may be 

taken. Any formal official action on any question or motion duly moved and seconded shall be taken only by roll call 

vote of the Board in open session convened and the record shall show how each member voted. Any formal action of 

any type, including expenditure of funds, adopted or taken in violation of the Open Meetings Act shall be declared 

void by the district court if the suit is commenced within one hundred twenty (120) days of the meeting at which the 

alleged violation occurred. Any formal action in substantial violation of the Open Meetings Act shall be voidable by 

the district court if the suit is commenced more than one hundred twenty (120) days after but within one (1) year of 

the meeting at which the alleged violation occurred. 

 

Any board member shall have the right to challenge the continuation of a closed session if the member determines 

that the session has exceeded the reason stated in the original motion to hold a closed session or if the member 

contends that the closed session is not necessary. Such challenge shall be overruled only by a majority vote of the 

board members. Such challenge and disposition shall be recorded in the minutes. 
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ARTICLE X -- COMMITTEES 

 

All committees of the Board shall be appointed by the Chair. Committees shall serve one (1) year commencing July 

1, and thereafter until the committees are reconstituted or discharged. 

 

Academic and Personnel 

Student Affairs, Marketing and Enrollment 

Fiscal, Facilities and Audit 

 

Committees shall have at least three (3) members, and the Board Chair shall be an ex-officio member of all 

committees. Other regular committees may be created as the Board directs. The first named member of each 

committee shall act as Chair, call the meeting and direct the proceedings, but shall not otherwise have greater power 

or authority than other members. 

 

Special committees may be created to take charge of subjects specifically referred to them. Such committees shall be 

appointed as ordered by the Board at the time they are created, and shall cease to exist when their work has been 

completed or when discharged by Board action. 

 

ARTICLE XI -- PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 

 

Robert's Rules of Order (current) shall govern the consideration of all business and debate as far as applicable to this 

body and when not in conflict with Board policies or law. 

 

A record of the Board's vote shall be preserved in the minutes on all propositions involving the creation of 

indebtedness; the sale, purchase, or leasing of any real estate; or on any contract for the construction, alteration, or 

repair of any building; or area which requires Board action; or on any amendment to the policies and by-laws of the 

Board; and also on any proposition submitted at the request of any members of the Board made before the 

announcement of a vote otherwise taken. 

 

ARTICLE XII -- AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS 

 

These by-laws may be altered, repealed, amended or added to by a majority vote of all members of the Board at any 

regular meeting of the Board or at any special meeting called for that purpose, provided notice is given to the Board 

and each Board member shall have been furnished a copy of the proposed amendment or change (at least ten (10) 

days) prior to the meeting at which such amendment or change is to be acted on. 

 

ARTICLE XIII -- FORMULATION OF POLICIES 

 

When policies are found to be inadequate, contradictory or unclear, the appropriate committee of the Board or the 

Chancellor shall propose a policy for consideration by the Board for adoption to guide future related action. Such 

new policies as adopted shall be incorporated in the policy manual. 

 

Policies may be adopted after consideration at one (1) or two (2) meetings of the Board by a majority vote. The 

Board can decide on the number of meetings required for adoption of the new policy based on the subject matter of 

the policy and the urgency of need for the new policy. Formal adoption of the policies shall be recorded and noted in 

the minutes of the Board.   
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Policies are subject to amendment only by a majority vote and after consideration at one (1) or two (2) meetings. The 

Board can decide on the number of meetings required to make amendments to current policies based on the extent of 

the amendment and the urgency of need for the amendment. All amendments of the policies shall be recorded and 

noted in the minutes of the Board. 

 

A policy may be waived at any meeting, with a quorum of the Board, to permit a specific action. 

 

ARTICLE XIV – REVISOR OF BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES 

 

The Chancellor is hereby designated as the Revisor of Bylaws and Policies adopted by the Board of Trustees. The 

Chancellor shall, from time to time as he or she shall deem necessary, prepare amendments, corrections or 

clarifications to Board bylaws and policies for publication and distribution. Publication and distribution is to be 

accomplished in such manner as the Chancellor determines to be most appropriate. In preparing any amendment, 

correction or clarification for publication and distribution, the Chancellor shall not alter the sense, meaning or effect 

of any act of the Board of Trustees, but may: 

 

1) renumber sections and parts of sections; 

2) rearrange sections; 

3) change reference numbers to agree with renumbered sections or subsections; 

4) change capitalization for the purpose of uniformity; 

5) correct manifest clerical or typographical errors; 

6) remove obsolete matter within any section; 

7) remove within any section language that conflicts with any lawful and controlling statute or regulation of 

the State of Nebraska or of the United States, or that has been determined to be unlawful as a result of a 

controlling decision of a court of the State of Nebraska or of the United States, when the same can be 

accomplished without impairing the sense or legality of the remainder of the section; 

8) omit any section or sections that conflict with any lawful and controlling statute or regulation of the State of 

Nebraska or of the United States, or that have been determined to be unlawful as a result of a controlling 

decision of a court of the State of Nebraska or of the United States;  

9) correct faulty internal references, and  

10) harmonize provisions with former acts of the Board of Trustees in these By-laws or former policies adopted 

by the Board. 

 

ARTICLE XV -- CONFLICT OF INTEREST; BOARD MEMBERS 

 

No member of the Board shall in any manner, directly or indirectly, participate in the deliberation upon or the 

determination of any question affecting his or her personal interests, or the interests of any corporation, partnership 

or association in which the Board member is directly or indirectly personally interested. In addition, each member of 

the Board will file a disclosure statement as required by state law. 

 

ARTICLE XVI – MEMBERS; REIMBURSEMENT AND REMUNERATION 

 

Members of the Board shall receive no compensation for the performance of their Board duties, but may be 

reimbursed for their actual expenses incurred on Board affairs, including telephone and telegraph charges, postage, 

and travel expenses. 
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Legal Reference: Article VII, Section 13 Constitution 

RRS 49-1106  Disclosure; contracts; filing; fines or incomplete filing penalty 

RRS 83-306  Director of administrative services; claims against the state; limitations 

RRS 84-302  Board of Trustees; officers 

RRS 84-306.1  Claims against the state; claim; content; automobile; airplane; statement 

required; receipts; personal maintenance expense 

RRS 84-1410  Closed session; when; purpose; reasons listed; procedure; right to challenge; 

prohibited acts; chance meetings, conventions or workshops 

RRS 84-1411  Meetings of public body; notice; contents; when available; right to modify; 

duties concerning notice; videoconferencing or telephone conferencing 

authorized; emergency meeting without notice; appearance before public body 

RRS 84-1412  Meetings of public body; rights of public; public body; powers and duties 

RRS 84-1414  Unlawful action by public body; declared void or voidable by district court; 

when; duty to enforce open meeting laws; citizen’s suit; procedure; violations; 

penalties 

RRS 85-301  State Colleges; official names; board of trustees; appointment; no 

compensation; traveling expenses 

RRS 85-303  Board of Trustees; secretary; duties 

RRS 85-304  Board of Trustees; rules and regulations 

RRS 85-304  Board of Trustees; powers; enumerated 

RRS 85-314  Board of Trustees; utilities, service, sale or lease 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

By-Laws Adopted: 1/28/77 

By-Laws Revised: 6/5/93 

By-Laws Revised: 12/3/98 

By-Laws Revised:   9/17/04 

By-Laws Revised:   3/31/06 

By-Laws Revised: 9/15/06 

By-Laws Revised: 11/14/08 

By-Laws Revised: 3/26/10 

By-Laws Revised: 9/9/11 

By-Laws Revised: 6/10/14 

By-Laws Revised: 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\FISCAL, FACILITIES AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 1/4/2018 1:26 PM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Acceptance of Basic Financial Audit Report for Year 
Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 

 
 
 
The Auditor of Public Accounts (APA) has completed the Nebraska State College System 
(NSCS) basic financial audit for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2017 and 2016.  The audit is 
attached. 
 
The audit contains an unmodified opinion from the APA and states:  "In our opinion, based on 
our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type 
activities and the discretely presented component units of the NSCS, as of June 30, 2017 and 
2016, and December 31, 2016 and 2015, (Peru State Foundation) and the respective changes 
in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America." 
 
The Facilities Corporation is included in the basic financial audit as a blended component unit of 
the NSCS.  BKD performed a separate audit of the Facilities Corporation, which was accepted 
at the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Facilities Corporation on November 10, 
2016.   
 
A separate audit of the Revenue Bond program was also completed by BKD and accepted by 
the Board of Trustees at its November 16-17, 2017 meeting. The Revenue Bond program 
activity is incorporated into the basic financial audit figures. 
 
The Colleges' Foundations are included as discretely presented component units in the audit 
report in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards. The 
Foundations' financial statements and corresponding footnotes are incorporated from private 
audits accepted by the individual foundation boards. 
 

A material weakness and significant deficiency are included in the audit report. 
 
The System Office recommends approval of the Acceptance of Basic Financial Audit Report for 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Nebraska State College System Basic Audit Report FY17  16 (PDF) 
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AUDIT REPORT 
OF THE 

NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This document is an official public record of the State of Nebraska, issued by 
the Auditor of Public Accounts. 

 
Modification of this document may change the accuracy of the original 

document and may be prohibited by law. 
 

Issued on December 12, 2017 
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NEBRASKA AUDITOR OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
 Charlie Janssen Charlie.Janssen@nebraska.gov 

 State Auditor PO Box 98917 
State Capitol, Suite 2303 

Lincoln, Nebraska  68509 
402-471-2111, FAX 402-471-3301 

www.auditors.nebraska.gov 
 
 
 
 

NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 

Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State College System 
Lincoln, NE 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the 
discretely presented component units of the Nebraska State College System (NSCS) (a 
component unit of the State of Nebraska), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Nebraska State 
College System’s basic financial statements, as listed in the Table of Contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
did not audit the accompanying financial statements of the Chadron State, Peru State, and Wayne 
State Foundations (Foundations), discretely presented component units of the NSCS, as of and 
for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, December 31, 2016 and 2015, and June 30, 2017 
and 2016, respectively.  Those statements are presented separately on pages 19 through 21, 23 
through 28, and 31 through 33.  We also did not audit the financial statements of the Nebraska 
State Colleges Facilities Corporation, a blended component unit of the NSCS, and the activity of 
the Nebraska State College System Revenue and Refunding Bond Program, which represent 33 
percent and 29 percent, respectively, of total assets, and 89 percent and 85 percent, respectively, 
of total liabilities, and 7 percent and 6 percent, respectively, of total net position at June 30, 2017 
and 2016, and total revenues constituting 20 percent and 21 percent, respectively, of the primary 
government for the years then ended.  Those statements were audited by other auditors whose 
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reports have been furnished to us, along with the Foundations’ reports, which appear herein, and 
our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Foundations, the Nebraska State 
College System Revenue and Refunding Bond Program, and the Nebraska State Colleges 
Facilities Corporation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.  The financial statements of the Foundations, Revenue and 
Refunding Bond Program, and the Facilities Corporation were not audited in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the NSCS’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
business-type activities and the discretely presented component units of the NSCS, as of 
June 30, 2017 and 2016, and December 31, 2016 and 2015, (Peru State Foundation) and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, financial 
statements have been restated to correct misstatements.  Our opinion is not modified with respect 
to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, on pages 9 through 16, be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
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the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the NSCS’s basic financial statements.  The schedules are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.   
 
The schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, by us and other auditors.  In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed 
as described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the schedules are fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.   
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 11, 2017, on our consideration of the NSCS’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the NCSC’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the NSCS’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance.   
 
 
 
 
December 11, 2017 Kris Kucera, CPA, CFE 
 Audit Manager 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Chadron State Foundation 
Chadron, Nebraska 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Chadron State Foundation (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statements of financial  position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the 
related  statements of activities, functional  expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Chadron State Foundation as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in its 
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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To the Board of Directors of 
Chadron State Foundation 
Page -2- 
 
 
Other Matters 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  
The Statements of Activities by Fund on pages 26-27 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements  as a whole. 
 
 
 
 
Chadron, Nebraska 
October 20, 2017 
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William J. Sweet, C.P.A. (1923-2000)  
Mark S. Deras, C.P.A.  
Luke M. Aldy, C.P.A.  

Gerald S. Sweet, C.P.A.  
Jeffrey L. Thacker, C.P.A.  
Hugh V. McHugh, C.P.A.  

Todd F. Lehigh, C.P.A. 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To the Board of Directors 
Peru State College Foundation 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Peru State College Foundation, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related 
statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then 
ended and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Peru State College Foundation as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

 
 
Omaha, Nebraska 
April 26, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Board of Trustees 
Wayne State Foundation 
Wayne, Nebraska 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Wayne State Foundation (a 
nonprofit foundation) which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the 
related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
 
 

McMill Building   125 South 4th St.   P.O. Box 1264    Norfolk, NE 68702 
 

 
402-371-1160     800-694-1160    Fax: 402-379-3818    www.wealthfirm.info 
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of Wayne State Foundation as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its net assets and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Report on Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole.  The schedule of functional expenses on page 20 is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the Wayne State Foundation’s 2016 and 2015 financial statements, 
and we expressed unmodified audit opinions on those audited financial statements in our reports dated 
September 13, 2016 and September 15, 2015, respectively.  In our opinion, the summarized comparative 
information presented herein as of and for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 is consistent, in all 
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

CHRISTENSEN BROZEK FALTYS PC 
Certified Public Accountants 

 
September 15, 2017 
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This section of the Nebraska State College System’s (NSCS) financial report presents a narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the NSCS for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2017 and 2016.  The analysis has been prepared by management of the NSCS and is 
intended to be read with the financial statements and the related footnotes that follow this 
section. 
 
Management’s discussion and analysis relates only to the NSCS and does not include any 
overview of the financial position and activities of the Chadron State Foundation, Peru State 
Foundation, and Wayne State Foundation, which are considered component units of the NSCS. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the NSCS’s basic financial 
statements, which include: 1) Statements of Net Position; 2) Statements of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Position; 3) Statements of Cash Flows; and 4) Notes to Financial Statements.  
This report also contains information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
The Statements of Net Position present information on all of the NSCS’s assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between 
these elements reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may 
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the NSCS is improving or 
deteriorating. 
 
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present information 
showing how the NSCS’s net position changed during the fiscal year.  All changes in net 
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless 
of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements 
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused 
vacation leave). 
 
The Statements of Cash Flows present the NSCS’s flows of cash by defined categories.  The 
primary purpose of the Statements of Cash Flows is to provide information about the NSCS’s 
cash receipts and payments during the year. 
 
The Notes to Financial Statements provides additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE NSCS 
 
The NSCS includes Chadron State College (CSC), Peru State College (PSC), Wayne State 
College (WSC), and the NSCS Office in Lincoln.  The designation as a single entity reflects the 
general governing authority of the Board of Trustees, including the authority to distribute the 
State appropriation among the Colleges and the NSCS Office. 
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The audited financials for the NSCS include information on the Nebraska State Colleges 
Facilities Corporation (Corporation), a non-profit corporation statutorily created to allow the 
NSCS to finance building projects of the Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State College 
System on any of its campuses, through the issuance of notes, bonds, or other obligations.  The 
members of the Board of Trustees serve as the Board of Directors of the Corporation.  
Outstanding bonds issued by the Corporation are those authorized under LB 198, passed in 2013, 
and LB 957, passed in 2016.  Repayment is from legislative appropriations and student fees.  The 
long-term debt of the Corporation accrues to the NSCS Office, while the assets acquired as the 
result of renovations and new construction appear as assets at the individual Colleges. 
 
Audit information from the Chadron State Foundation, Peru State Foundation, and Wayne State 
Foundation is included in the report as well.  With implementation of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 39, the Foundations of the Colleges have been deemed 
to be component units of the NSCS.  Those Foundations’ financial statements are presented 
separately on pages 19 through 21, 23 through 28, and 31 through 33 of this report. 
 
Condensed statements are presented below for the NSCS for the years ended June 30, 2017, 
2016, and 2015. 
 

Nebraska State College System 
Net Position as of June 30 

 
  

2017 
2016  

As Restated 
2015 

As Restated 
Current Assets $ 61,891,736 $ 61,727,054 $ 58,634,961 
Non-current Assets    
  Capital Assets, Net  220,659,478  204,168,107  198,162,911 
  Other Non-current Assets  29,710,508  26,454,450  13,068,191 
    Total Assets  312,261,722  292,349,611  269,866,063 
    
Deferred Outflow of Resources  39,737  43,515  47,293 
    
Current Liabilities  17,042,025  17,482,793  17,197,126 
Non-current Liabilities  83,089,711  67,408,157  52,711,352 
    Total Liabilities  100,131,736  84,890,950  69,908,478 
    
Deferred Inflow of Resources  34,355  -  - 
    
Net Position    
  Net Investment in Capital Assets  162,506,457  159,203,331  153,547,782 
  Restricted  22,819,277  24,984,626  25,144,114 
  Unrestricted  26,809,634  23,314,219  21,312,982 
    Total Net Position $ 212,135,368 $ 207,502,176 $ 200,004,878 
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Nebraska State College System 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for Year Ended June 30 

 

   
 

2017 
 2016 

As Restated 
 2015 

As Restated 
Operating Revenues      
     Tuition and Fees, Net $ 30,618,960  $ 29,438,090  $ 26,968,650 
     Federal and State Grants and Contracts  13,938,455   14,217,826   14,853,807 
     Private Grants and Contracts  1,217,839   962,338   614,334 
     Auxiliary Enterprises, Net  17,395,090   18,888,599   18,564,719 
     Other Operating Revenues  1,445,984   1,613,651   1,140,204 
    6

 

             Total Operating Revenues  64,616,328   65,120,504   62,141,714 
        
Operating Expenses  118,585,964   116,551,489   112,800,483 
        
Operating Loss (53,969,636)  (51,430,985)  (50,658,769) 
        
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)      
     State Appropriations  50,357,756   50,744,042   49,583,376 
     Investment Income  1,362,963   1,201,233   1,043,343 
     Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt  (1,254,799)   (1,211,649)   (1,235,376) 
     Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Asset  20,733   14,858   (589,282) 
     Bond Issuance Costs  (384,096)   (318,876)     - 
     Other Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)  (14,221)   (63,433)            27,139 
                  Net Non-operating Revenues  50,088,336   50,366,175   48,829,200 
        
Loss before Other Revenues, Expenses,  (3,881,300)   (1,064,810)   (1,829,569) 
    Or Gains (Losses)      
        
Other Revenues (Expenses) or Gains (Losses)      
       Capital Appropriations and Grants  4,564,990   4,139,354   8,751,675 
     Capital Contributions  1,855,690   2,364,254   2,617,534 

       Capital Facilities Fee  2,093,812   2,058,500   2,082,521 
          Net Other Revenues (Expenses)  
             or Gains (Losses)  8,514,492   8,562,108   13,451,730 
        
Increase in Net Position  4,633,192   7,497,298   11,622,161 
        
Net Position, Beginning of Year   207,502,176   200,004,878   188,382,717 
        Net Position, End of Year $ 212,135,368  $ 207,502,176  $ 200,004,878 
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CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 
At June 30, 2017, the NSCS had a net position of $212.1 million, an increase of $4.6 million or 
2.2% over 2016, and up 6.1% from 2015.  Net position was comprised of unrestricted – $26.8 
million; restricted – $22.8 million; and net investment in capital assets – $162.5 million. 
 

 
 
Operating revenues for fiscal year 2017 were $64.6 million compared to $65.1 million in 2016, a 
0.8% decrease, and were 4.0% over fiscal year 2015 operating revenues.  Operating revenues for 
2017 include $30.6 million in net tuition and fees, Federal grants and contracts of $11.8 million, 
State grants and contracts of $2.1 million, private grants and contracts of $1.2 million, net 
auxiliary enterprises of $17.4 million, and other operating revenues of $1.5 million. 
 

 

76.6% 

10.8% 
12.6% 

Net Position at June 30, 2017 

Net Investment in Capital Assets Restricted Unrestricted 

47.4% 

18.3% 

3.3% 

1.9% 

26.9% 

2.2% 

Fiscal Year 2017 Operating Revenues 

Tuition & Fees, Net Federal Grants & Contracts 
State Grants & Contracts Private Grants & Contracts 
Auxiliary Enterprises, Net Other Operating Revenue 

4.1.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

eb
ra

sk
a 

S
ta

te
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
ys

te
m

 B
as

ic
 A

u
d

it
 R

ep
o

rt
 F

Y
17

  1
6 

 (
21

21
 :

 A
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 o
f 

B
as

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 f
o

r 
Y

ea
r 

E
n

d
ed



NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS – UNAUDITED 

(Continued) 
 

- 13 - 

Operating expenses for the year ended June 30, 2017, amounted to $118.6 million, compared to 
$116.6 million in 2016, and $112.8 million in 2015.  Compensation and benefits accounted for 
$70.1 million, or 59.1% of the total; contractual services were $5.7 million; supplies and other, 
$14.4 million; depreciation, $8.3 million; and utilities, $3.9 million.  Other operating expenses 
consisted of scholarships and fellowships, $4.4 million; repairs and maintenance, $5.4 million; 
communications, $0.5 million; and food service, $5.9 million. 
 

 
The current year operating loss amounted to $54.0 million, compared to an operating loss of 
$51.4 million in 2016 and $50.7 million in 2015. 
 
Non-operating revenues consist of State appropriations and investment income. 
 

 

59.1% 

4.8% 

12.2% 

7.0% 

3.3% 
3.7% 4.5% 

0.4% 5.0% 

Fiscal Year 2017 Operating Expenses 

Compensation & Benefits Contractual Services 
Supplies & Other Depreciation 
Utilities Scholarships & Fellowships 
Repairs & Maintenance Communications 
Food Service 

97.4% 

2.6% 

Fiscal Year 2017 Non-operating Revenues 

State Appropriations Investment Income 
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The most significant change in the schedule of net position from the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2015, to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, was an increase in non-current restricted 
cash and cash equivalents and an increase in long-term debt.  The changes in these two accounts 
related to the issuance of two bonds during the fiscal year.  The proceeds of these bonds will be 
used for capital construction projects related to Delzell Hall at PSC and Bowen Hall at WSC.  
The $6.0 million increase in net capital assets during fiscal year 2016 was also the result of work 
related to the Armstrong renovation and Rangeland Lab construction at CSC; Lindahl Drive 
street work, U.S. Conn Library and Bowen Hall renovation, and Morey Hall window 
replacement at WSC; and T.J. Majors, Field House, Theatre, and Delzell Hall renovations, Hoyt 
HVAC, and Park Avenue street work at PSC. 
 
The most significant change in the schedule of net position from the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2016, to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was an increase in capital assets, non-
current restricted cash and cash equivalents, and an increase in long-term debt.  The changes in 
cash and long-term debt related to the issuance of Corporation bonds during the fiscal year.  The 
proceeds of these bonds were used to refund LB 605 (2006) debt and will also be used for capital 
construction projects related to the Stadium renovation at CSC, the Theatre/Event Center 
renovation at PSC, and the construction of the Center for Applied Technology at WSC.  The 
$16.5 million increase in net capital assets during fiscal year 2017 was also the result of work 
related PSC Delzell Hall and Field House renovations, WSC Bowen Hall and U.S. Conn Library 
renovations and the Lindahl Drive street project.   
 
Fiscal year 2017 tuition and fee income increased $1.2 million or 4.0%, and auxiliary enterprise 
revenues decreased $1.5 million, or 7.9% from the prior fiscal year.  Federal, State, and private 
grants and contracts decreased $0.02 million or 0.2%.  Increases in tuition and fees of 13.5%, 
while decreases in Federal, State, and private grants and auxiliary enterprise from 2015 to 2017 
were 2.0%, and 6.3%, respectively. 
 
Fiscal year 2017 non-operating revenues reflect a $0.4 million or 0.8% decrease in expenditure 
of State appropriations and a 13.5% increase in investment income over fiscal year 2016.  State 
appropriations increased 1.6% and investment income increased 30.6% between fiscal years 
2017 and 2015.  
 
Operating expenses for the year ended June 30, 2017, increased by $2.0 million or 1.7% from the 
previous fiscal year.  Within the operating expenses category, compensation and benefits 
increased approximately $0.9 million, contractual services increased $0.5 million, depreciation 
increased $0.1 million, repairs and maintenance increased $1.2 million, food service decreased 
$0.1 million, and other operating expenses decreased $0.6 million.  Health insurance premiums 
increased slightly in 2014-2015, 2015-2016, and 2016-2017, with the overall composite rates for 
medical and dental insurance increasing 2.3%, 1.9% and 4.9%, respectively.   
 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the NSCS had recorded $328.9 million in gross capital assets.  During the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the investment in buildings and improvements increased by 
$19.2 million; infrastructure increased by $3.9 million; equipment increased by $0.2 million; and 
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS – UNAUDITED 

(Continued) 
 

- 15 - 

construction in progress increased by $0.8 million.  At the end of the fiscal year, the NSCS had 
$108.2 million in accumulated depreciation that left $220.7 million in net capital assets.  
Accumulated depreciation for fiscal years 2016 and 2015 were $100.6 million and $92.8 million, 
respectively, and net capital assets were $204.2 million and $198.2 million, respectively. 
 
The NSCS had $88.4 million in long-term liabilities at the end of the 2017 fiscal year.  These 
long-term liabilities consisted primarily of outstanding indebtedness of $79.5 million, $4.0 
million in accrued compensated absences, $0.5 million in master lease obligations, and $0.6 
million in unearned revenue.  Additional debt of $29.5 million was issued during the fiscal year, 
and previously existing bond obligations were reduced by $16.2 million.  Long-term liabilities 
were $73.3 million and $58.5 million at the end of fiscal years 2016 and 2015, respectively.  
Additional debt of $24.0 million was issued in fiscal year 2016 and no additional debt was issued 
in fiscal year 2015.  Previously existing bond obligations were reduced by $8.8 million and $4.2 
million, respectively, during fiscal years 2016 and 2015.  The NSCS also added master leases of 
$0.8 million during fiscal year 2015. 
 
Several construction projects have been completed at the Colleges, including the Campus Tunnel 
Upgrade and Edna Work Hall Windows Replacement at CSC; and Humanities Hall Roof 
Replacement and Student Center South Roof Replacement at WSC.  Projects were completed 
using College cash funds, LB 309 building renewal task force funds, and contingency 
maintenance funds.  Renovation and construction was also in progress for several projects, 
including Delzell Hall Renovation, Field House Renovation, Park Avenue Campus Entrance, 
Hoyt HVAC Upgrade, and the Theater/Event Center Renovation & Addition projects at PSC; 
and Bowen Hall Renovation, Humanities Hall Windows Replacement, U.S. Conn Library 
Renovation & Addition, and the Lindahl Drive projects at WSC.  These projects are being 
funded through various sources including Facilities Corporation bonds, capital improvement fee 
funds, the LB 309 building renewal task force, College cash funds, revenue bond funds, and/or 
privately raised funds.  Planning & Design was in process for the Stadium Replacement, Boiler 
House Roof Replacement, and Crites Hall Windows Replacement projects at CSC; and the 
Center for Applied Technology and the Press Box Replacement projects at WSC. 
   
All projects using bond proceeds from LB 605 (2006) have been completed.  The Rangeland 
construction project utilizing LB 198 (2013) funding was completed during the 2016 fiscal year 
while the U.S. Conn Library project, also utilizing LB 198 funding, was completed during the 
2017 fiscal year.  During the 2016 legislative session, the Legislature passed LB 957 (2016) 
which extended the appropriations related to the LB 605 bonds to fiscal year 2030.  The 
extension of the appropriation was to allow for the refunding of the LB 605 bonds and the 
issuance of new bond proceeds in order to help fund the renovation of the stadium at CSC, the 
renovation of the Theatre/Event Center at PSC, and the construction of applied technology 
programmatic space at WSC.  The bonding resulting from LB 957 provided $21.3 million in 
capital project funds.  Various deferred repair and fire and life safety upgrades are in progress at 
all three Colleges. 
 
See the notes to the financial statements for additional discussion of capital assets and long-term 
liabilities. 
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS – UNAUDITED  

(Concluded) 
 

- 16 - 

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS THAT WILL AFFECT THE 
FUTURE 
 
The Governor and Legislature initially approved State funding for 2015-2016 at $50,877,911 and 
for 2016-2017 at $52,404,248.  However, LB 22 (2017), which included an emergency clause 
and was effective February 15, 2017, eliminated the carryforward of unexpended fiscal year 
2016 appropriation balances by $155,370 and reduced the fiscal year 2017 appropriation 4.0% to 
$50,308,078.  State funding for the NSCS increased for the 2017-2019 biennium.  The Governor 
and Legislature approved State funding for 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 at $52,142,227, an 
increase of $1,834,149 or 3.6%. 
 
The Board of Trustees increased tuition rates for 2017-2018.  Tuition rates for 2017-2018 are 
$172 for undergraduate resident, $215 for graduate resident, $344 for undergraduate non-
resident, and $430 for graduate non-resident.  Online rates are $279 for undergraduate and 
$348.75 for graduate.  Tuition rates for 2016-2017 were $160 for undergraduate resident, $200 
for graduate resident, $320 for undergraduate non-resident, and $400 for graduate resident.  
Online rates were $260 for undergraduate and $325 for graduate. 
 
In accordance with the NSCS Bargaining Unit agreements for 2017-2019, each unit member of 
professional staff will receive a 1.5% increase in both the 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 fiscal years.  
Faculty will receive a 1.5% increase for both the 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 fiscal years.  Support 
staff will also receive a 1.0% increase for both the 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 fiscal years, while 
maintaining longevity increases.   
 
In addition to receiving notification of an 8.0% premium increase in health insurance rates for 
2017-2018, the NSCS has been notified that there will be no additional increase in premium rates 
for the 2018-2019 year. 
 
Enrollment at the State Colleges (annual FTE) slightly declined for 2016-2017.  Fall enrollments 
are also expected to slightly decline for 2017-2018.  The NSCS continues to engage in an 
increased emphasis on enrollment management and marketing. 
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM – PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017 and 2016
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2016
2017 As Restated

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 34,094,591$          32,410,624$          
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 24,881,525            25,484,639            
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance 1,126,620              1,608,331              
Other Receivables 439,412                 616,694                 
Inventories 77,175                   83,257                   
Loans to Students, Net 222,437                 279,592                 
Prepaid Expenses 1,044,561              1,237,636              
Deposits with Vendors 5,415                     6,281                     

Total Current Assets 61,891,736            61,727,054            

Non-current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 27,985,823            24,949,225            
Restricted Investments 604,238                 605,121                 
Loans to Students, Net 898,169                 863,735                 
Prepaid Expenses 222,278                 36,369                   
Capital Assets, Net 220,659,478          204,168,107          

Total Non-current Assets 250,369,986          230,622,557          

Total Assets 312,261,722          292,349,611          

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Unamortized Bond Refunding Amount, Net 39,737                   43,515                   

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 39,737                   43,515                   

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 9,889,177              10,129,575            
Accrued Compensated Absences 353,052                 378,447                 
Unearned Revenue 817,655                 738,249                 
Interest Payable 1,046,262              838,831                 
Master Lease Payable 230,621                 227,574                 
Long-term Debt 4,399,151              4,928,334              
Deposits Held in Custody for Others 306,107                 241,783                 

Total Current Liabilities 17,042,025            17,482,793            

Non-current Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences 3,649,920              3,615,834              
Unearned Revenue 249,424                 605,668                 
Master Lease Payable 318,255                 548,876                 
Long-term Debt 78,872,112            62,637,779                                         

Total Non-current Liabilities 83,089,711            67,408,157            

Total Liabilities 100,131,736          84,890,950            

(Continued)
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM – PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017 and 2016
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2016
2017 As Restated

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unamortized Bond Refunding Amount, Net 34,355                   -                             

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 34,355                   -                             

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 162,506,457          159,203,331          
Restricted for:

Expendable:
Loans 1,280,398              1,760,064              
Debt service 2,959,120              3,538,638              
Plant 4,197,958              3,572,778              
Other 14,381,801            16,113,146            

Unrestricted 26,809,634            23,314,219            

Total Net Position 212,135,368$        207,502,176$        

(Concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

CHADRON STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)
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2017 2016

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unrestricted 1,070,890$            1,692,474$            
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 27,423                   28,350                   
Certificates of Deposit 755,809                 -                             
Investments 18,730,821            17,018,052            
Contributions Receivable, Net of Allowance for 

Uncollectible Pledges of $84,000 for 2017
and $62,000 for 2016 837,253                 561,940                 

Prepaid Expenses 6,750                     4,000                     
Other Assets 57,311                   43,507                   
Property and Equipment, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 39,808                   41,760                   

Total Assets 21,526,065$          19,390,083$          

Accounts Payable 4,872$                   4,849$                   
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 53,992                   134,693                 
Scholarships Payable 486,515                 698,019                 
Deferred Revenue 13,385                   16,041                   
Due to Other Agencies 25,183                   25,614                   

Total Liabilities 583,947                 879,216                 

Unrestricted Net Assets:
Operating Fund (196,756)                (201,055)                
CSC General Fund 556,962                 583,347                 
CSC Quasi Endowment 648,939                 554,720                 
Greatest Need 449,968                 172,767                 

Total Unrestricted Net Assets 1,459,113              1,109,779              

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Donor Designated 1,320,140              973,281                 
Named Endowment Activity 1,988,424              861,229                 

Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 3,308,564              1,834,510              

Permanently Restricted Net Assets:
Named Endowment 16,174,441            15,566,578            

Total Net Assets 20,942,118            18,510,867            

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 21,526,065$          19,390,083$          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2017 and 2016
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

PERU STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)
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2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 590,151$                   1,279,540$                
Unconditional promises to give 14,608                       15,904                       
Interest receivable 1,783                         3,326                         
Prepaid expenses 102,635                     2,635                         
Current portion of note receivable 23,334                       22,545                       

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 732,511                     1,323,950                  

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land 60,947                       60,947                       
Office furniture and fixtures 35,681                       35,681                       
Vehicles 23,650                       23,650                       

TOTAL PROPERTY AND EQUIMENT 120,278                     120,278                     
  Less accumulated depreciation 59,122                       57,958                       

NET PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 61,156                       62,320                       

OTHER ASSETS
Investments 11,776,794                11,967,806                
Real estate held for future college use 337,062                     337,062                     
Note receivable, less current portion 49,147                       72,481                       

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 12,163,003                12,377,349                
TOTAL ASSETS 12,956,670$              13,763,619$              

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 190,050$                   147,192$                   
Accrued compensation 96,869                       132,618                     
Refundable deposits 20,347                       29,353                       
Short term note payable 115,086                     140,802                     
Current portion of gift annuity -                                 -                                 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 422,352                     449,965                     

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted net assets:

Operating 2,901,713                  4,124,114                  
Board designated 1,114,164                  1,138,297                  
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 4,015,877                  5,262,411                  

Temporarily restricted 1,646,991                  1,328,662                  
Permanently restricted 6,871,450                  6,722,581                  

TOTAL NET ASSETS 12,534,318                13,313,654                
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 12,956,670$              13,763,619$              

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

December 31, 2016 and 2015

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

WAYNE STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)
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2017 2016
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents-unrestricted 178,278$             102,537$             
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 2,260,182            619,620               

Total cash & cash equivalents 2,438,460            722,157               
Accrued interest receivable 768                      1,198                   
Unconditional promises to give 1,259,944            1,096,491            
Prepaids & other receivables 5,100                   9,560                   
Investments 24,380,701          22,410,344          
Property 89,090                 189,445               
Cash value life insurance 79,856                 87,817                 
Assets restricted for annuity contracts

Annuity investments 911,635               909,022               
Assets held in perpetual trust

Perpetual trust investments 915,623               864,617               

TOTAL ASSETS 30,081,177$        26,290,651$        

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
Accounts & faculty grants payable 62,247$               66,444$               
Deferred (unearned) event revenue 2,600                   2,200                   
Annuities payable 336,581               370,904               

Total liabilities 401,428               439,548               

Net Assets:
Unrestricted:

Undesignated 2,796,147            2,565,492            
Endowment funds deficit -                           (5,010)                  
Designated 369,893               324,380               

Total unrestricted net assets 3,166,040            2,884,862            
Temporarily restricted 9,325,606            6,925,582            
Permanently restricted 17,188,103          16,040,659          

Total net assets 29,679,749          25,851,103          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 30,081,177$        26,290,651$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

June 30, 2017 and 2016
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM – PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

- 22 -

2016
2017 As Restated

Operating Revenues
Tuition and Fees Net of Scholarship Allowances and Institutional
  Waivers Totaling $11,351,727 in 2017 and $11,359,707 in 2016 30,618,960$           29,438,090$      
Federal Grants and Contracts 11,842,444             12,181,325        
State Grants and Contracts 2,096,011               2,036,501          
Private Grants and Contracts 1,217,839               962,338             
Auxiliary Enterprises Net of Scholarship Allowances and Institutional
  Waivers Totaling $4,179,177 in 2017 and $4,185,997 in 2016 17,395,090             18,888,599        
Other Operating Revenues 1,445,984               1,613,651          

Total Operating Revenues 64,616,328             65,120,504        

Operating Expenses
Compensation and Benefits 70,065,693             69,183,540        
Contractual Services 5,725,956               5,205,495          
Supplies, Materials, and Other 14,443,204             14,457,809        
Scholarships and Fellowships 4,450,191               4,507,440          
Depreciation 8,277,124               8,141,247          
Utilities 3,881,994               4,440,475          
Repairs and Maintenance 5,396,138               4,142,243          
Communications 454,920                  445,418             
Food Service 5,890,744               6,027,822          

Total Operating Expenses 118,585,964           116,551,489      

Operating Loss (53,969,636)           (51,430,985)       

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
State Appropriations 50,357,756             50,744,042        
Investment Income 1,362,963               1,201,233          
Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt (1,254,799)             (1,211,649)         
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Asset 20,733                    14,858               
Bond Issuance Costs (384,096)                (318,876)            
Other Non-operating Revenue (Expense) (14,221)                  (63,433)              

Net Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 50,088,336             50,366,175        

Loss Before Other Revenues, Expenses, or Gains (Losses) (3,881,300)             (1,064,810)         

Other Revenues (Expenses) or Gains (Losses)
Capital Facilities Fees 2,093,812               2,058,500          
Capital Contributions 1,855,690               2,364,254          
Capital Appropriations and Grants 4,564,990               4,139,354          

Net Other Revenues (Expenses) or Gains (Losses) 8,514,492               8,562,108          

Increase in Net Position 4,633,192               7,497,298          

Net Position, Beginning of Year 207,502,176           200,004,878      

Net Position, End of Year 212,135,368$         207,502,176$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

CHADRON STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)
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Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Revenues, Gains (Losses), and Other Support
Fundraising Income 325,260$         893,592$            -$                      1,218,852$         
Principle Contributions to Named Endowments -                       -                          586,150            586,150              
Management Fees 371,971           -                          -                        371,971              
State Income 194,998           -                          -                        194,998              
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 395,498           1,687,942           -                        2,083,440           
Realized Gain (Loss) on Investments (71,072)           (243,983)             -                        (315,055)            
Interest and Dividend Income 96,591             353,941              -                        450,532              
Event Income -                       61,683                -                        61,683                
Miscellaneous Income 5,621               6,336                  -                        11,957                

Total Revenues, Gains (Losses), and Other Support 1,318,867        2,759,511           586,150            4,664,528           

Transfer Between Net Assets -                       (21,713)               21,713              -                         
Net Assets Released From Restrictions 1,263,744        (1,263,744)          -                        -                         

Total Support and Reclassifications 2,582,611        1,474,054           607,863            4,664,528           

Expenses
Program Services 1,163,221$      -$                        -$                      1,163,221$         
General and Management 557,790           -                          -                        557,790              
Fundraising 512,266           -                          -                        512,266              

Total Expenses 2,233,277        -                          -                        2,233,277           

Increase(Decrease) in Net Assets 349,334           1,474,054           607,863            2,431,251           

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 1,109,779        1,834,510           15,566,578       18,510,867         

Net Assets, End of Year 1,459,113$      3,308,564$         16,174,441$     20,942,118$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

CHADRON STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)

- 24 -

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

REVENUES, GAINS (LOSSES), AND OTHER SUPPORT
Fundraising Income 403,052$         1,102,316$         -$                      1,505,368$         
Principle Contributions to Named Endowments -                       -                          337,265            337,265              
Management Fees 364,727           -                          -                        364,727              
State Income 216,351           -                          -                        216,351              
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments (248,690)         (1,150,854)          -                        (1,399,544)         
Realized Gain (Loss) on Investments (67,006)           (67,853)               -                        (134,859)            
Interest and Dividend Income 132,991           428,616              -                        561,607              
Event Income -                       47,216                -                        47,216                
Miscellaneous Income 3,255               7,009                  -                        10,264                

Total Revenues, Gains (Losses), and Other Support 804,680$         366,450$            337,265$          1,508,395$         

Transfer Between Net Assets -                       (4,507)                 4,507                -                         
Net Assets Released From Restrictions 1,539,068        (1,539,068)          -                        -                         

Total Support and Reclassifications 2,343,748$      (1,177,125)$        341,772$          1,508,395$         

EXPENSES
Program Services 1,662,941$      -$                        -$                      1,662,941$         
General and Management 539,134           -                          -                        539,134              
Fundraising 428,424           -                          -                        428,424              

Total Expenses 2,630,499$      -$                        -$                      2,630,499$         

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS (286,751)$       (1,177,125)$        341,772$          (1,122,104)$       

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,396,530        3,011,635           15,224,806       19,632,971         

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 1,109,779$      1,834,510$         15,566,578$     18,510,867$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

PERU STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)

- 25 -

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions 441,648$          349,533$          131,425$          922,606$             
Special Events 5,753                19,216              345                   25,314                 
Interest and dividends 287,916            -                       5,761                293,677               
Realized gain on sale of investments 372,987            -                       -                       372,987               
Unrealized loss on investments 213,499            -                       11,338              224,837               
Miscellaneous income 4,720                -                       -                       4,720                   

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT
AND REVENUE 1,326,523         368,749            148,869            1,844,141            

EXPENSES
Program expenses 1,894,842         -                       -                       1,894,842            
Management expenses 270,281            -                       -                       270,281               
Fundraising expenses 458,354            -                       -                       458,354               

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,623,477         -                       -                       2,623,477            

Net assets released from restrictions 50,420              (50,420)            -                       -                           

(1,246,534)       318,329            148,869            (779,336)              

NET ASSETS, beginning of year 5,262,411         1,328,662         6,722,581         13,313,654          
NET ASSETS, end of year 4,015,877$       1,646,991$       6,871,450$       12,534,318$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
STATEMENT OF INCOME
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

PERU STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)

- 26 -

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions 1,510,077$       136,656$          323,120$          1,969,853$          
Special events 5,449                27,720              -                       33,169                 
Interest and Dividends 306,670            -                       10,127              316,797               
Realized gain on sale of investments 310,579            -                       -                       310,579               
Unrealized loss on investments (739,801)          -                       (14,508)            (754,309)              
Miscellaneous income 4,705                510                   1,150                6,365                   

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT
   AND REVENUE 1,397,679         164,886            319,889            1,882,454            

EXPENSES
Program expenses 1,789,527         -                       -                       1,789,527            
Management expenses 265,341            -                       -                       265,341               
Fundraising expenses 446,484            -                       -                       446,484               

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,501,352         -                       -                       2,501,352            

Net assets released from restrictions 85,475              (82,437)            (3,038)              -                           

(1,018,198)       82,449              316,851            (618,898)              

NET ASSETS, beginning of year 6,280,609         1,246,213         6,405,730         13,932,552          
NET ASSETS, end of year 5,262,411$       1,328,662$       6,722,581$       13,313,654$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

WAYNE STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)

- 27 -

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Revenue and Other Support:
Gift/Contributions income 507,824$            4,514,537$         1,062,405$         6,084,766$         
Interest and dividends 70,892                257,782              6,659                  335,333              
Net gain (loss) on investments 320,695              2,287,354           111,751              2,719,800           
Other non gift income 14,105                130,993              3,286                  148,384              

Total revenue and other support 913,516              7,190,666           1,184,101           9,288,283           

Assets released from restrictions/transfers 4,604,523           (4,638,195)          33,672                -                          

Expenses:
General and administrative 242,802              -                          -                          242,802              
Fundraising 302,972              -                          -                          302,972              
Program expenses 4,829,207           -                          -                          4,829,207           

Total expenses before amortization 5,374,981           -                          -                          5,374,981           
Amortization of annuity contracts 14,327                -                          70,329                84,656                

Total expenses 5,389,308           -                          70,329                5,459,637           

Administrative support fee 152,447              (152,447)             -                          -                          

Net increase in net assets 281,178              2,400,024           1,147,444           3,828,646           

Net assets, beginning of year 2,884,862           6,925,582           16,040,659         25,851,103         

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 3,166,040$         9,325,606$         17,188,103$       29,679,749$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

WAYNE STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)

- 28 -

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Revenue and Other Support:
Gift/Contributions income 533,773$          2,710,574$       2,050,596$        5,294,943$        
Interest and dividends 71,356              281,704            8,951                 362,011             
Net gain (loss) on investments (60,737)            (359,854)          (65,345)             (485,936)           
Other non gift income 38,922              184,739            3,232                 226,893             

Total revenue and other support 583,314            2,817,163         1,997,434          5,397,911          

Assets released from restrictions/transfers 3,372,508         (3,396,978)       24,470               -                        

Expenses:
General and administrative 242,542            -                       -                        242,542             
Fundraising 355,719            -                       -                        355,719             
Program expenses 3,480,245         -                       -                        3,480,245          

Total Expenses Before Amortization 4,078,506         -                       -                        4,078,506          
Amortization of annuity contracts 12,251              -                       70,385               82,636               

Total Expenses 4,090,757         -                       70,385               4,161,142          

Administrative support fee 135,019            (135,019)          -                        -                        

Net increase in net assets 84                     (714,834)          1,951,519          1,236,769          

Net assets, beginning of year 2,884,778         7,640,416         14,089,140        24,614,334        

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 2,884,862$       6,925,582$       16,040,659$      25,851,103$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM – PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

- 29 -

2016
2017 As Restated

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Tuition and Fees 30,838,026$          29,371,946$          
Grants and Contracts 15,234,923            15,056,175            
Payments to Suppliers (31,224,777)           (30,364,958)           
Payments for Utilities (4,051,071)             (4,198,534)             
Payments to Employees (71,249,196)           (68,666,478)           
Loans Issued to Students (148,672)                (243,565)                
Collections of Loans to Students 203,550                 691,413                 
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises 17,327,505            18,479,382            
Other Payments (2,946,839)             (2,957,002)             

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (46,016,551)           (42,831,621)           

Cash Flows From Non-capital Financing Activities
State Appropriations 50,357,756            50,744,042            
Receipt of Flex Contributions 289,575                 307,685                 
Payment of Flex Contributions (292,834)                (308,742)                
Direct Lending Receipts 31,427,557            31,163,936            
Direct Lending Payments (31,427,557)           (31,163,936)           
Other Receipts (Payments) (77,226)                  (191,816)                

Net Cash Provided by Non-capital Financing Activities 50,277,271            50,551,169            

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from Capital Debt 32,067,551            24,083,796            
Capital Contributions 1,855,690              2,364,254              
Purchase of Capital Assets (23,293,579)           (14,049,407)           
Disposal of Capital Assets 20,622                   3,632                     
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (16,309,410)           (8,922,621)             
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (2,483,583)             (1,773,568)             
Bond Issuance Costs (44,103)                  (318,876)                
Capital Facilities Fees 2,084,928              2,058,473              
Other 32,402                   (9,980)                    
Capital Appropriations 4,564,990              4,139,354              

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
  and Related Financing Activities (1,504,492)             7,575,057              

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase/Sale of Investments -                             (605,000)                
Investment Income 1,361,223              1,176,547              

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,361,223              571,547                 

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,117,451              15,866,152            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 82,844,488            66,978,336            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 86,961,939$          82,844,488$          

(Continued)
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM – PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

- 30 -

2016
2017 As Restated

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
  to the Statement of Net Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents 34,094,591$          32,410,624$          
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - Current 24,881,525            25,484,639            
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - Non-current 27,985,823            24,949,225            

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 86,961,939$          82,844,488$          

Reconciliation of Net Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used in Operating Activities

Operating Loss (53,969,636)$         (51,430,985)$         
Depreciation Expense 8,277,124              8,141,247              
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Receivables, Net 650,883                 (425,120)                
Inventories 6,082                     7,422                     
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (831,860)                376,235                 
Accrued Compensated Absences 8,691                     297,286                 
Other Assets and Liabilities (157,835)                202,294                 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (46,016,551)$         (42,831,621)$         

Supplemental Cash Flows Information

Accounts Payable Incurred for Capital Asset Purchases 2,544,777$            1,955,054$            

(Concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

CHADRON STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)

- 31 -

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 2,431,251$                 (1,122,104)$                
Adjustments to Reconcile Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

To Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Depreciation 1,952                          1,925                          
Change in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts          22,000                        24,913                        
Unrealized Loss (Gain) on Investments (2,083,440)                  1,399,544                   
Realized Loss (Gain) on Investments 315,055                      134,859                      
Reinvested Earnings on Investments (402,460)                     (520,702)                     
Change in Estate Bequests -                                  261,839                      
Change in Beneficial Interest in Annuity 2,656                          3,621                          
Proceeds from Contributions Restricted for
   Investment in Named Endowments (586,150)                     (337,265)                     
(Increase) Decrease In:

Contributions Receivable (297,313)                     (100,488)                     
Prepaid Assets  (2,750)                         -                                  

Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts Payable 23                               (19,711)                       
Accrued Salaries and Benefits (80,701)                       43,409                        
Scholarships Payable (211,504)                     64,007                        
Deferred Revenue (2,656)                         (3,621)                         
Due to Other Agencies (431)                            (14,718)                       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (894,468)                     (184,492)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) Decrease in Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance (16,460)                       (866)                            
Contributions to investment account (36,924)                       -                                  
Distributions from investment account 495,000                      479,445                      
Purchases of Certificates of Deposit (755,809)                     -                                  
Purchase of Property -                                  (832)                            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (314,193)                     477,747                      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Contributions Restricted for
   Investment in Named Endowments 586,150                      337,265                      

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 586,150                      337,265                      

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (622,511)                     630,520                      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,720,824                   1,090,304                   

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 1,098,313$                 1,720,824$                 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unrestricted 1,070,890                   1,692,474                   
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 27,423                        28,350                        

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,098,313$                 1,720,824$                 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

PERU STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)

- 32 -

2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net changes to net assets (779,336)$               (618,898)$               
Adjustments to reconcile net changes to net assets

to net cash provided/(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,164                      3,448                      
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (224,837)                 754,309                  
Realized gain on investments (372,987)                 (310,579)                 
Gift of Property -                              (45,000)                   
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Unconditional promises to give 1,296                      (820)                        
Interest receivable 1,543                      763                         
Prepaid expenses (100,000)                 100,455                  

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 42,858                    125,729                  
Accrued compensation (35,749)                   4,326                      
Accrued expenses -                              (1,142)                     
Refundable deposits (9,006)                     490                         

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,475,054)              13,081                    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Real estate purchase -                              (53,302)                   
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,779,687               2,822,840               
Purchase of investments (990,851)                 (1,664,473)              
Gift annuity -                              (783)                        
Payments received on notes receivable 22,545                    21,783                    

CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 811,381                  1,126,065               

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long term debt (25,716)                   (24,993)                   

CASH USED FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES (25,716)                   (24,993)                   

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (689,389)                 1,114,153               

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 1,279,540               165,387                  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 590,151$                1,279,540$             

CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR:
INTEREST 5,117$                    5,840$                    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

WAYNE STATE FOUNDATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM)

- 33 -

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets 3,828,646$          1,236,769$          
Adjustments to reconcile change in net

assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 4,905                   9,729                   
Amortization of annuity obligations 84,656                 82,636                 
Non cash contributions (329,139)             (133,877)             
Net loss (gain) on investments & (reinvested income) (2,719,800)          485,936               
Net loss (gain) on exchange/sale of assets 95,450                 (51,793)               
(Increase) decrease in operating non-cash assets:

Accrued interest receivable, prepaids & other receivables 4,890                   1,037                   
Unconditional promises to give (163,453)             457,603               
Cash value life insurance 7,961                   14,208                 

Increase (decrease) in operating non-cash liabilities:
Accounts & faculty grants payable (3,797)                 (63,000)               
Net cash provided by operating activities 810,319               2,039,248            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of assets -                          127,136               
Net sales (purchases) of investments 1,024,964            (1,820,330)          

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,024,964            (1,693,194)          

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on annuity contracts (118,980)             (117,636)             

Net cash (used) by financing activities (118,980)             (117,636)             

NET CHANGE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,716,303            228,418               

Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of year 722,157               493,739               

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 2,438,460$          722,157$             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

- 34 - 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Organization 
 

The Nebraska State College System (NSCS) is a governmental institution established 
under and governed by the laws of the State of Nebraska.  The NSCS operates under the 
jurisdiction of the Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State Colleges.  The NSCS includes 
Chadron State College (CSC), Peru State College (PSC), Wayne State College (WSC), 
the NSCS Office, and the Nebraska State Colleges Facilities Corporation (a blended 
component unit).  The NSCS is a component unit of the State of Nebraska (State) because 
it is financially accountable to the State.  The financial statements include all funds of the 
NSCS.  The major accounting principles and practices followed by the NSCS and its 
separately reported foundation component units are presented below to assist the reader 
in evaluating the financial statements and accompanying notes. 
 

Reporting Entity 
 

The NSCS has considered all potential component units for which it is financially 
accountable and other organizations that are fiscally dependent on the NSCS, or the 
significance of their relationship with the NSCS is such that exclusion would be 
misleading or incomplete.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has 
set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability.  These criteria 
include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the 
ability of the NSCS to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens 
on, the NSCS. 
 

As required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), these financial 
statements present the NSCS and its component units.  The component units are included 
in the NSCS reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial 
relationships with the NSCS. 
 

Blended Component Unit 
 

The Nebraska State Colleges Facilities Corporation (Corporation) is a nonprofit 
corporation incorporated in 1983 to finance the repair or construction of buildings or the 
acquisition of equipment for use by the NSCS.  This component unit is included in the 
NSCS’s reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial 
relationships with the NSCS.  This component unit is an entity that is legally separate 
from the NSCS, but is so intertwined with the NSCS that it is, in substance, the same as 
the NSCS.  Debt of the Corporation is expected to be repaid entirely with resources from 
either the NSCS or the State.  Management of the NSCS also has operational 
responsibility for the activities of the Corporation.  The Corporation’s balances and 
transactions are blended into the accompanying financial statements and reported in a 
manner similar to the balances and transactions of the NSCS itself.  The separately issued 
audit report for the Corporation can be obtained by contacting the Nebraska State College 
System at 1327 H Street, Suite 200, Lincoln, Nebraska, 68508-3751.  
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

- 35 - 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Condensed statements showing NSCS and Corporation balances and transactions are as 
follows for fiscal year ended June 30, 2017: 

 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

 
 NSCS Corporation 2017 Total 

Current Assets $ 60,135,000 $ 1,756,736 $ 61,891,736 
Non-current Assets    
  Capital Assets, Net  220,659,478  -  220,659,478 
  Other Non-current Assets  8,599,259  21,111,249  29,710,508 

    Total Assets  289,393,737  22,867,985  312,261,722 
    
Deferred Outflow of Resources  39,737  -  39,737 
    
Current Liabilities  13,473,280  3,568,745  17,042,025 
Non-current Liabilities  46,637,360  36,452,351  83,089,711 
    Total Liabilities  60,110,640  40,021,096  100,131,736 
    
Deferred Inflow of Resources  -  34,355  34,355 
    
Net Position    
  Net Investment in Capital Assets  180,904,423 (18,397,966)  162,506,457 

  Restricted  21,608,777  1,210,500  22,819,277 
  Unrestricted  26,809,634  -  26,809,634 

    Total Net Position $ 229,322,834 $     (17,187,466) $ 212,135,368 
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

- 36 - 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Condensed Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

   NSCS 
 

Corporation  2017 Total 
Operating Revenues      
     Tuition and Fees, Net $ 30,618,960  $ -  $ 30,618,960 

 
    Federal and State Grants and        
       Contracts  13,938,455 

 
 -   13,938,455 

     Private Grants and Contracts  1,217,839   -   1,217,839 
     Auxiliary Enterprises, Net  17,395,090   -   17,395,090 
     Other Operating Revenues  1,445,984   -   1,445,984 
        
          Total Operating Revenues  64,616,328   -   64,616,328 
        
Operating Expenses        
    Depreciation  8,277,124   -   8,277,124 
    Other Operating Expenses  110,308,840   -   110,308,840 
      
        Total Operating Expenses  118,585,964   -   118,585,964 
        
Operating Loss  (53,969,636)   -   (53,969,636) 
        Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)      
     State Appropriations  50,357,756   -   50,357,756 
     Investment Income  1,342,614   20,349    1,362,963 
     Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt  (872,381)   (382,418)   (1,254,799) 
     Gain on Disposal of Asset  20,733   -   20,733 
     Bond Issuance Costs  (44,103)   (339,993)   (384,096) 
     Other Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)  2,057   (16,278)   (14,221) 
        
          Net Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)  50,806,676    (718,340)   50,088,336 
        
   
    
Loss Before Other Revenues,     
   Expenses, Or Gains (Losses)  (3,162,960)   (718,340)              (3,881,300) 

        Other Revenues (Expenses) or Gains 
(Losses) 

   
  

   Capital Appropriations and Grants  3,439,990   1,125,000   4,564,990 
 Capital Contributions  1,855,690   -   1,855,690 
 Operating Transfers In (Out)  (704,863)   704,863   - 
   Capital Facilities Fee   2,093,812    -   2,093,812 
          Net Other Revenues (Expenses)  
             Or Gains (Losses)  6,684,629  

 
 1,829,863   8,514,492  

        
Increase in Net Position  3,521,669    1,111,523   4,633,192 

Net Position, Beginning of Year  225,801,165            (18,298,989)   207,502,176 
        Net Position, End of Year $ 229,322,834  $        (17,187,466)  $ 212,135,368 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

- 37 - 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 
 

   NSCS 
 

Corporation  2017 Total 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities $ (46,016,551)  $ -  $ (46,016,551) 
        
Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing   
   Activities  50,277,271 

 
 -   50,277,271 

        
Cash Flows from Capital and Related  
   Financing Activities  (19,575,531) 

 
 18,071,039   (1,504,492) 

        
Cash Flows from Investing Activities  1,348,295   12,928   1,361,223 
        
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash  
   Equivalents  (13,966,516) 

 
 18,083,967    4,117,451 

        
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning  
   of Year  78,180,062 

 
 4,664,426   82,844,488 

        
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of  
   Year 

 
$ 64,213,546 

 
$ 22,748,393  $ 86,961,939 
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(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

- 38 - 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Condensed statements showing NSCS and Corporation balances and transactions are as 
follows for fiscal year ended June 30, 2016: 

 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

 
 NSCS 

As Restated 
 

Corporation 
2016 Total 

As Restated  
Current Assets $ 59,354,578 $ 2,372,476 $ 61,727,054 
Non-current Assets    
  Capital Assets, Net 204,168,107  -  204,168,107 
  Other Non-current Assets  24,121,853  2,332,597  26,454,450 

    Total Assets  287,644,538  4,705,073  292,349,611 

    
Deferred Outflow of Resources  43,515  -  43,515 
    
Current Liabilities  12,895,850  4,586,943  17,482,793 

Non-current Liabilities  48,991,038  18,417,119  67,408,157 
    Total Liabilities  61,886,888  23,004,062  84,890,950 
    
Net Position    
  Net Investment in Capital Assets  179,639,848  (20,436,517)  159,203,331 

  Restricted  22,847,098  2,137,528  24,984,626 

  Unrestricted  23,314,219  -  23,314,219 

    Total Net Position $ 225,801,165 $     (18,298,989) $ 207,502,176 
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- 39 - 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Condensed Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 

   
NSCS 

As Restated 
 

Corporation  
2016 Total 

As Restated 
Operating Revenues      

     Tuition and Fees, Net $ 29,438,090  $ -  $ 29,438,090 

 
    Federal and State Grants and        
       Contracts  14,217,826 

 
 -   14,217,826 

     Private Grants and Contracts  962,338   -   962,338 
     Auxiliary Enterprises, Net  18,888,599   -   18,888,599 
     Other Operating Revenues  1,613,651   -   1,613,651 
        
          Total Operating Revenues  65,120,504   -   65,120,504 
        
Operating Expenses        
    Depreciation  8,141,247   -   8,141,247 
    Other Operating Expenses  108,410,242   -   108,410,242 
      
        Total Operating Expenses  116,551,489   -   116,551,489 
        
Operating Loss  (51,430,985)   -   (51,430,985) 
        Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)      
     State Appropriations  50,744,042    -    50,744,042 
     Investment Income  1,200,493   740    1,201,233 
     Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt  (717,576)   (494,073)   (1,211,649) 
     Gain on Disposal of Asset  14,858   -   14,858 
     Bond Issuance Costs  (318,876)   -   (318,876) 
     Other Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)  (44,446)    (18,987)   (63,433) 
        
          Net Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)  50,878,495    (512,320)   50,366,175 
        
   
    
Loss Before Other Revenues,     
   Expenses, Or Gains (Losses)  (552,490)   (512,320)   (1,064,810) 

        Other Revenues (Expenses) or Gains 
(Losses) 

   
  

   Capital Appropriations and Grants  3,014,354   1,125,000   4,139,354 
 Capital Contributions  2,364,254   -   2,364,254 
 Operating Transfers In (Out)  2,084,096   (2,084,096)   - 
   Capital Facilities Fee   2,058,500    -   2,058,500 
          Net Other Revenues (Expenses)  
             Or Gains (Losses)  9,521,204  

 
(959,096)   8,562,108  

        
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position  8,968,714   (1,471,416)   7,497,298 
Net Position, Beginning of Year  216,832,451    (16,827,573)   200,004,878 
        
Net Position, End of Year $ 225,801,165  $ (18,298,989)  $ 207,502,176 
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

- 40 - 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 
 

   
NSCS 

As Restated 
 

Corporation  
2016 Total 

As Restated 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities $ (42,831,621)  $ -  $ (42,831,621) 
        
Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing   
   Activities  50,551,169 

 
 -   50,551,169 

        
Cash Flows from Capital and Related  
   Financing Activities  13,471,348 

 
 (5,896,291)   7,575,057 

        
Cash Flows from Investing Activities  570,929   618   571,547 
        
 Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash  
   Equivalents  21,761,825 

 
 (5,895,673)    15,866,152 

        
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning  
   of Year  56,418,237 

 
 10,560,099   66,978,336 

        
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of  
   Year 

 
$ 78,180,062 

 
$ 4,664,426  $ 82,844,488 

 
Discretely Presented Component Units 

 
In implementing GASB Statement No. 39, the NSCS determined Chadron State, Peru 
State, and Wayne State Foundations (Foundations) are legally separate, tax-exempt 
nonprofit foundations incorporated in the State of Nebraska.  The Foundations act 
primarily as fund-raising organizations to supplement the resources available to each 
Foundation’s respective College in support of its programs.  Although the Colleges do 
not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundations, the majority of 
resources or income the Foundations hold and invest is restricted to the activities of each 
Foundation’s respective College by its donors.  Because these restricted resources held by 
the Foundations can only be used by, or for the benefit of, their respective Colleges, the 
Foundations are considered component units of the NSCS and are discretely presented on 
separate pages in this report. 
 
The Foundations report under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards, 
including FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205, Presentation of 
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.  As such, certain revenue recognition 
criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition and 
presentation features.  No modifications have been made to the Foundations’ audited 
financial information as it is presented (see Note 12). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
During the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, Chadron State, Wayne State, and Peru 
State Foundations distributed $1,047,218, $4,475,833 and $1,217,802; and $1,168,531, 
$3,236,202, and $2,320,803, respectively, to their Colleges for both restricted and 
unrestricted purposes.  These distributions also included scholarships to students.  
Separate audit reports were issued by each foundation and can be obtained from their 
respective administrative offices or by contacting the Nebraska State College System at 
1327 H Street, Suite 200, Lincoln, Nebraska 68508-3751. 
 
Basis of Accounting and Presentation 

 
The NSCS statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, as prescribed by GASB.  GASB 
issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis – for State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 
35, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for 
Public Colleges and Universities.  The NSCS follows the “business-type” activities 
reporting format of GASB Statement No. 34.  This reporting format requires the 
following elements: 

 
• Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
• Basic Financial Statements: 

o Statement of Net Position 
o Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
o Statement of Cash Flows 

• Notes to Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements of the NSCS have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-like 
transactions are recognized when the exchange transaction takes place.  Revenues, 
expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources resulting from non-exchange activities are recognized when all 
applicable eligibility requirements are met.  Internal activity and balances are eliminated 
in preparation of the financial statements unless they relate to services provided and used 
internally.  Operating revenues and expenses include exchange transactions and program-
specific, government-mandated non-exchange transactions.  Government-mandated non-
exchange transactions that are not program-specific (such as State appropriations), 
investment income, and interest on capital asset-related debt are included in non-
operating revenues and expenses.  The NSCS first applies restricted net position when an 
expense or outlay is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net 
position are available. 
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

- 42 - 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Unrestricted Net Position – Net position not subject to stipulation, including designated 
departmental balances, encumbrances, and working capital funds. 
 
Restricted Net Position – Net position restricted by creditors, grantors, or contributors 
and includes grant and research funds, student loan programs, funds for plant 
construction, and debt service on bond obligations. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows and outflows of resources 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, 
and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, and other changes in net position during 
the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Reclassifications 
 
The non-current portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents, along with the net 
position of the NSCS, include reclassifications for the Corporation’s current restricted 
cash and cash equivalents of $19,664,900 and unrestricted net position deficit of 
$18,397,966 in 2017.  Reclassifications for 2016 included the Corporation’s current 
restricted cash and cash equivalents of $956,872 and unrestricted net position deficit of 
$20,436,517.  Although the Corporation issues debt to finance construction and 
renovation projects, the assets that are constructed and/or renovated using Corporation 
debt are owned by the NSCS.  In order to properly present the NSCS’s non-current 
restricted cash and cash equivalents and net investment in capital assets, a portion of the 
current restricted cash and cash equivalents and the unrestricted net position of the 
Corporation is reclassified when blended with the NSCS.  Additionally, when blended 
with the NSCS, $511,823 and $255,264 of interest expense related to Corporation debt is 
capitalized in 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
Certain other reclassifications have been made to the 2016 financial statements to 
conform to the 2017 financial presentation.  These reclassifications had no effect on 
change in net position. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The NSCS cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost.  Cash and cash equivalents held 
by the Nebraska State Treasurer are deposited on a pooled basis in a State fund.  Income 
earned by the pool is allocated to the NSCS based upon average daily balances.  From  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
time to time, the Nebraska State Investment Officer, as allowed by statute, participates in 
securities lending transactions, which makes use of amounts on deposit from the NSCS.  
Securities lending transactions cannot be specifically identified to amounts on deposit 
from the NSCS and, as such, are not included in the financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.   
 
The NSCS considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or 
less to be cash equivalents.  At June 30, 2017 and 2016, cash equivalents consisted 
primarily of money market accounts with brokers. 
 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist mainly of funds held by the trustee which are 
restricted by bond covenants.  Remaining restricted cash and cash equivalents are either 
restricted by outside sources or legislatively restricted for certain purposes. 

 
Income Tax Status 
 
As a State institution, the income of the NSCS is generally exempt from Federal and 
State income taxes under Section 115(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and provisions of 
State law.  However, the NSCS is subject to Federal income tax on any unrelated 
business taxable income. 
 
Investments and Investment Income 
 
NSCS investments, including those held by a trustee and restricted by bond covenants, 
are carried at fair value.  Fair value is determined using quoted market prices. 
 
Investment income consists of interest income and the net change for the year in the fair 
value of investments carried at fair value. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
The NSCS’s accounts receivable mainly consist of tuition and fee charges to students and 
charges for auxiliary enterprise services provided to students, faculty, and staff.  
Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts.  The allowance 
for uncollectible amounts was $1,444,551 and $1,416,439 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, and is identified by College as follows: 
 

 2017  2016 
CSC $ 846,310  $ 922,123 
PSC  393,583   301,183 
WSC  189,448   182,314 

NSCS Office  15,210   10,819 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 
 
The NSCS’s bond premiums and discounts on the revenue bond and Corporation bond 
issues are being amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.  Total 
amortization for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, was $476,529 and $272,081 for 
premiums and $12,276 and $10,392 for discounts, respectively, and it is identified by  
College as follows: 
 

 2017  2016 
CSC $ 7,555  $ 7,555 
PSC  5,062   3,178 
WSC  8,560   5,248 

NSCS Office   467,628   266,492 
 
Inventories 

 
The NSCS’s inventories, consisting mainly of expendable supplies, are stated at cost.  
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. 

 
Loans to Students 

 
The NSCS makes loans to students under the Federal Perkins Loan Program; also, small 
temporary loans are provided to students from the Foundations.  Such loans receivable 
are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts.  The allowance for uncollectible 
loans was $97,369 and $131,375 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is 
identified by College as follows: 
 

 2017  2016 
CSC $ -  $ 1,849 
WSC  97,369   129,526 

 
Capital Assets 

 
The NSCS’s capital assets are recorded at cost as of the date of acquisition, or acquisition 
value at the date of donation if acquired by gift.  The NSCS follows the capitalization 
policy set forth by the Board.  Generally, equipment that has a cost in excess of $5,000 at 
the date of acquisition and has an expected useful life of two or more years is capitalized.  
Also, all land, buildings, infrastructure, and construction in progress are capitalized if 
they are expected to meet the NSCS’s capitalization threshold as dictated by the 
capitalization policy.  Art objects, specimens, artifacts and collections, including library 
materials, are expensed so long as the items meet three conditions in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 34.  Depreciation/amortization is computed using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful life of each asset beginning with the month of purchase.  
The following estimated useful lives are being used by the NSCS: 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Buildings and improvements 25 – 50 years 
Infrastructure 10 – 30 years 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment  3 – 10 years 

 
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net position by the NSCS that is 
applicable to a future reporting period, and a deferred inflow of resources is an 
acquisition of net position by the NSCS that is applicable to a future reporting period.  
Both deferred inflows and outflows are reported in the Statements of Net Position but are 
not recognized in the financial statements as revenues and expenses until the period(s) to 
which they relate.  Deferred inflows and outflows of resources of the NSCS consist of 
unamortized bond refunding amounts.   
 
Compensated Absences 
 

The NSCS’s policies permit most employees to accumulate vacation benefits.  Staff earn 
12 to 25 days of vacation each year and may accrue vacation up to the maximums 
established in Board policy and/or in the respective bargaining agreements.  An 
employee’s accrued vacation is paid out to the employee upon termination.  Expense and 
the related liability are recognized as vacation benefits when earned, whether the 
employee is expected to realize the benefit as time off or cash.  In addition, professional 
and support staff receive a cash payment of one-fourth of accrued sick leave upon 
retirement from the NSCS.  Expense and the related liability for sick leave benefits are 
recognized when earned to the extent the employee is expected to realize the benefit in 
cash determined using the termination payment method.  Sick leave benefits expected to 
be realized as paid time off are recognized as an expense when the time off occurs. 
 
Unearned Revenue 

 
Unearned revenue represents unearned student tuition and fees, advances on grants and 
contract awards for which the NSCS has not met all of the applicable eligibility 
requirements, and longevity bonus revenues and investment (improvement) revenues 
from food service and/or vending contractors, which are being amortized over the life of 
the contracts. 
 
Classification of Revenues 

 
The NSCS has classified its revenues as either operating or non-operating revenues 
according to the following criteria. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Operating revenues – Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics 
of exchange transactions, such as (1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship 
allowances, (2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, and (3) interest on student 
loans. 

 
Non-operating revenues – Non-operating revenues include activities that have the 
characteristics of non-exchange transactions, such as gifts and contributions, and other 
revenue sources that are defined as non-operating revenues by GASB Statement No. 9, 
Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and 
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB Statement No. 
34, such as State appropriations and investment income. 

 
Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 
 
Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported 
net of scholarship allowances and institutional waiver allowances in the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  Such allowances are the difference 
between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the NSCS and the amount 
that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on the students’ behalf.   

 
Certain governmental grants, such as Pell grants, and other Federal, State, or non-
governmental programs, are recorded as operating revenues in the NSCS’s financial 
statements.  To the extent revenues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and 
fees and other student charges, the NSCS has recorded a scholarship allowance.   
 
The NSCS has elected to adopt, for calculation of scholarship allowances, an allocation 
methodology provided in the National Association of College and University Business 
Officers (NACUBO) industry guidance (student institutional waivers, which are also 
netted similar to scholarship allowances, continue to be based on actual contra-account 
financial activity).  The scholarship allowances and institutional waivers on tuition and 
fees and auxiliary enterprises for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, as calculated 
under the NACUBO method, were $11,351,727 and $4,179,177; and $11,359,707 and 
$4,185,997, respectively, and are identified by College as follows: 

 
 2017 2016 
  

Tuition and Fees 
Auxiliary 

Enterprises 
 

Tuition and Fees 
Auxiliary 

Enterprises 
CSC $ 3,987,648 $ 1,365,042 $ 4,199,337 $ 1,287,769 
PSC  2,857,093  1,005,928  2,626,112  904,400 
WSC  4,506,986  1,808,207  4,534,258  1,993,828 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Concluded) 
 
Restatement of Prior Year Net Position 
 
The prior year beginning net position was restated as a result of an overstatement of 
$244,801 in receivables and an understatement of $181,873 in prepaid expenses.  In 
addition to those amounts, the fiscal year 2016 ending net position was restated as a result 
of an overstatement of $196,618 in receivables and an understatement of $39,820 in 
prepaid expenses. 

 
2. Deposits, Investments, and Investment Return 
 

Deposits 
 
Per Board policy and State statute, all money received by the NSCS must be paid over to 
the State Treasurer, except that each College may retain in its possession a sum to make 
settlement and equitable adjustments with students so entitled, to make payments for day-
to-day operations calling for immediate payment, and to provide for contingencies.  All 
funds not paid over to the State Treasurer must be maintained in an interest-bearing 
account, such as a money market fund account.  The NSCS has no policy regarding 
custodial credit risk for deposits. 
 
All of the NSCS’s deposits are either insured or collateralized.  By State statute, the State 
Treasurer is required to ensure that all State funds are either insured by Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC), collateralized by securities held by the cognizant Federal 
Reserve Bank, or invested in U.S. government obligations.  The NSCS’s deposits with 
the State Treasurer are pooled with the funds of other State agencies and then, in 
accordance with statutory limitations, deposited in banks or invested as the State 
Treasurer may determine.  Interest on funds held by the State Treasurer is periodically 
disbursed to the participating agencies.  These funds are considered to be cash and cash 
equivalents, which are available for expenditures as needed.   
 
At June 30, 2017 and 2016, cash and cash equivalents of $54,549,091 and $60,370,628, 
respectively, on the Statements of Net Position represents the NSCS’s equity position in 
the State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Pool (STIP).  Additional information on the 
deposit and investment risk associated with the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool is 
included in the State of Nebraska’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  
An electronic version of this report is available by accessing the Nebraska Auditor of 
Public Accounts’ website (www.auditors.nebraska.gov) and clicking “APA Reports 
Issued.” 
 
Cash on hand at June 30, 2017 and 2016, was $6,750.  The carrying amount of the 
NSCS’s deposits not with the State Treasurer at June 30, 2017 and 2016, were 
$2,739,089 and $1,577,312, respectively, and the bank balances were $2,731,516 and 
$1,584,845, respectively.  Of the carrying amounts noted above, $128,228 and $143,624, 
respectively, were covered by FDIC or collateral held in the NSCS’s name.  The 
remaining carrying amounts were covered by collateral held in the trustee’s name. 
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2. Deposits, Investments, and Investment Return (Continued) 
 
Investments 

 
Management of the assets of the Corporation, the revenue bond program, and the Flex 
Spending program is delegated to the trustees appointed by the Corporation Board of 
Directors or the NSCS Board of Trustees.  All investments are held by the trustees and 
invested in accordance with the bond resolutions and Flex Spending custodial 
agreements.  The bond resolutions and Flex custodial agreements allow investment of 
bond proceeds and employee flexible spending accounts in various securities and 
obligations, including: U.S. government and U.S. agency obligations; bonds, notes or 
other obligations of the State or any political subdivision thereof; bank repurchase 
agreements; certificates of deposit or other securities or investments within the State 
investing guidelines. 
 
The NSCS’s investments consisted of money market mutual funds and debt securities.  
At June 30, 2017 and 2016, money market mutual funds totaling $29,667,009 and 
$20,889,798, respectively, were held by the trustees, and had weighted average maturities 
of 37-53 days and 23-37 days, respectively.  All money market mutual funds were 
reported as cash equivalents. 
 
At June 30, 2017, the NSCS had the following securities and maturities: 
 

    Maturities in Years 
  Fair Value  Less than 1  1-5  6-10 
Investment Type:         
    Debt Securities:         
       FNMA  $     604,238  $               -  $    604,238  $              - 

 
At June 30, 2016, the NSCS had the following securities and maturities: 
 

    Maturities in Years 
  Fair Value  Less than 1  1-5  6-10 
Investment Type:         
    Debt Securities:         
       FNMA  $     605,121  $               -  $     605,121  $              - 

 
All debt securities are classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy and are valued 
using prices quoted in active markets for those securities.   
 
Interest Rate Risk.  The NSCS does not have a formal investment policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising 
from increasing interest rates. 
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2. Deposits, Investments, and Investment Return (Concluded) 
 
Credit Risk.  The NSCS may legally invest in direct obligations of and other obligations 
guaranteed as to principal by the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies and instrumentalities 
and in bank repurchase agreements.  Two money market mutual funds are rated Aaa-mf 
by Moody’s and AAAm by S&P and the other is rated Aaa by Moody’s and AAAm by 
S&P.  The one investment in the Federal National Mortgage Association is rated AAA by 
Moody’s and AA+ by S&P. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk.  The NSCS places no limit on the amount that may be 
invested in any one issuer.  Of the NSCS’s investments, 97% and 86% were in U.S. 
Treasury Money Market Funds, 1% and 11% were in Government Money Market Funds, 
and 2% and 3% were in Federal National Mortgage Association Securities at June 30, 
2017 and 2016, respectively.  
 
Custodial Risk.  For an investment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of 
the counterparty, the NSCS will be able to recover the value of its investments that are in 
the possession of an outside party.  The NSCS does not have a formal policy for custodial 
credit risk.  All securities are held by the investment’s counterparty, not in the name of 
the NSCS. 
 
Summary of Carrying Values 

 
The carrying values of deposits and investments shown above are included in the 
Statements of Net Position, as follows: 
 

 2017  2016 
Carrying Value    
 Cash $ 6,750  $ 6,750 
 Deposits:    
  Bank Deposits 1,998,121  1,577,312 
  Certificates of Deposit 740,968  - 
  Short Term Investment Pool 54,549,091  60,370,628 
 Trustee Debt Securities 604,238  605,121 
 Trustee Money Market Mutual Funds 29,667,009  20,889,798 
  Total as of June 30 $ 87,566,177  $ 83,449,609 
      
Included in the Statements of Net Position    

 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 34,094,591  $ 32,410,624 
 Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 52,867,348  50,433,864 
 Restricted Investments 604,238  605,121 
  Total $ 87,566,177  $ 83,449,609 

4.1.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

eb
ra

sk
a 

S
ta

te
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
ys

te
m

 B
as

ic
 A

u
d

it
 R

ep
o

rt
 F

Y
17

  1
6 

 (
21

21
 :

 A
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 o
f 

B
as

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 f
o

r 
Y

ea
r 

E
n

d
ed



NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
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3. Capital Assets 
 

The NSCS capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was: 
 
Capital Assets 
 

 
Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Disposals  Transfers  

Ending 
Balance 

Land $ 1,102,993   $ 13,500  $               -  $                 -  $ 1,116,493 
Building and 

Improvements  229,506,488   -   (369,520)   19,526,691   248,663,659 
Infrastructure  30,246,475   -                   -   3,868,940   34,115,415 
Furniture, Fixtures, 

and Equipment  17,929,117   391,466   (298,364)   113,682   18,135,901 
Construction in 

Progress  26,035,368    24,483,223    (118,304)   (23,509,313)    26,890,974 
Total Capital Assets $ 304,820,441   $ 24,888,189   $ (786,188)   $                 -   $ 328,922,442 

 
Accumulated Depreciation 

 
Net Capital Assets by College 
 

        NSCS   
   CSC   PSC  WSC   Office   Total 

Land  $ 49,395  $ 17,761  $    1,049,337   $ -  $ 1,116,493 
Building and 

Improvements   49,666,904   42,603,593     77,400,402   -   169,670,899 
Infrastructure   4,140,522   5,217,532   8,454,230   -   17,812,284 
Furniture, Fixtures, 

and Equipment   1,362,585   483,676   938,194     2,384,373   5,168,828 
Construction in 

Progress    812,301    10,244,106   15,834,567    -    26,890,974 
Net Capital Assets   $ 56,031,707   $  58,566,668  $ 103,676,730   $ 2,384,373   $ 220,659,478 

 
 
 
 

  
Beginning 
Balance   Additions   Disposals 

 
Transfers   

Ending 
Balance 

Building and 
Improvements  $ (74,562,835)  $  (5,391,135)  $ 369,520 

 
$     591,690  $ (78,992,760) 

Infrastructure   (14,481,788)   (1,229,653)   -  (591,690)   (16,303,131) 
Furniture, Fixtures, 

and Equipment   (11,607,711)   (1,656,337)   296,975 
 

                   -   (12,967,073) 
Total Accumulated 

Depreciation   (100,652,334)     (8,277,125)    666,495 
 

                   -    (108,262,964) 

Net Capital Assets  $ 204,168,107   $ 16,611,064   $    (119,693)  
 

$                 -   $ 220,659,478 
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3. Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
The NSCS capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was: 
 
Capital Assets 
 

 
Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Disposals  Transfers  

Ending 
Balance 

Land $ 1,095,433   $ 7,560  $                  -  $ -  $ 1,102,993 
Building and 

Improvements  204,103,859   -                      -   25,402,629   229,506,488 
Infrastructure  30,026,433   3,000                      -   217,042   30,246,475 
Furniture, Fixtures, 

and Equipment  17,458,248   774,599   (303,730)                     -   17,929,117 
Construction in 

Progress  38,283,952    13,371,087                       -    (25,619,671)    26,035,368 
Total Capital Assets $ 290,967,925   $ 14,156,246   $ (303,730)   $                   -   $ 304,820,441 

 
Accumulated Depreciation 

 
Net Capital Assets by College 
 

   CSC   PSC  WSC   
NSCS 
Office   Total 

Land  $ 49,395  $ 17,761  $ 1,035,837   $ -  $ 1,102,993 
Building and 

Improvements   52,065,747   43,044,378   59,833,528   -   154,943,653 
Infrastructure   3,745,304   2,912,734   9,106,649   -   15,764,687 
Furniture, Fixtures, 

and Equipment   1,423,364   479,913   1,155,607   3,262,522   6,321,406 
Construction in 

Progress    140,000    3,656,602   22,238,766    -    26,035,368 
Net Capital Assets   $  57,423,810   $  50,111,388  $ 93,370,387   $ 3,262,522   $ 204,168,107 

 
 
 

  
Beginning 
Balance   Additions   Disposals 

 
Transfers   

Ending 
Balance 

Building and 
Improvements  $ (69,228,980)  $ (5,333,855)  $ - 

 
$ -  $ (74,562,835) 

Infrastructure   (13,256,840)  (1,224,948)   -   -   (14,481,788) 
Furniture, Fixtures, 

and Equipment   (10,319,194)  (1,582,444)   293,927 
 

 -   (11,607,711) 
Total Accumulated 

Depreciation   (92,805,014)    (8,141,247)    293,927 
 

 -    (100,652,334) 

Net Capital Assets  $ 198,162,911   $ 6,014,999   $ (9,803) 
 

$ -   $ 204,168,107 
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3. Capital Assets (Concluded) 
 

Interest expense capitalized, net of related interest income, was $885,084 and $535,618 
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  Total interest expense 
during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, was $2,139,885 and $1,737,494, 
respectively.  

 
4. Long-term Liabilities 
 

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the NSCS for the 
year ended June 30, 2017: 
 

 
Beginning 
Balance Additions Deductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Current 
Portion 

Loan Obligations 
Payable $ 72,481 $ - $ (23,334) $ 49,147 $ 24,151 

Master Lease Payable  776,450  -  (227,574)  548,876  230,621 
Revenue and Refunding 
    Bonds  45,590,000 

 
 2,865,000  (4,305,000)  44,150,000  1,740,000 

Corporation Bonds  20,610,000  26,655,000  (11,905,000)  35,360,000  2,635,000 
Total Long-term 

Debt  67,048,931  29,520,000  (16,460,908)  80,108,023  4,629,772 
Accrued Compensated 

Absences  3,994,281  352,991  (344,300)  4,002,972  353,052 
Unamortized Bond 

Premium  1,528,992  2,963,981  (557,651)  3,935,322  - 
Unamortized Bond 

Discount (235,360)  -  12,154 (223,206)  - 
Other Liabilities  920,225  12,160  (322,250)  610,135  360,711 
Total Other Long-term 

Liabilities  6,208,138  3,329,132  (1,212,047)  8,325,223  713,763 
Total Long-term 

Liabilities $ 73,257,069 $ 32,849,132 $ (17,672,955) $ 88,433,246 $ 5,343,535 
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4. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the NSCS for the 
year ended June 30, 2016: 
 

 
Beginning 
Balance Additions Deductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Current 
Portion 

Loan Obligations 
Payable $ 95,026 $ - $ (22,545) $ 72,481 $ 23,334 

Master Lease Payable  1,001,018  -  (224,568)  776,450  227,574 
Revenue and Refunding 
    Bonds  27,015,000 

 
 24,015,000  (5,440,000)  45,590,000  1,400,000 

Corporation Bonds  23,995,000  -  (3,385,000)  20,610,000  3,505,000 
Total Long-term 

Debt  52,106,044  24,015,000  (9,072,113)  67,048,931  5,155,908 
Accrued Compensated 

Absences  3,696,995  378,447 (81,161)  3,994,281  378,447 
Unamortized Bond 

Premium  1,614,840  186,232  (272,080)  1,528,992  - 
Unamortized Bond 

Discount  (128,317) (117,436) 10,393 (235,360)  - 
Other Liabilities  1,198,085  36,697  (314,557)  920,225  314,557 
Total Other Long-term 

Liabilities  6,381,603  483,940  (657,405)  6,208,138  693,004 
Total Long-term 

Liabilities $ 58,487,647 $ 24,498,940 $ (9,729,518) $ 73,257,069 $ 5,848,912 
 
Termination Benefits 
 
The NSCS has two programs for support staff in the Nebraska Association of Public 
Employees Local 61 of the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal 
Employees (NAPE/AFSCME) bargaining unit and support staff excluded from the 
NAPE/AFSCME bargaining unit, which must be accounted for under GASB Statement 
No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits, the Voluntary Retirement Settlement 
Program and the Early Retirement Incentive Program.   
 
Under the voluntary retirement settlement program, an eligible employee who is 55 years 
of age or more on July 1 of the year in which he or she chooses to retire, and has ten or 
more years of consecutive service within the NSCS, will be paid one-quarter of his or her 
final year base salary in 12 equal monthly installments following termination of 
employment.  In addition, employees will be permitted to remain in the group medical 
and dental insurance plan offered retirees by Blue Cross/Blue Shield at the time of the 
employee’s retirement.  The NSCS will pay the employee’s health/dental insurance (State 
and employee burden) costs for the 12-month period following termination of 
employment.  If the retired employee reaches the age of 65 at any time during the 12-
month period, at which time eligibility to participate in the Blue Cross/Blue Shield retiree 
plan ceases, the NSCS will pay an amount equivalent to the full cost of the 65 Gold Plus  
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4. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Medicare Supplemental Plan or the Retired BlueSenior Classic Plan offered by the 
Nebraska State Education Association (NSEA) for the payout period remaining.  Under 
the current bargaining agreement and Board policy, this plan was only available to those 
employees who retired on June 30, 2016.  Similar voluntary retirement settlement 
programs were also offered to support staff in the NAPE/AFSCME bargaining unit who 
retired on July 1, 2009, June 30, 2010, June 30, 2012, or June 30, 2014.   
 
Under the early retirement incentive program, eligible employees who have completed at 
least 10 years of continuous service within the NSCS and are 60 years of age or older will 
be paid premiums in the group medical and dental health insurance program offered 
retirees by Blue Cross/Blue Shield at the time of the eligible employees’ retirement.  The 
payment of premium will continue until the retired employees become eligible for 
coverage under the Federal Medicare program, at which time the paid premiums will 
cease. 

 
At June 30, 2017, four employees at CSC, one employee at PSC, and two employees at 
WSC were participating in the NSCS’s voluntary/early retirement programs.  As of 
June 30, 2016, eight employees at CSC, two employees at PSC, and four employees at 
WSC were participating.  Liability amounts associated with these retirements are shown 
below.  Liability amounts are reflected in the accrued compensated absences line item on 
the Statements of Net Position, and the long-term liability schedule above.  All 
termination benefits are shown at present cost. 
 

 2017  2016 
 Ending 

Balance 
 Current 

Portion 
 Ending 

Balance 
 
 

Current 
Portion 

CSC $ 55,504  $ 38,117  $ 117,818  $ 60,342 
PSC  50,212   16,737   60,308   15,983 
WSC  32,061   13,044   42,128   37,939 
     Total $ 137,777  $ 67,898  $ 220,254  $ 114,264 

 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2010 
 
In September 2010, the NSCS Board of Trustees authorized the issuance of $5,000,000 of 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2010.  The purpose of the issuance was 
to finance improvements to WSC’s Pile Hall.  Under the bond resolution for Student Fees 
and Facilities Bonds, revenues and earnings derived from operations of all revenue 
facilities and special student fees are pledged for payment of the principal and interest 
amounts of the bonds.  The bonds are not obligations of the State of Nebraska, and no tax 
funds may be appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The $5,000,000 in 
bonds bear interest at rates from 0.6% to 4.0%, with payments due from fiscal years 2012 
to 2031.  Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2016, could be redeemed, in part or in whole, 
on or after January 1, 2016. 
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4. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
On March 18, 2016, WSC’s outstanding Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 principal was 
called using proceeds from the issuance of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B. 
 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2011 
 
In November 2010, the NSCS Board of Trustees authorized the issuance of $3,600,000 of 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Bond Series 2011.  The purpose of the issuance was 
to finance improvements to PSC’s Morgan Hall.  Under the bond resolution for Student 
Fees and Facilities Bonds, revenues and earnings derived from operations of all revenue 
facilities and special student fees are pledged for payment of the principal amount of the 
bonds.  The bonds are not obligations of the State of Nebraska, and no tax funds may be 
appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The $3,600,000 in bonds bear interest 
at rates from 0.75% to 5.05%, with payments due from fiscal years 2012 to 2032.  Bonds 
maturing on or after July 1, 2017, could be redeemed, in part or in whole, on or after 
July 1, 2016. 
 
On December 19, 2016, PSC’s outstanding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 principal was 
called using proceeds from the issuance of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016C. 
 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2012 
 
In April 2012, the NSCS Board of Trustees authorized the issuance of $8,750,000 of 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2012.  The purpose of the 
issuance was to redeem in full the outstanding principal amount of the Student Fees and 
Facilities Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2002.  On July 1, 2012, the net proceeds 
from Series 2012 bonds were used to redeem the Series 2002 bonds.  This advanced 
refunding reduced total debt service payments over the remaining 15 years by 
$2,264,673.  Bond refunding resulted in an estimated economic gain of $1,515,352.  The 
difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt has 
been deferred and is amortized over the remaining life of the new debt, which is the same 
as the life of the refunded debt.  Under the bond resolution for Student Fees and Facilities 
Bonds, revenues and earnings derived from operations of all revenue facilities and special 
student fees are pledged for payment of the principal and interest amounts of the bonds.  
The bonds are not obligations of the State of Nebraska, and no tax funds may be 
appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The amounts for WSC and PSC’s 
portion of the bond obligations were $6,045,000 and $2,705,000, respectively, bearing 
interest at rates from 0.3% to 3.2%, with payments due from fiscal years 2013 to 2028.  
Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2018, can be redeemed, in part or in whole, on or after 
July 1, 2017. 
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4. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2013 
 
In September 2012, the NSCS Board of Trustees authorized the issuance of $7,735,000 of 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2013.  The purpose of the issuance was 
to finance the construction of CSC’s Eagle Ridge housing and maintenance to several 
revenue bond building roofs.  Under the bond resolution for Student Fees and Facilities 
Bonds, revenues and earnings derived from operations of all revenue facilities and special 
student fees are pledged for payment of the principal and interest amounts of the bonds.  
The bonds are not obligations of the State of Nebraska, and no tax funds may be 
appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The $7,735,000 in bonds bear interest 
at rates from 0.6% to 3.0%, with payments due from fiscal years 2014 to 2034.  Bonds 
maturing on or after July 1, 2018, can be redeemed, in part or in whole, on or after 
January 3, 2018. 
 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2014 
 
In April 2014, the NSCS Board of Trustees authorized the issuance of $4,270,000 of 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2014.  The purpose of the 
issuance was to redeem in full the outstanding principal amount of CSC’s Student Fees 
and Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2003A.  On June 5, 2014, the net proceeds from 
Series 2014 bonds were used to redeem the Series 2003A bonds.  This current refunding 
reduced total debt service payments over the remaining 14 years by $1,085,523.  Bond 
refunding resulted in an estimated economic gain of $654,661.  The difference between 
the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt has been deferred and 
is being amortized over the remaining life of the new debt, which is the same as the life 
of the refunded debt.  Under the bond resolution for Student Fees and Facilities Bonds, 
revenues and earnings derived from operations of all revenue facilities and special 
student fees are pledged for payment of the principal and interest amounts of the bonds.  
The bonds are not obligations of the State of Nebraska, and no tax funds may be 
appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The $4,270,000 in bonds bear interest 
at rates from 0.35% to 4.0%, with payments due from fiscal years 2015 to 2029.  Bonds 
maturing on or after July 1, 2020, can be redeemed, in part or in whole, on or after 
July 1, 2019. 
 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2015 
 
In November 2015, the Board authorized the issuance of $8,935,000 of Student Fees and 
Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2015.  The purpose of the issuance was to finance 
improvements to Peru State’s Delzell Hall.  Under the bond resolution for Student Fees 
and Facilities Bonds, revenues and earnings derived from operations of all revenue 
facilities and special student fees are pledged for payment of the principal and interest 
amounts of the bonds.  The bonds are not obligations of the State of Nebraska, and no tax  
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(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

- 57 - 

4. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
funds may be appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The $8,935,000 in 
bonds bear interest at rates from 1.1% to 3.75%, with payments due from fiscal years 
2017 to 2047.  Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2026, can be redeemed, in part or in 
whole, on or after July 1, 2025. 
 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2016 
 
In November 2015, the Board authorized the issuance of $11,270,000 of Student Fees 
and Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2016.  The purpose of the issuance was to finance 
improvements to Wayne State’s Bowen Hall.  Under the bond resolution for Student Fees 
and Facilities Bonds, revenues and earnings derived from operations of all revenue 
facilities and special student fees are pledged for payment of the principal and interest 
amounts of the bonds.  The bonds are not obligations of the State of Nebraska, and no tax 
funds may be appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The $11,270,000 in 
bonds bear interest at rates from 2.0% to 5.0%, with payments due from fiscal years 2017 
to 2047.  Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2026, can be redeemed, in part or in whole, 
on or after January 1, 2026. 
 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016B 
 
In January 2016, the Board authorized the issuance of $3,810,000 of Student Fees and 
Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016B.  The purpose of the issuance was to 
redeem in full the outstanding principal amount of the Student Fees and Facilities 
Revenue Bonds Series 2010.  On March 18, 2016, the net proceeds from Series 2016B 
bonds were used to redeem the Series 2010 bonds.  This current refunding reduced total 
debt service payments over the remaining 14 years by $611,743.  Bond refunding 
resulted in an estimated economic gain of $380,673.  The reacquisition price equaled the 
net carrying amount of the old debt and therefore no amount was required to be deferred 
and amortized.  Under the bond resolution for Student Fees and Facilities Bonds, 
revenues and earnings derived from operations of all revenue facilities and special 
student fees are pledged for payment of the principal and interest amounts of the bonds.  
The bonds are not obligations of the State of Nebraska, and no tax funds may be 
appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The $3,810,000 in bonds bear interest 
at rates from 0.65% to 2.8%, with payments due from fiscal years 2017 to 2031.  Bonds 
maturing on or after July 1, 2021, can be redeemed, in part or in whole, on or after 
March 18, 2021. 
 
Student Fees and Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016C 
 
In November 2016, the Board authorized the issuance of $2,865,000 of Student Fees and 
Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016C.  The purpose of the issuance was to 
redeem in full the outstanding principal amount of the Student Fees and Facilities 
Revenue Bonds Series 2011.  On December 19, 2016, the net proceeds from Series  
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4. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
2016C bonds were used to redeem the Series 2011 bonds.  This current refunding 
reduced total debt service payments over the remaining 14 years by $604,271.  Bond 
refunding resulted in an estimated economic gain of $407,674.  The reacquisition price 
equaled the net carrying amount of the old debt and therefore no amount was required to 
be deferred and amortized.  Under the bond resolution for Student Fees and Facilities 
Bonds, revenues and earnings derived from operations of all revenue facilities and special 
student fees are pledged for payment of the principal and interest amounts of the bonds.  
The bonds are not obligations of the State of Nebraska, and no tax funds may be 
appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The $2,865,000 in bonds bear interest 
at rates from 0.95% to 3.2%, with payments due from fiscal years 2018 to 2032.  Bonds 
maturing on or after July 1, 2022, can be redeemed, in part or in whole, on or after 
December 19, 2021. 
 
Corporation Bonds 
 
In August 2006, the Corporation authorized the issuance of $21,915,000 of Deferred 
Maintenance Bonds, Series 2006.  Proceeds were used to finance the construction of 
certain renewal and renovation projects at each of the three Colleges.  This bond issue is 
a general obligation of the Corporation, which is a separate legal entity that is not subject 
to State constitutional restrictions on the incurrence of debt, which may apply to the State 
itself.  The financial resources used to repay the bonds are appropriations and special 
student fees.  Payments of bond principal are also secured by an insurance policy issued 
by a commercial insurer.  The bonds bear interest at rates of 3.55% to 5.0% and are due 
in semiannual installments, which began January 15, 2007.  Principal maturities, due in 
annual installments, began July 15, 2007, and were scheduled to continue until 
July 15, 2020.  Bonds maturing on or after July 15, 2017, were callable at the option of 
the Corporation beginning July 15, 2016.  On September 19, 2016, the Corporation’s 
outstanding Deferred Maintenance Bonds, Series 2006 principal was called using 
proceeds from the issuance of Deferred Maintenance and Refunding Bonds, Series 2016. 

 
In November 2013, the Corporation authorized the issuance of $13,460,000 of Building 
Bonds, Series 2014.  Proceeds from the issuance of these bonds will be used to help build 
a portion of the CSC Rangeland Center and will be used to renovate WSC’s U.S. Conn 
Library.  This bond issue is a general obligation of the Corporation, which is a separate 
legal entity that is not subject to State constitutional restrictions on the incurrence of debt, 
which may apply to the State itself.  The financial resources used to repay the bonds are 
appropriations.  The bonds bear interest at rates of 2.0% to 5.0%, and are due in 
semiannual installments, which began June 15, 2014.  Principal maturities, due in annual 
installments, began June 15, 2015, and continue until June 15, 2021.  The bonds are not 
subject to redemption prior to maturity. 
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4. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
In June 2016, the Corporation authorized the issuance of $26,655,000 of Deferred 
Maintenance Refunding Bonds Series 2016, of which $19,295,000 was related to new 
bonds and $7,360,000 was related to refunding bonds.  The purpose of the issuance was 
to redeem in full the outstanding principal amount of the Deferred Maintenance Series 
2006 bonds and allow for the issuance of new bond proceeds to help fund the renovation 
of the stadium at CSC, the renovation of the Theatre/Event Center at PSC, and the 
construction of applied technology programmatic space at WSC. On September 19, 2016, 
the Series 2006 bonds were advance refunded.  This refunding of the Series 2006 bonds 
resulted in a reduction of total debt service payments by $854,784 and an estimated 
economic gain of $471,674.  The difference between the reacquisition price and the net 
carrying amount of the old debt has been deferred and is amortized over the remaining 
life of the old bonds.  This bond issue is a general obligation of the Corporation, which is 
a separate legal entity that is not subject to State constitutional restrictions on the 
incurrence of debt, which may apply to the State itself.  The financial resources used to 
repay the bonds are appropriations and special student fees.  The bonds bear interest, 
payable semiannually, at rates of 2.00% to 5.00%.  Principal maturities, due in annual 
installments, begin July 15, 2017, and continue until July 15, 2030.  Bonds maturing on 
or after July 15, 2027, are able to be redeemed, in part or in whole, on or after 
July 15, 2026. 
 
PSC Loan Obligation 
 
In May 2007, PSC received a loan from the Peru State College Foundation to finance the 
renovation of the Al Wheeler Activity Center.  The loan is a general obligation of PSC.  
The loan is not an obligation of the State of Nebraska, and no tax funds may be 
appropriated for payment of principal and interest.  The loan bears interest payable 
annually at the rate of 3.5% and is due in annual installments, which began May 1, 2008.  
Principal maturities began May 1, 2008, and continue until 2019. 
 
Master Lease Purchasing Program 
 
The State of Nebraska, through the Department of Administrative Services (DAS) – 
Accounting Division, has a Master Lease Purchasing Agreement to be used by various 
agencies to purchase equipment.  CSC used this financing arrangement to finance the 
acquisition of non-capitalized equipment in fiscal years 2014 and 2015.  One of CSC’s 
master lease obligations bear interest payable at a rate of 1.05% while the other master 
lease obligation bears interest payable at a rate of 1.45%.  PSC used this financing 
arrangement to finance the acquisition of capitalized equipment in fiscal year 2015.  
PSC’s master lease obligation bears interest payable at a rate of 1.32%.  CSC’s Master 
Leases expire in fiscal years 2019 and 2020 while PSC’s Master Lease expires in fiscal 
year 2019.  Assets capitalized under this program totaled $306,019 at June 30, 2017 and 
2016, and were net of accumulated depreciation of $68,854 in 2017 and $38,252 in 2016. 
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4. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Debt service requirements to maturity for all long-term debt of the NSCS are as follows: 
 

CSC Revenue and Refunding Bonds 
Year Ending 

June 30 
 

Principal 
 

Interest 
 

Total 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023-2027 
2028-2032 
2033-2034 

 $ 635,000 
  640,000 
  655,000 
  655,000 
  675,000 
  3,605,000 
  2,905,000 
  985,000 

$ 256,604 
  247,888 
  238,108 
  227,578 
  213,044 
  808,015 
  337,110 
  29,775 

$ 891,604 
  887,888 
  893,108 
  882,578 
  888,044 
  4,413,015 
  3,242,110 
  1,014,775 

Total $ 10,755,000 $ 2,358,122 $ 13,113,122 
 

CSC Master Lease Obligation Summary 
Year Ending 

June 30 
 

Principal 
 

Interest 
 

Total 
2018 
2019 
2020 

$ 153,532 
  144,213 

102,475  

$ 4,557 
  2,505 

745  

$ 158,089 
  146,718 

103,220 
Total $ 400,220 $ 7,807 $ 408,027 

 
PSC Loan Obligation Payable 

Year Ending 
June 30 

 
Principal 

 
Interest 

 
Total 

2018 
2019 

 $ 24,151 
  24,996 

$ 1,720 
  875 

$ 25,871 
  25,871 

Total $ 49,147 $ 2,595 $ 51,742 
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4. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 
 

PSC Revenue and Refunding Bonds 
Year Ending 

June 30 
 

Principal 
 

Interest 
 

Total 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023-2027 
2028-2032 
2033-2037 
2038-2042 
2043-2047 

$ 260,000 
  560,000 
  570,000 
  570,000 
  585,000 
  3,115,000 
  2,585,000 
  1,550,000 
  1,840,000 
  2,205,000  

 $ 391,202  
  384,565 
  377,430 
  369,111 
  359,488 
  1,604,039 
  1,210,381 
  888,363 
  586,265 
  212,719  

$ 651,202 
  944,565 
  947,430 
  939,111 
  944,488 
 4,719,039
 3,795,381 
  2,438,363 
  2,426,265 
  2,417,719 

Total $ 13,840,000 $ 6,383,563 $ 20,223,563 
 

PSC Master Lease Obligation Summary 
Year Ending 

June 30 
 

Principal 
 

Interest 
 

Total 
2018 
2019 

$ 77,089 
  71,567  

$ 1,501 
  474  

$ 78,590 
  72,041 

Total $ 148,656 $ 1,975 $ 150,631 
 

WSC Revenue and Refunding Bonds 
Year Ending 

June 30 
 

Principal 
 

Interest 
 

Total 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023-2027 
2028-2032 
2033-2037 
2038-2042 
2043-2047 

 $ 845,000 
  860,000 
  880,000 
  890,000 
  905,000 
  4,900,000 
  3,270,000 
  1,965,000 
  2,305,000 
  2,735,000 

$ 548,215 
 535,968 
 521,024 
 504,476 
  486,184 
  2,044,754 
  1,377,859 
  1,031,313  
  678,509 
 245,788 

$ 1,393,215 
 1,395,968 
 1,401,024 
 1,394,476 
 1,391,184 
 6,944,754 
 4,647,859 
 2,996,313 
 2,983,509 

 2,980,788 
Total $ 19,555,000 $ 7,974,090 $ 27,529,090 
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4. Long-term Liabilities (Concluded) 
 

Corporation Bonds 
Year Ending 

June 30 
 

Principal 
 

Interest 
 

Total 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023-2027 
2028-2031 

$ 2,635,000 
  3,215,000 
  3,325,000 
  4,800,000 
  1,790,000 
  10,020,000 
 9,575,000 

$ 1,349,318 
  1,240,568 
  1,122,168 
  976,843 
  728,968 
  2,606,490 
 532,639 

$ 3,984,318 
  4,455,568 
  4,447,168 
  5,776,843 
  2,518,968 
  12,626,490 
 10,107,639 

Total  $ 35,360,000 $ 8,556,994  $ 43,916,994 
 

NSCS Loan Obligation and Bond Summary 
Year Ending 

June 30 
 

Principal 
 

Interest 
 

Total 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023-2027 
2028-2032 
2033-2037 
2038-2042 
2043-2047 

$ 4,629,772 
  5,515,776 
  5,532,475 
  6,915,000 
  3,955,000 
  21,640,000 
  18,335,000 
  4,500,000 
  4,145,000 
  4,940,000  

$ 2,553,117 
  2,412,843 
  2,259,475 
  2,078,008 
  1,787,684 
  7,063,298 
  3,457,989 
  1,949,451 
  1,264,774 
  458,507  

$ 7,182,889 
  7,928,619 
  7,791,950 
  8,993,008 
  5,742,684 
  28,703,298 
  21,792,989 
  6,449,451 
  5,409,774  
  5,398,507 

Total $ 80,108,023 $ 25,285,146 $ 105,393,169 
 

The bond resolutions of the Corporation Bonds, and the Revenue and Refunding Bonds 
specify the funds that need to be established, the required transfers between funds, and 
the maximum maturity limits for the funds’ investments.  The bond resolutions also 
contain certain covenants, including compliance with a ratio of net revenues to debt 
service.  At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the NSCS was in compliance with these 
requirements. 

 
5. Operating Leases 
   

Noncancellable operating leases related primarily to office space and equipment expire in 
various fiscal years through 2022.  Renewal options for leases containing such provision 
ranged from one to five years.  These operating leases generally require the NSCS to pay 
all executory costs (property taxes, maintenance, operating, and insurance). 
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5. Operating Leases (Concluded) 
 

Future noncancellable operating lease payments as of June 30, 2017, were: 
 

2018 $ 306,360 
2019  193,826 
2020  90,392 
2021  38,900 
2022  3,197 
Total $ 632,675 

  
 The NSCS’s operating lease payments for the year ended June 30, 2017, and June 30, 

2016, were $883,761 and $862,359, respectively. 
 
6. Revenue Bond Program 
 

The Board, for the benefit of the Nebraska State Colleges, issues bonds to finance the 
construction, repair, and maintenance of revenue bond buildings owned and operated by 
the Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State College System.  The Revenue Bond 
Program (Program) provides funding for general operations as well as funding for various 
construction and renovation projects as specified by the individual bond documents.  The 
Program is designed to provide greater flexibility to finance revenue bond projects at the 
three Colleges.  The current revenue bond master resolution was approved in 2002 by the 
Board. 
 
Financial information for the Program for June 30, 2017 and 2016, is summarized as 
follows: 
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6. Revenue Bond Program (Continued) 
 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
 

 2017 2016 
Current Assets $ 17,602,050 $ 18,357,596 
Non-current Assets   
  Capital Assets  56,769,776  40,307,321 
  Other Non-current Assets  6,590,068  22,187,950 

    Total Assets  80,961,894  80,852,867 
   
Deferred Outflow of Resources  39,737  43,515 
   
Current Liabilities  5,949,450  4,088,253 
Non-current Liabilities  42,939,927  45,150,634 
    Total Liabilities  48,889,377  49,238,887 
   
Net Position   
  Net Investment in Capital Assets  18,000,511  16,114,191 
  Restricted   
    Expendable   
      Debt Service  1,768,620  1,401,110 
      By Enabling Legislation  12,343,123  14,142,194 

    Total Net Position $ 32,112,254 $ 31,657,495 

 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

 

   2017 
 
 2016 

     
Operating Revenues $ 19,746,361   $ 21,193,277 
Operating Expenses      
    Depreciation  1,606,390    1,630,316 
    Other   17,282,126    16,741,572 
     
        Total Operating Expenses  18,888,516    18,371,888 
       
Operating Income  857,845    2,821,389 
       Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)  (403,086)     (741,028) 
       
       
Increase in Net Position  454,759     2,080,361 
Net Position, Beginning of Year  31,657,495     29,577,134 
       
Net Position, End of Year $ 32,112,254   $ 31,657,495 
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6. Revenue Bond Program (Concluded) 
 

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 
 

   2017 
 
 2016 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities $ 2,665,925   $ 4,316,857 
       
Cash Flows from Capital and Related  
   Financing Activities  (19,264,288) 

 
  15,469,149 

       
Cash Flows from Investing Activities  518,033    (330,733) 
       
Increase in Cash and Cash  
   Equivalents  (16,080,330) 

 
  19,455,273 

       
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning  
   of Year  39,326,367 

 
  19,871,094 

       
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of  
   Year 

 
$ 23,246,037 

 
 $ 39,326,367 

 
7. Pension Plan 

The NSCS has a defined contribution retirement plan currently in effect, which was 
established by the Board of Trustees and may be amended by the Board in accordance 
with Neb. Rev. Stat. § 85-320 (Reissue 2014).  The Nebraska State College System 
Defined Contribution Retirement Plan covers all faculty, professional staff, and support 
staff, and provides investment options and annuity contracts administered by the 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association – College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA-
CREF).  The plan provides retirement and death benefits to plan members and their 
beneficiaries.  Benefit provisions are contained in the plan document and may be 
amended by action of the Board of Trustees.  Contribution rates for plan members and the 
NSCS for 2017 and 2016, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, were 4.5% to 
6.0% and 8%, respectively.  Contributions actually made for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2017 and 2016, by plan members and the NSCS were $2,712,323 and 
$3,616,423; and $2,663,638 and $3,553,022, respectively.  At June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
the plan had 780 and 778 contributing members, respectively. 

 
Membership in the plan was mandatory for all full-time faculty and staff who attained the 
age of thirty.  Voluntary membership is permitted for all full-time faculty and staff upon 
reaching the second anniversary of their employment and the attainment of age 25.  The 
plan benefits are fully vested at the date of contribution. 
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7. Pension Plan (Concluded) 
 

The NSCS also sponsors a supplemental retirement annuity (SRA) plan, Roth individual 
retirement account (403(b)), and 457 deferred compensation supplemental plan.  Plan 
members contributed $980,484 to the SRA, $116,402 to the Roth 403(b), and $92,496 to 
the 457 plan in 2017 while in 2016 plan members contributed $1,041,962 to the SRA, 
$89,350 to the Roth 403(b), and $65,392 to the 457 plan.  The NSCS does not contribute 
to these supplemental plans. 

 
8. Risk Management 
 

The NSCS is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and 
illnesses; and natural disasters.  Responsibility for the coordination of a risk and 
insurance management program for the NSCS is assigned to the Chancellor.  The 
responsibility for the development and implementation of the risk and insurance 
management program is assigned to each of the Colleges’ Presidents.  Mechanisms for 
identifying risks and for taking appropriate action to eliminate, abate, transfer, or retain 
these risks is also the responsibility of each College.  DAS – Risk Management Division 
is responsible for maintaining the self-insurance program for workers’ compensation 
along with the motor vehicle liability insurance. 
 
The NSCS has chosen to purchase insurance for: 
 

A. Health care and life insurance for eligible employees. 
 

B. General liability coverage (including employee benefits liability), with limits 
ranging from $1,000,000 per occurrence to $3,000,000 in aggregate. 
 

C. Educators legal liability, with a limit of $4,000,000 per each claim, $4,000,000 
annual aggregate, and a self-insured retention of $150,000. 
 

D. Real and personal property through the Midwestern Higher Education Compact’s 
(MHEC) property program on a blanket basis for losses up to $500,000,000, with 
the program funding a self-insurance pool of $1,000,000 per loss occurrence and a 
deductible of $50,000 for the NSCS.  Newly acquired properties are covered up to 
$100,000,000 for 90 days from the date the insured takes ownership of the 
property.  The perils of flood, earthquake, and acts of terrorism have various 
coverages and sublimits.  Details of these coverages are available from the NSCS. 

 
No settlements exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal 
years.  Health care insurance is funded through a combination of employee and NSCS 
contributions.  Workers’ compensation is funded in the Workers’ Compensation Internal 
Service Fund through assessments on each State agency based on total agency payroll  
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8. Risk Management (Concluded) 
 
and past experience.  Tort claims; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or 
omissions; and natural disasters would be funded through the State General Fund or by 
NSCS assessments, as directed by the Legislature, unless covered by purchased 
insurance.  No amounts for estimated claims have been reported in the NSCS’s financial 
statements. 
 

9. Commitments and Contingencies 
 

Construction Contracts 
 

The Board of Trustees has approximate remaining construction commitments of 
$11,405,000 and $21,980,000, as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  These 
projects will be funded through cash funds, LB 309 task force funds, Foundation gifts, 
bond proceeds, contingency maintenance funds, and capital improvement fees.  
Construction commitments are identified by College, as follows: 
 

 2017  2016 
CSC $ 582,000  $ 438,000 
PSC  5,751,000   9,084,000 
WSC  5,072,000   12,458,000 

 
Government Grants 

 
The NSCS is currently participating in numerous grants from various departments and 
agencies of the Federal and State governments.  The expenditures of grant proceeds must 
be for allowable and eligible purposes.  Single audits and audits by the granting 
department or agency may result in requests for reimbursement of unused grant proceeds 
or disallowed expenditures.  Upon notification of final approval by the grant department 
or agency, the grants are considered closed. 
 

10. Restricted Net Position 
 
Restricted net position reports resources that are owned by the NSCS, but their use or 
purpose is restricted.  Restricted net position reported on the Statements of Net Position is 
further classified into the following: 
 

Loans represent institutional loans and Federal program loan funds set aside to serve 
as revolving loan funds for students. 
 
Debt Service represents Corporation and revenue bond balances reserved for debt 
service payments. 
 
Plant represents funds reserved for capital improvements net of any related liabilities. 
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10. Restricted Net Position (Concluded) 
 
Other represents funds restricted through external constraints imposed by creditors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.   
 
Restricted net position of $16,792,517 and $18,049,443 in fiscal years 2017 and 
2016, respectively, was restricted due to enabling legislation. 
 

11. Joint Operation 
 

On September 14, 2006, WSC entered into an interlocal agreement with Northeast 
Community College (NECC) to build and operate College Center in South Sioux City 
(CCSSC), Nebraska, which offers classes from both NECC and WSC.  CCSSC began 
offering classes during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.  On September 6, 2016, WSC 
entered into a new interlocal agreement with NECC to continue to operate CCSSC.  
  
NECC administers the accounts payable related to joint operation and maintenance costs 
and provides WSC with quarterly reports and an invoice for WSC’s share of expenses 
accompanied by supporting documentation.  Both parties agree the expense allocation 
between the parties shall be split equally (50%-50%) for all expenses for the term of the 
Agreement.  CCSSC is governed by CCSSC’s Administrative Council, which is a four-
member voting board composed of two appointees from NECC and two appointees from 
WSC.  In addition to the voting members, the following individuals shall serve on the 
Council in an ex officio capacity: Facilities Manager and two institutional leaders (one 
appointed by each President).  The chairperson of the Council shall be selected on a 
rotating basis with a WSC representative in even-numbered years and a Northeast 
representative in odd-numbered years.  Ownership of land and facilities are shared 50%-
50% by NECC and WSC.  Either party can terminate the agreement with at least twelve 
(12) months prior notice, giving the other party right of first refusal on purchase of the 
exiting party’s interest in the building, contents, and land.  
 

12. Component Unit Disclosures – Foundations 
 

On the following pages are the notes taken from the audited financial statements, for the 
years ended as indicated below, of the Foundations: 
 

Foundation Years Ended Pages 

Chadron State June 30, 2017 and 2016 69 - 86 

Peru State December 31, 2016 and 2015 87 - 96 

Wayne State June 30, 2017 and 2016 97 - 110 

4.1.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

eb
ra

sk
a 

S
ta

te
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
ys

te
m

 B
as

ic
 A

u
d

it
 R

ep
o

rt
 F

Y
17

  1
6 

 (
21

21
 :

 A
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 o
f 

B
as

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 f
o

r 
Y

ea
r 

E
n

d
ed



NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 
CHADRON STATE FOUNDATION  
 

- 69 - 

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of Activities 
 
Chadron State Foundation (the Foundation) is a nonprofit organization incorporated in the 
State of Nebraska in 1963 to promote the education, scientific, and benevolent purposes of 
Chadron State College (the College).  The Foundation acts largely as a fund-raising 
organization; soliciting and receiving contributions and pledges on behalf of the College.  
Assets received by the Foundation are used to acquire equipment to be used by the College, 
to provide financial aid for college students, or to be otherwise expended for the betterment of 
the College. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets of the Foundation 
and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 
 

Unrestricted net assets – Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 
 
Temporarily restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may 
or will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or the passage of time.  When a 
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets 
and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from restrictions. 
 
Permanently restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they 
be maintained permanently by the Foundation.  Generally, the donors of these assets permit 
the Foundation to use all or part of the income earned on any related investments for general 
or specific purposes. 

 
Designation of Unrestricted Net Assets 
 
It is the policy of the Board of Directors of the Foundation to designate appropriate sums of 
unrestricted net assets to assure adequate reserves are accumulated to help fund specific future 
events and the general operations of the Foundation.  Accordingly, unrestricted net assets of the 
Foundation are classified and reported as follows: 
 

Operating – The portion of unrestricted net assets that is undesignated and available for the 
day-to-day operations, support, and management of the Foundation. 
 
CSC General Fund – Represents the annual accumulation of unrestricted gifts of $4,999 or 
less received by the Foundation.  These funds must first be used to address any operating 
deficits for the current fiscal year.  The remaining balance will be transferred to the 
beginning fund balance of the CSC Quasi Endowment in the following fiscal year. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

CSC Quasi Endowment – Represents unrestricted gifts designated by the Board of 
Directors that must adhere to the policies and procedures of Section IV of the Chadron State 
Foundation Endowment Policy & Guidelines. 
 

Greatest Need – Represents unrestricted gifts and pledges of $5,000 or more that will be 
allocated per recommendation of the Development Committee and approved by the Board 
of Directors.  Such recommendations will be based on the initiatives and priorities of the 
Foundation and, when appropriate, campaign leadership committee.  Such recommendations 
must be approved by the Board of Directors each quarter or per special meetings.  Upon 
approval by the Board of Directors, these gifts and pledges will be accounted for in the 
appropriate board designated fund.  The Board of Directors has allocated the entire fund 
balance to Capital Campaign Initiatives to be used as needed or necessary to complete the 
current capital projects. 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

For the purpose of the Statements of Financial Position and the Statements of Cash Flows, cash 
and cash equivalents consist of cash and other highly liquid resources, such as investments in 
certificates of deposit and money market funds, with an original maturity of three months or less 
when purchased.  Restricted cash and cash equivalents are limited to use as the Foundation acts 
as a custodian for clubs and organizations of Chadron State College as further discussed in Note 
7. 
 

Investments 
 

Investments are reported at fair value.  Fair value is the price that would be received if the 
Foundation was to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.  Investments are comprised of limited liability investment groups, which 
invest in debt and equity securities and are carried at fair value determined using the 
following valuation methods: 
 

• Securities traded on a national or regional securities exchange are valued at the last 
sales price if the security is traded on the valuation date. 
 

• Securities not listed on an exchange or securities in which there were no reported 
transactions are valued at the mean between the last current closing bid and asking 
prices. 
 

• Fixed-income securities are valued at prices obtained from pricing services when 
such prices are available, subject to review by the respective fund’s investment advisor. 
 

• Securities or other assets for which reliable recent market quotations are not readily 
available are valued at fair value as determined in good faith by the managing member of 
the investment advisors.  
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Security transactions are accounted for on the date the securities are purchased or sold.  Realized 
gains and losses are calculated using the specific identification method.  Dividend income is 
recognized on the ex-dividend date and interest income is recognized on an accrual basis. 
 
Contributions 
 
Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recorded as made.  All contributions 
are available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.  Conditional 
promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.  
However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same time period the contribution is received, the 
Foundation reports the support as unrestricted.  Gifts and contributions are recorded at fair value 
at the time of donation.  Unconditional promises to give due in the next year are recorded at 
their net realizable value.  Unconditional promises to give due in subsequent years are 
reported at the present value of their net realizable value, using risk-free interest rates 
applicable to the years in which promises are to be received. 
 
Contributed Materials and Services 
 
The Foundation records various types of in-kind contributions.  Contributed services are 
recognized at fair value if the services received (a) create or enhance long-lived assets or (b) 
require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would 
typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.  Contributions of tangible assets are 
recognized at fair value when received.  The amounts reflected in the accompanying financial 
statements as in-kind contributions are offset by like amounts included in expenses.  Total 
contributed materials and services recognized for the years ending June 30, 2017 and 2016, was 
$28,008 and $64,874, respectively. 
 
Property and Equipment 
 
The purchases of property and equipment are recorded at cost.  Donations of property and 
equipment are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.  Such donations are 
reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless the donor has restricted the donated assets 
to a specific purpose.  Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and 
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as 
restricted contributions.  The Foundation reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to 
unrestricted net assets each year for the amount of depreciation expense relating to the donated 
property and equipment. 
 
Property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets.  When items are disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated 
from the records of account, and a gain or loss is reported in the Statement of Activities.  Repairs 
and maintenance charges that do not increase the useful lives of the assets are charged to 
expense as incurred.  
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Capitalization thresholds (the dollar value above which individual asset acquisitions are added to 
the capital asset accounts) and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the financial 
statements are as follows: 
 

  
Capitalization 

Policy 
 Estimated 

Useful Life 
Land N/A   N/A 
Office Equipment $ 1,000   3 – 15 yrs 
Building and Improvements $ 1,000   39.5 – 50 yrs 

 
Collections 
 
Collection items acquired either through purchase or donation are not capitalized.  Purchases of 
collection items are recorded as decreases in unrestricted net assets if purchased with unrestricted 
assets and as decreases in temporarily restricted net assets if purchased with donor restricted 
assets.  Contributions of collection items are not recognized in the Statement of Activities.  
Proceeds from disposal are reflected on the Statement of Activities based on the absence or 
existence and nature of donor imposed restrictions. 
 
The Foundation has a collection of artwork and other memorabilia that was donated by 
several supporters of Chadron State College.  The collection is on display and is available to 
those who are interested in studying Nebraska state history.  The Foundation has taken steps to 
ensure that the collection is protected and preserved.  It is the policy of the Foundation that 
proceeds from the sale of any collection items are to be used to purchase additional collection 
items.  Contributions to the collection are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements 
since the Foundation does not capitalize collections. 
 
Income Tax Status  
 
The Foundation follows the accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes using the 
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ASC 740, Income Taxes.  Using 
that guidance, tax positions initially need to be recognized in the financial statements when it is 
more-likely-than not the positions will be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities.   
 
The Foundation is exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code.  The Foundation has also been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation 
within the meaning of Section 509(a)(1) and qualifies for deductible contributions under Section 
170(b)(1)(A)(vi).  The Foundation is not liable for income taxes if it operates within the confines 
of its exempt status, though the organization may be responsible for taxes on unrelated business 
activities.  In the event of an examination of the income tax returns, the tax liability of the 
Foundation could be changed if an adjustment in the exempt purpose or income from unrelated 
business activities is ultimately determined by the taxing authorities.   
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Concluded) 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the Foundation had no uncertain tax positions that qualify for either 
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.  The Foundation’s income tax filings are 
subject to audit by various tax authorities.  The Foundation is no longer subject to federal and 
state income tax examinations by taxing authorities for years before 2014.  Management 
continually evaluates expiring statutes of limitations, audits, proposed settlements, changes in tax 
law and new authoritative rulings.  The Foundation believes their estimates are appropriate based 
on current facts and circumstances.  Interest and penalties assessed by income taxing authorities, 
if any, are included in interest expense.   
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
The Foundation reports contributions as support when assets are received or when an 
unconditional promise to give has been made.  Allowances are provided for amounts estimated to 
be uncollectible, based on a history of past write-offs and collections.  Accounts are written off 
as uncollectible at the time management determines that collection is unlikely.  Revenue from 
other sources is recorded as earned. 
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
The cost of providing the various programs and other activities has been summarized on a 
functional basis in the Statement of Activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated 
among the programs and supporting services benefited. 
 
Note 2 – Cash Deposits 
 
The Foundation maintains several bank accounts.  The following table is designed to disclose the 
level of custody credit risk assumed by the Foundation based upon how its deposits were insured.  
FDIC regulations state time and savings accounts are insured up to $250,000 at June 30, 2017 
and 2016, respectively.  The total bank balance represents the amount held by the bank.  The 
carrying balance represents the reconciled general ledger balance at June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 

Category 1 – Insured by FDIC 
 
Category 2 – Uninsured by FDIC, uncollateralized 
 
Category 3 – Collateralized by United States Government Securities  
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Note 2 – Cash Deposits (Concluded) 
 
June 30, 2017 
 

Type of Deposits 

 
Total 
Bank 

Balance 

 
Total 

Carrying 
Balance 

 
Custody Credit Risk  

Category 
1 

Category 
2 

Category 
3 

Demand Deposits:           
  Bank of the West  
     Operating Account 

  
$ 720,998 

  
$ 720,998 

  
$ 250,000 

  
$ - 

  
$ 470,998 

  North Platte Bank 
     Operating Account 

  
 422,552 

  
 316,947 

  
 250,000 

  
 - 

  
 172,552 

     Credit Card Account   9,309   9,309   -   -   9,309 
  First National Bank –   
  Chadron 
     Custodial Account 

  
 
 27,423 

  
 
 27,423 

  
 
 27,423 

  
 
 - 

  
 
 - 

  Edward Jones 
     Money Market 

  
 23,636 

  
 23,636 

  
 - 

  
 23,636 

  
 - 

Certificates of Deposit   755,809   755,809   755,809   -   - 
           
  $ 1,959,727  $ 1,854,122  $ 1,283,232  $ 23,636  $ 652,859 

 
June 30, 2016 

Type of Deposits 

 
Total 
Bank 

Balance 

 
Total 

Carrying 
Balance 

 
Custody Credit Risk  

Category 
1 

Category 
2 

Category 
3 

Demand Deposits:           
  Bank of the West  
     Operating Account 

  
$ 1,336,583 

  
$ 1,336,583 

  
$ 250,000 

  
$ - 

  
$ 1,086,583 

  North Platte Bank 
     Operating Account 

  
 279,815 

  
 258,543 

  
 250,000 

  
 - 

  
 29,815 

     Credit Card Account   73,723   73,723   -   -   73,723 
  First National Bank –   
  Chadron 
     Custodial Account 

  
 
 28,517 

  
 
 28,350 

  
 
 28,517 

  
 
 - 

  
 
 - 

  Edward Jones 
     Money Market 

  
 23,625 

  
 23,625 

  
 - 

  
 23,625 

  
 - 

           
  $ 1,742,263  $ 1,720,824  $ 528,517  $ 23,625  $ 1,190,121 
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Note 3 – Contributions 

Contributions receivable at June 30, 2017 and 2016, were as follows: 
 

  2017  2016 
Receivable in Less Than One Year $ 376,171  $ 218,595 
Receivable in One to Five Years  560,112   416,277 
Receivable in Six to Ten Years  3,212   2,500 

 Total Contributions Receivable $ 939,495  $ 637,372 
Less Unamortized Discounts to Net Present Value  (18,242)   (13,432) 
Less Allowance for Uncollectable Accounts  (84,000)   (62,000) 
 Net Contributions Receivable $ 837,253  $ 561,940 

 
The discount rates used on long-term promises to give were 1.89% and 1.15% for the years 
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
Note 4 – Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value and are shown below as of June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

 
  

 
Cost 

06/30/2017  
Market Value 

06/30/2017  
Unrealized 

Appreciation 
Mutual Funds      

Large Cap $ 4,149,206  $ 5,063,948  $ 914,742 
Mid Cap  994,781   1,036,485   41,704 
Small Cap  979,420   1,026,106   46,686 
International  3,262,493   3,325,913   63,420 
Emerging Markets  1,217,036   1,357,827   140,791 
Fixed Income  960,775   940,454   (20,321) 
Floating rate corporate loans  1,443,573   1,432,812   (10,761) 
Commodities  1,216,737   845,888   (370,849) 
Low correlated hedge funds  516,476   524,916   8,440 

Publicly Traded Limited Partnership  933,209   836,585   (96,624) 
Hedge Funds  2,110,000   2,339,887   229,887 

Total Investments $ 17,783,706  $ 18,730,821  $ 947,115 
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Note 4 – Investments (Continued) 

 
FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair value.  
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the 
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).  The three levels of the fair value 
hierarchy under FASB ASC 820-10 are described as follows: 
 

Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
assets or liabilities in active markets that the plan has the ability to access. 
 
Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or 
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in 
inactive markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, 
and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 
correlation or other means.  If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the 
level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 
 
Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair 
value measurement. 

 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation 
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

 
Cost 

06/30/2016  
Market Value 

06/30/2016  
Unrealized 

Appreciation 
Mutual Funds      

Large Cap $ 4,373,891  $ 4,507,714  $ 133,823 
Mid Cap  1,051,515   910,013   (141,502) 
Small Cap  1,020,944   916,063   (104,881) 
International  3,237,206   2,757,907   (479,299) 
Emerging Markets  1,401,979   1,274,175   (127,804) 
Fixed Income  876,374   856,636   (19,738) 
Floating rate corporate loans  1,383,693   1,318,265   (65,428) 
Commodities  1,182,394   860,143   (322,251) 
Low correlated hedge funds  442,306   432,318   (9,988) 

Publicly Traded Limited Partnership  1,074,076   984,895   (89,181) 
Hedge Funds  2,110,000   2,199,923   89,923 

Total Investments $ 18,154,378  $ 17,018,052  $ (1,136,326) 
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Note 4 – Investments (Continued) 
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the majority of the Foundation’s investments are managed 
in one portfolio fund consisting of bond and equity funds.  These funds are priced in an 
active market (Level 1).  The Foundation does hold a portion of the investment pool in hedge 
funds.  These funds are not priced or quoted in the active market, but the assets can be priced 
in an active market under the valuation methods described in Level 2. 
 

The following table sets forth carrying amounts and estimated fair values for financial 
instruments as of June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  Fair Value Measurements Using 

June 30, 2017 

 

 
 

Fair Value  

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level 1)  

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)  

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Mutual Funds         
Large Cap  $ 5,063,948  $ 5,063,948  $ -  $ - 
Mid Cap   1,036,485   1,036,485   -   - 
Small Cap   1,026,106   1,026,106   -   - 
International   3,325,913   3,325,913   -   - 
Emerging markets   1,357,827   1,357,827   -   - 
Fixed Income   940,454   940,454   -   - 
Corporate Loans   1,432,812   1,432,812   -   - 
Commodities   845,888   845,888   -   - 
Low correlated hedge funds   524,916   524,916   -   - 

Publicly traded limited partnership   836,585   836,585   -   - 
Hedge Funds   2,339,887   -   2,339,887   - 
 Total Investments  $ 18,730,821  $ 16,390,934  $ 2,339,887  $ - 
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Note 4 – Investments (Concluded) 
 

 
The following schedule summarizes the investment return in the Statement of Activities for 
the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016: 
 

 2017  2016 
Interest and dividend income $ 442,954  $ 561,607 
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses)  1,768,385   (1,534,403) 
Management fees  (40,494)   (39,940) 

   Total $ 2,170,845  $ (1,012,736) 
 
Note 5 – Other Assets 
 
The Foundation is the beneficiary of various trusts and estates created by donors, the assets of 
which are not in the possession of the Foundation.  The carrying amounts (which are at fair 
value) of beneficial interests in trusts and estates are based on values provided by an external 
investment manager, quoted market values, or actuarial valuations.  Net realized and unrealized 
gains and losses related to beneficial interests are reported as changes in net assets based on 
donor stipulations.  The fair value of the beneficial interests at June 30, 2017 and 2016, were as 
follows: 

  Fair Value Measurements Using 

June 30, 2016 

 

 
 

Fair Value  

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level 1)  

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)  

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Mutual Funds         
Large Cap  $ 4,507,714  $ 4,507,714  $ -  $ - 
Mid Cap   910,013   910,013   -   - 
Small Cap   916,063   916,063   -   - 
International   2,757,907   2,757,907   -   - 
Emerging markets   1,274,175   1,274,175   -   - 
Fixed Income   856,636   856,636   -   - 
Corporate Loans   1,318,265   1,318,265   -   - 
Commodities   860,143   860,143   -   - 
Low correlated hedge funds   984,895   984,895   -   - 

Publicly traded limited partnership   432,318   432,318   -   - 
Hedge Funds   2,199,923   -   2,199,923   - 
 Total Investments  $ 17,018,052  $ 14,818,129  $ 2,199,923  $ - 
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Note 5 – Other Assets (Concluded) 
 

2017 Fair 
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance $ 43,926 $ - $  - $ 43,926 
Beneficial Interest in Annuity  13,385  13,385  -  - 
 Total Other Assets $ 57,311 $ 13,385 $ - $ 43,926 

 
2016 Fair 

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance $ 27,466 $ - $  - $ 27,466 
Beneficial Interest in Annuity  16,041  16,041  -  - 
 Total Other Assets $ 43,507 $ 16,041 $ - $ 27,466 

 
Assets measured at fair market value using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) in an 
inactive market changed as follows: 
 

2017 

 
Cash 

Surrender 
Value of Life 

Insurance 

 

Beginning balance, July 1, 2016  $ 27,466  
Purchases, issuance, settlements   13,827  

Total gains (realized, unrealized)   2,633  

Ending balance, June 30, 2017 
 
$ 43,926  

 

 

2016 

Beneficial 
Interest in 
Richards 

Estate 

  
Cash 

Surrender 
Value of Life 

Insurance 

 

Beginning balance, July 1, 2015 $ 261,839   $ 26,600  
Purchases, issuance, settlements  (261,839)    -  

Total gains (realized, unrealized)  -    866  

Ending balance, June 30, 2016 $ - 
  

$ 27,466  
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Note 6 – Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment at June 30, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following: 
 

 2017  2016 
Land $ 38,500  $ 38,500 
Office Equipment  97,096   97,096 
     $ 135,596  $ 135,596 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (95,788)  (93,836) 

Property and Equipment, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 39,808  $ 41,760 

 
Note 7 – Related Parties 
 
The Foundation, in the normal course of business, engages in transactions with Chadron State 
College.  The College has been designated as the beneficiary of the Foundation.  The Foundation 
pays all scholarships and contributions to the College’s students and departments. 
 
The Foundation acts as an agent to various organizations of Chadron State College.  It maintains 
the cash accounts and provides bookkeeping services for these organizations.  At June 30, 2017 
and 2016, the restricted cash balance was $27,423 and $28,350, respectively.  The total due to 
other agencies balance was $25,183 and $25,614, respectively.   
 
Note 8 – Accounting for Investments and Endowments 
 
The Foundation follows FASB ASC 958-205-50-1B, which provides guidance on the net asset 
classification of donor-restricted endowment funds for a nonprofit organization that is subject to 
an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 
(UPMIFA).  It also requires additional disclosures about an organization’s endowment funds 
(both donor restricted endowment funds and board-designated endowment funds) whether or not 
the organization is subject to UPMIFA. 
 
Investments – Board-designated Endowment 
 
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Board of Directors had designated $648,939 and $554,720, 
respectively, of unrestricted net assets as a general quasi endowment fund to support the mission 
of the Foundation.  Since that amount resulted from an internal designation and is not donor-
restricted, it is classified and reported as unrestricted net assets. 
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Note 8 – Accounting for Investments and Endowments (Continued) 
 

Gifts assigned to a quasi endowment shall be divided into two separate fund balances.  One shall 
be called the “Initial Fund Balance” and one shall be called the “Quasi Endowment Fund 
Balance.”  The balance for either the Initial Fund Balance or Quasi Endowment Fund Balance 
shall be determined as of June 30th of each fiscal year.  The annual payout from each of these 
fund balances shall be calculated individually as hereinafter stated: 
 

Initial Fund Balance – The Initial Fund Balance for each fiscal year shall consist of the value 
of all contributions to a quasi endowment.  The annual payout from this segment of the 
quasi endowment shall be set by action of the Finance Committee and ratified by the 
Foundation Board and shall be consistent with the long term goal of portfolio growth and 
perpetual support to Chadron State College (CSC).  The annual payout from this portion can 
be up to but not exceed 50% of the fund balance.  Any remaining balance after deducting 
the annual payout shall be transferred by the Foundation to the Quasi Endowment Fund 
Balance. 
 
Quasi Endowment Fund Balance – The annual payout from this segment of the endowment 
shall be set by action of the Finance Committee and ratified or approved by the Foundation 
Board consistent with the investment policy and long term goal of portfolio growth and 
perpetual support of CSC.  In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, the Foundation Board has the discretion to allow payouts from 
the corpus and principal of a Quasi Endowment Fund Balance.  However, the Board has 
chosen by policy to treat a Quasi Endowment Fund Balance as a Named Endowment and pay 
out accordingly.  See Donor Designated Endowments – Spending Policy. 
 

Investments – Donor Designated Endowments  
 
The Foundation’s endowment consisted of approximately 350 individual funds established for a 
variety of purposes.  Its endowment includes both donor-restricted and funds designated by 
the Board of Directors to function as endowments.  As required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, net assets associated with endowment 
funds, including funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are 
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted the Nebraska Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (NUPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair 
value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent 
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.  As a result of the interpretation, the Foundation 
classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of the gifts donated to the 
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, 
and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.  The  
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Note 8 – Accounting for Investments and Endowments (Continued)  
 
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified as permanently 
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are 
appropriated from the expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard 
of prudence prescribed by NUPMIFA.  In accordance with NUPMIFA, the Foundation 
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-
restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the 
purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the 
possible effects of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from the income and the 
appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the Foundation, and (7) the Foundation’s 
investment policies. 
 

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies – The Foundation has adopted 
investment and spending policies, approved by the Board of Directors, for the endowment 
assets that attempt to provide long-term support to CSC.  Accordingly, the investment 
philosophy of the Foundation is based on a disciplined, consistent, and diversified approach 
utilizing multiple asset classes and allows for multiple managers.  Their intent is to 
accommodate styles and strategies considered reasonable and prudent.  The Foundation has 
established long-term rates of return, downside risk parameters and asset allocation ranges 
for each portfolio.  If the total return objective is not achieved over a particular measurement 
period, the shortfall should be explainable in terms of general economic and capital market 
conditions.  A temporary shortfall will not necessarily indicate failure to achieve the long-
term objective.  An important objective of the Foundation Board of Directors is to create an 
investment and spending program that allows for growth of the portfolio balance. 
 
Spending Policy – Distributions from Named Endowment are to be according to the 
Foundation’s Endowment policies.  Grant levels are based on the weighted average fund 
balance, using the adjusted pool of awarding endowments during the past three (3) fiscal 
years.  The distribution approved by the Foundation Board shall not exceed five percent 
(5.0%) of the weighted average fund balance.  Distribution from any individual endowment 
shall be according to restrictions within that controlling endowment.  Distributions from 
the Quasi Endowment shall be according to its controlling restrictions.  In establishing this 
policy, the Foundation considered the long-term expected return on its investment assets, the 
nature and duration of the individual endowment funds, many of which must be maintained 
in perpetuity because of donor-restrictions, and the possible effects of inflation. 
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Note 8 – Accounting for Investments and Endowments (Continued) 
 
Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2017, is as follows: 
 

 Unrestricted 

 
Temporarily 

Restricted 

 
Permanently 

Restricted 

 Total Net 
Endowment 

Assets 
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ -  $ 1,988,424  $ 16,174,441  $ 18,162,865 
Board-designated endowment funds  648,939   -   -   648,939 

Total funds $ 648,939  $ 1,988,424  $ 16,174,441   $ 18,811,804  
 
Changes in endowment net assets as of June 30, 2017, were as follows: 
 

 Unrestricted 

 
Temporarily 

Restricted 

 
Permanently 

Restricted 

 Total Net 
Endowment 

Assets 
Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 554,720  $ 861,229  $ 15,566,578  $ 16,982,527 
Contributions  20,592   -  586,150   606,742 
Investment Income, net of fees  5,658   77,108   -   82,766 
Net appreciation  65,114   1,687,943   -   1,753,057 
Transfers  15,711   -   21,713   37,424 
Amounts appropriated for expenditures (12,856)  (637,856)   -  (650,712) 

Endowment net assets, end of year $ 648,939   $  1,988,424  $ 16,174,441   $ 18,811,804  
 

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2016, is as follows: 
 

 Unrestricted 

 
Temporarily 

Restricted 

 
Permanently 

Restricted 

 Total Net 
Endowment 

Assets 
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ -  $ 861,229  $ 15,566,578  $ 16,427,807 
Board-designated endowment funds  554,720   -   -   554,720 

Total funds $ 554,720  $ 861,229  $ 15,566,578   $ 16,982,527  
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Note 8 – Accounting for Investments and Endowments (Concluded) 
 
Changes in endowment net assets as of June 30, 2016, were as follows: 
 

 Unrestricted 

 
Temporarily 

Restricted 

 
Permanently 

Restricted 

 Total Net 
Endowment 

Assets 
Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 430,698  $ 2,455,943  $ 15,224,806  $ 18,111,447 
Contributions  3,100   -  337,265   340,365 
Investment Income, net of fees  7,986   328,223   -   336,209 
Net appreciation (32,240)  (1,150,854)   -  (1,183,094) 
Transfers  156,682   -   4,507   161,189 
Amounts appropriated for expenditures (11,506)  (772,083)   -  (783,589) 

Endowment net assets, end of year $ 554,720   $ 861,229  $ 15,566,578  $ 16,982,527  
 
Note 9 – Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 
 
Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes or periods: 
 

 2017  2016 
Scholarships and College Use $ 3,308,564  $ 1,834,510 

Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets $ 3,308,564  $ 1,834,510 

 
Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the purpose 
or time restrictions specified by donors as follows: 
 

 2017  2016 
Purpose Restriction Accomplished:    

Scholarships $ 435,281  $ 645,621 
College Use  499,929   579,798 
Management Fees  295,686   281,108 
Investment Fees  32,848   32,541 

 Total Restrictions Released $ 1,263,744 
 

$ 1,539,068 
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Note 10 – Permanently Restricted Net Assets 
 
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, net assets were permanently restricted for the endowment in the 
amount of $16,174,441 and $15,566,578, respectively.  The income from the endowment can 
be used to support Chadron State College.  At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the fair value of 
investments related to the restricted endowment was $17,624,923 and $16,095,941, leaving the 
amount assigned to individual donor restricted endowments required to be maintained in 
perpetuity with an excess balance of $1,450,482 and $529,363 for 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
Note 11 – Defined Contribution Plan 
 
The Organization participates in the College’s defined contribution plan (the Plan) covering all 
employees with at least three years of service who agree to make contributions to the Plan.  
Employees may enroll in the Plan if they are employed full time for 9 out of 12 months of the 
year.  Participation in the Plan is voluntary for employees who are 25 years of age and have been 
employed at least two years by the Foundation.  Participation in the Plan is mandatory for 
employees over the age of 30.  Employees contribute 6% of their salary and the College 
contributes 8%.  Total expenses for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, were $29,238 and 
$28,428, respectively. 
 
Note 12 – Commitments 
 
The Foundation agreed to provide the College with $2 million for the Rangeland Center 
Project.  As of June 30, 2017, $1,653,270 has been provided to the College. 
 
The Foundation began transferring dollars to the Chadron State College for the Athletic Complex 
renovation and expansion that was completed in the previous year.  The Nebraska Legislature 
approved $6.7 million dollars towards the project with the condition of a $2 million dollar match 
from the College.  The Foundation approved the $2 million match, plus an additional $1 million 
from the Chicoine Fund for the naming of the facility for a total commitment of $3 million.  As 
of June 30, 2017, $2,588,460 has been provided to the College.  
 
In 2013, the board of directors designated $529,000 from the CSC Quasi endowment plus 
$471,000 of earnings from the Chicoine fund to provide the additional $1 million for the naming.  
As the Chicoine fund generates earnings, the CSC Quasi endowment will be replenished.  As of 
June 30, 2017, $148,000 has been paid back to the CSC Quasi Endowment.  
  
In August, 2015, the Foundation committed to provide the College with $2 million for the Math 
& Science building renovation.  In May 2016, the Foundation committed $1 million to the 
renovation of the football stadium.  Both projects along with the fundraising campaigns are still 
in the initial planning stages.  
 

4.1.a

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

eb
ra

sk
a 

S
ta

te
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
ys

te
m

 B
as

ic
 A

u
d

it
 R

ep
o

rt
 F

Y
17

  1
6 

 (
21

21
 :

 A
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 o
f 

B
as

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 f
o

r 
Y

ea
r 

E
n

d
ed



NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

CHADRON STATE FOUNDATION (Concluded) 
 

- 86 - 

Note 13 – Subsequent Events 
 
On August 25, 2017, the Chadron State Foundation Board approved the named endowment and 
grant to campus payouts for the 2018-2019 academic year.  This will result in a liability at 
December 31, 2017, of $428,509 for the named endowments and 17,352 for quasi endowments.  
 
The Foundation has evaluated subsequent events through October 20, 2017, the date which the 
financial statements were issued. 
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Note A – Accounting Policies 
 
The following summary of certain significant accounting policies of Peru State College 
Foundation (the Foundation) is presented to assist in understanding the Foundation’s financial 
statements.  The financial statements and notes are representations of the Foundation’s 
management who is responsible for their integrity and objectively.  These accounting policies 
have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.   
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The Foundation is a nonprofit foundation incorporated in the State of Nebraska.  The purpose of 
the Foundation is to operate as a charitable and educational foundation for the promotion and 
support of Peru State College (the College) and its students.  The Foundation is governed by a 
self-perpetuating Board of Directors consisting of volunteer board appointed members, some of 
whom are significant donors to the Foundation.  The Foundation is considered a component unit 
of Peru State College; therefore, the Foundation’s net assets and results of operations are 
included as a component unit in the Peru State College financial statements.   
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205 Presentation of 
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.  Under Codification 958-205, the Foundation is 
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three 
classes of net assets – unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently 
restricted net assets.   
 
Unrestricted net assets represent resources over which the Board of Directors has discretionary 
control and are used to carry out the operations of the Foundation in accordance with its bylaws.   
 
Temporarily restricted net assets represent resources subject to donor-imposed restrictions until 
such time as the restriction is met, whether it is the expiration of a time period or the occurrence 
of an event.  Temporarily restricted net assets are available for various scholarship and 
departmental expenses for the College.   
 
Permanently restricted net assets represent resources subject to donor-imposed restrictions that 
do not expire.  Earnings from permanently restricted net assets are available for scholarships for 
qualifying students attending the College.   
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 
and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.   
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Note A – Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  Actual results could differ from 
these estimates.   
 
Public Support and Revenues  
 
Annual campaign contributions are generally available for unrestricted use in the related 
campaign year unless specifically restricted by the donor.   
 
Grants and other contributions of cash and other assets are recorded as temporarily restricted 
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.  
When donor restrictions expire, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of 
the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted assets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  
Contributions received with temporary restrictions that are met in the same reporting period are 
reported as unrestricted support and increase unrestricted net assets.   
 
Endowment contributions and investments are permanently restricted by the donor.  Investment 
earnings available for distribution are recorded as unrestricted net assets.  Investment earnings 
with donor restrictions are recorded as temporarily or permanently restricted net assets based on 
the nature of the restrictions.   
 
Contributions of donated noncash assets are recorded at their estimated fair values in the period 
received.   
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
Directly identifiable expenses are charged to program and supporting services; management and 
general expenses include those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any other specific 
function but provide for the overall support and direction of the Foundation.  
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, investments, unconditional promises to give, 
student loans, notes receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and the long-term liabilities 
approximate fair value.  
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Note A – Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Foundation considers all investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents.  The Foundation maintains several bank accounts at financial institutions that are 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000.  At 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, cash balances exceeded federally insured limits by $77,000 and 
$674,000, respectively. 
 
Unconditional Promises to Give 
 
Unconditional promises to give are recorded as receivables and revenues when received.  The 
receivables that are due in the next year are reflected as current promises to give and are 
recorded at their estimated net realized value.  The Foundation regularly reviews the listing of 
unconditional promises to give to determine collectability.  
 
Property, Equipment, and Depreciation 
 
The Foundation capitalizes all additions, renewals, and betterments at cost whereas expenditures 
for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.  
 
Depreciation and amortization is computed over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the 
straight-line method.  Estimated useful lives of the assets are: 
 

Office Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 7 years 
Vehicles 5 years 

 
Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value.  
Such donations are reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the asset 
to a specific purpose. 
 
Endowments and Investments 
 
The Foundation’s investments in Westwood Management Corp.  LLC’s are valued at Level 2 of 
the hierarchy of investment valuation, see Note D.  Unrealized gains and losses are included in 
the statement of activities as a change in unrestricted net assets. 
 
The Foundation pools its investments for greater flexibility in managing those investments.  
When investments are pooled, they lose their specific identification with specific contributions.  
Thus, the income and unrealized and realized gains and losses are allocated to the pool 
participants using the market value method.  The market value method assigns a number of units 
to each pool participant based on the relationship of the individual investment to the total 
investments at the time the investments are pooled.   
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Note A – Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

The Foundation follows the guidance of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds 
Act (UPMIFA) in accounting for endowed assets.  UPMIFA permits, subject to donor intent, 
appropriation for prudent expenditures as determined by the Foundation for the uses, benefits, 
purposes, and duration of the established endowment fund.  The Foundation has determined that 
maintaining the historical endowed value is prudent for the use of the funds and any appreciation 
of the endowment is available for use.  The amount of the net appreciation is reported as 
increases in unrestricted net assets in the statement of activities.  Net depreciation in donor-
restricted endowments is reimbursed from unrestricted net assets as necessary to replenish the 
endowment fund to its historic dollar value as established by the Foundation.  
 
The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies, approved by the Board of 
Directors, for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to 
programs supported by its endowment while maintaining the purchasing power of these 
endowment assets over the long-term.  The Foundation’s spending and investment policies work 
together to achieve this objective.  The investment policy establishes an achievable return 
objective through diversification of asset classes.  The current long-term return objective is to 
return 6.5%, net of management fees.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from this 
amount.  To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return 
strategy in which investment returns are achieved though both capital appreciation (realized and 
unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends).  The Foundation targets a diversified asset 
allocation that places an emphasis on equity-based investments and fixed income investments to 
achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk parameters.   
 
The spending policy calculates the amount of money annually distributed from the Foundation’s 
various endowed funds, for scholarships and administration.  The current spending policy is to 
distribute an amount at least equal to 4% of a moving four-year average of the fair value of the 
endowment funds.  Accordingly, over the long-term, the Foundation expects its current spending 
policy to allow its endowment assets to grow at an average rate of 2.5% annually.  This is 
consistent with the Foundation’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of endowment 
assets as well as to provide additional real growth through investment return. 

 
Compensated Absences 
 
Employees of the Foundation are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick, and paid personal time off.  
Foundation personnel accrue 10 hours of vacation and 8 hours of sick pay per month with a 
maximum accrual of 35 days vacation and 180 days sick time.  The Foundation estimates the 
amount of compensation for future compensated absences and, accordingly, recognizes the 
liability as part of accrued compensation in the accompanying financial statements.  
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Note A – Accounting Policies (Concluded) 
 

Income Taxes 
 
The Foundation is a nonprofit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The Foundation has also been classified as an entity 
that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi).  There was no 
unrelated business income for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.  
 
The Foundation’s federal Exempt Organization Tax Returns (Form 990) for 2013, 2014 and 
2015 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.  
 
Subsequent Events 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 26, 2017, the date which the 
financial statements were available to be issued, and has concluded there were no events or 
transactions occurring between year-end and this date that would require recognition or 
disclosure in the financial statements. 
 
Note B – Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash, 
unconditional promises to give, note receivable, and investments.  The Foundation’s cash and 
investments are in high quality institutions and companies with high credit ratings.  The 
Foundation performs ongoing evaluations of outstanding credit balances and collectability.  Cash 
and investments are based on quoted market prices.  Unconditional promises to give and the note 
receivable are carried at estimated net realizable values.   
 
Note C – Investments 
 
The Foundation’s investments at December 31, 2016 consist of the following: 
 

Fixed Income Funds Cost 

 Gross 
Unrealized 

Gain 

 
Fair Market 

Value 
Westwood Cash Reserves, LLC $ 473,927  $ 1,128  $ 475,055 
Westwood Core Income, LLC  1,725,560   124,988   1,850,548 
Westwood Total Return, LLC  1,386,643   949,747   2,336,390 

Equity Funds:      
Westwood Tactical Opportunity, LLC  221,797   349,401   571,198 
Westwood Diversified Core Equity, LLC  1,161,050   1,773,878   2,934,928 
Westwood Focused Core Equity, LLC  303,186   885,528   1,188,714 
Westwood Diversified Small/Mid Cap Equity, LLC  190,939   595,027   785,966 
Westwood Focused Small Cap Equity, LLC  211,621   259,444   471,065 
Westwood International Equity, LLC  997,748   165,182   1,162,930 

 $ 6,672,471  $ 5,104,323  $ 11,776,794 
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Note C – Investments (Concluded) 
 
The Foundation’s investments at December 31, 2015 consist of the following: 
 

Fixed Income Funds Cost 

 Gross 
Unrealized 

Gain 

 
Fair Market 

Value 
Westwood Cash Reserves, LLC $ 710,956  $ -  $ 710,956 
Westwood Core Income, LLC  1,260,498   127,243   1,387,741 
Westwood Total Return, LLC  1,558,323   997,106   2,555,429 

Equity Funds:      
Westwood Tactical Opportunity, LLC  311,215   271,652   582,867 
Westwood Diversified Core Equity, LLC  1,292,060   1,859,773   3,151,833 
Westwood Focused Core Equity, LLC  430,686   790,444   1,221,130 
Westwood Diversified Small/Mid Cap Equity, LLC  254,439   524,209   778,648 
Westwood Focused Small Cap Equity, LLC  252,122   153,022   405,144 
Westwood International Equity, LLC  736,678   437,380   1,174,058 

 $ 6,806,977  $ 5,160,829  $ 11,967,806 
 
Investment expense which consists of management fees totaled $82,334 and $80,474 for the 
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 
 
The fair value, historical dollar value, and net appreciation of endowed assets included in 
investments at December 31, are as follows: 
 

 2016 

 

 2015 
Fair Value of Endowed Assets $ 9,246,512  $ 8,920,086 
Historical Dollar Value of Endowed Assets (6,871,450)  (6,722,581) 
Net Appreciation - Endowed Assets $ 2,375,062  $ 2,197,505 

 
Note D – Fair Value Measurements 
 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, 
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for measuring fair value.  
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques 
used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices 
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority 
to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy 
under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows: 
 

Level 1 – Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and 
liabilities that the Foundation has the ability to access at the measurement date.  
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Note D – Fair Value Measurements (Concluded) 
 
Level 2 – Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  These inputs include quoted prices for 
similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or 
liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable; and inputs 
that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data.  
 
All the Foundation’s investments, see Note C, are considered to be Level 2 investments.  The 
fair value of the Foundation’s investments in the Westwood LLC’s is determined by each 
LLC based on the fair value of the underlying securities held by the LLC.  The fair value of 
the LLC’s is determined based on the closing prices of the underlying securities on various 
actively traded markets.  Unit values are determined by dividing the fund’s net assets at fair 
value by the number of units outstanding at the valuation date. 
 
Level 3 – Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

 
Note E – Note Receivable 
 
The Foundation’s note receivable consists of the following at December 31: 
 
 2016  2015 
The Foundation entered into a purchase lease with the College, 
whereby the College leased the Al Wheeler Activity Center 
Renovation for 12 years, payable at $25,871 per year including 
interest at 3.5%. The College has the option to purchase the 
Remodel at the end of the lease term for $10. 

 
 
 
 
$ 72,481 

  
 
 
 
$ 95,026 

   Less current portion of note receivable  23,334   22,545 
 $ 49,147  $ 72,481 
 
The aggregate maturities of the note receivable is as follows: 
 

2017 $ 23,334 
2018  24,151 
2019  24,996 

 $   72,481 
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Note F – Refundable Deposits 
 
Beginning in 2003, the Peru Booster Club had entered into intermediary agreements with the 
Foundation.  Funds are held in a cash account by the Foundation as an agent of the organization 
to be disbursed at their request.  The funds are not owned by the Foundation and are not pooled 
with the Foundation’s investments.  The liability included in the accompanying statements of 
financial position represents the amount due to this entity totaling $20,347 and $29,353 as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 
 
Note H – Notes Payable 
 
At December 31, 2016, the Foundation has an $115,086 short-term bank loan that bears interest 
at 3.50%. 
 
Note I – Net Assets 
 
Unrestricted board-designated net assets at December 31, are available for the following uses: 
 

 2016  2015 
Designated for scholarship $ 600,620  $ 600,620 
Designated for work stipends  508,044   532,177 
Designated for campus improvements  5,500   5,500 
 $ 1,114,164  $ 1,138,297 

 
Temporarily restricted net assets at December 31, are available for the following uses: 
 

 2016  2015 
Restricted for scholarships $ 695,594  $ 609,083 
Restricted for education and athletic 
departments  951,397   719,579 
 $ 1,646,991  $ 1,328,662 

 
Permanently restricted net assets consist of endowment fund assets held indefinitely.  The 
income from the assets is used for scholarships and to support the Foundation.  Amounts 
appropriated for scholarships in 2016 and 2015 amounted to $174,885 and $75,178, respectively. 
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Note I – Net Assets (Concluded) 
 
Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the purpose of 
the restrictions specified by donors as follows: 
 

 2016  2015 
Purpose restriction accomplished:    

Scholarships $ 36,475  $ 8,567 
Departmental and athletic gifts to College  8,828   54,009 
Oakbowl Renovations and fundraising  5,117   5,840 
Management fees  -   17,059 

 $ 50,420  $ 85,475 
 
Note J – Related Party Transactions 
 
The Foundation incurs various expenses with the College throughout the year such as payroll 
reimbursements, gifts, and other departmental expenses.  The following is a summary of 
transactions with the College for the years ended December 31: 
 

 2016  2015 
Salary and wage reimbursement $ 376,998  $ 379,366 
Gifts and campus improvements  1,527,408   1,386,119 
Departmental expenses  71,661   79,464 
  $ 1,976,067  $ 1,844,949 

 
The Foundation owed the College for salary and wage expenses paid to its employees by the 
College in the amount of $30,310 and $59,157 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.   
 
Note K – Pension Plan 
 
The College sponsors a defined contribution retirement pension plan, Teachers Insurance and 
Annuity Association/College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF), in which the 
Foundation’s employees are allowed to participate.  The plan covers all employees upon 
attaining 30 years of age and having two years of college service.  Employee contributions are 
limited to 6% of gross salary.  The Foundation reimburses the College for the retirement fund 
contributions along with the salary reimbursements.  The Foundation’s contributions to the plan 
totaled $18,055 and $18,244 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and 
is included in salaries and wages on the statement of functional expenses.   
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Note L – Concentrations 
 
During 2016, the Foundation received approximately 35% of its contributions from two 
individuals/estates. During 2015, the Foundation received approximately 70% of its 
contributions from one individual.   
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Note A – Foundation 
 
The Wayne State Foundation (Foundation) is an independent, non-profit corporation established 
for the sole purpose of securing private gifts for the benefit and promotion of Wayne State 
College (College).  The Foundation receives contributions from various contributors and 
provides funding to the College to assist in fulfilling its mission of educating students.  Examples 
of initiatives funded by the Foundation include scholarships, capital improvements, faculty 
grants, equipment, and athletic programs.  The Foundation funds and publishes, in cooperation 
with the College, the Wayne State Magazine and other communications sent to alumni and 
friends. 

 
Note B – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  Assets and liabilities are 
presented in the order of liquidity on the statement of financial position.  Net assets, support and 
revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are 
classified and reported as follows: 
 

Unrestricted Net Assets – Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed stipulations. 
 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets – Net assets subject to donor stipulations that limit the use 
of the donated assets.  When a donor restriction expires, that is when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. 
 
Permanently Restricted Net Assets – Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that 
they be maintained permanently by the Foundation.  Generally, earnings from endowed 
contributions and investments are restricted for specific purposes. 

 
Prior-Year Summarized Comparative Information  
 
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total 
but not by net asset class.  Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  Accordingly, 
such information should be read in conjunction with the Foundation’s financial statements for the 
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, from which the summarized information was derived. 
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Note B – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Contributions 
 
Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recorded as made.  All contributions 
are available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.  Conditional 
promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.  
Unconditional promises to give due in the next year are recorded at their net realizable value.  
Unconditional promises to give due in subsequent years are reported at the present value of their 
net realizable value, using risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises 
are to be received. 
 
Donations of property are recorded as support and carried at their estimated fair value at the date 
of the gift.  Such donations are reported as unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted 
the donated asset for a specific purpose. 
 
Pervasiveness of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Foundation considers checking accounts to be cash equivalents. 
 
Property 
 
Property is recorded at cost or estimated value at the date of purchase or contribution.  Additions 
in excess of $2,500 are capitalized.  Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed as 
incurred.  Assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method with estimated useful lives 
of 25-40 years for real property.  Depreciation expense was $4,905 for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. 
 
Investments 
 
The Foundation’s investments are composed of money market accounts, certificates of deposits, 
and mutual funds including common trust funds, either at area financial institutions or 
investment firms.  Investments are stated at fair market value.  Fluctuations in fair values are 
reflected in the period they occur.  Certain funds have been pooled for ease of management and 
to achieve greater diversification in investments.  
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Note B – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Concluded) 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Foundation qualifies as a tax-exempt Foundation, other than a private foundation, under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore, has no provision for federal 
income taxes. 
 
The Foundation files required income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various 
states.  With few exceptions, the Foundation is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local 
income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2014.  The Foundation has 
concluded no material uncertain tax positions have been taken on any open tax returns.  For the 
current year the Foundation believes all tax positions are fully supportable by existing Federal 
law and related interpretations and there are no uncertain tax positions to consider. 
 
Collections 
 
Collections, acquired through purchases and contributions since the Foundation’s inception, are 
not recognized as assets on the statement of financial position.  Purchases of collection items are 
recorded as decreases in unrestricted net assets in the year in which the items are acquired or as 
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets if the assets used to purchase the items are 
restricted by donors.  Contributed collection items are not reflected on the financial statements.  
Proceeds from deaccessions or insurance recoveries are reflected as increases in the appropriate 
net asset classes. 
 
Advertising 
 
The Foundation expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.  Advertising expenses for the 
year ended June 30, 2017, was $12,250. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
In the normal course of preparing the Foundation’s financial statements, management reviews 
events that occur after the statement of financial position date (June 30, 2017) for potential 
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.  Management has evaluated subsequent 
events through September 15, 2017, which is the date the financial statements were available to 
be issued.  See Note T for recently issued accounting pronouncements. 
 
Note C – Credit Risk Arising From Cash Deposits 
 
At times the Foundation may have uninsured bank deposits.  At June 30, 2017, the Foundation 
had bank deposits of $3,683,229, of which $401,343 was uninsured.  The Foundation approved a 
policy of bank deposits up to $350,000.  All bank deposits were below the approved policy 
except for Elkhorn Valley Bank & Trust (EVB&T) which had deposits of $516,103.  In June 
2016 the Finance Committee approved exceeding the approved policy amount for EVB&T. 
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Note D – Promises to Give 
 
Unconditional Promises 
 
Unconditional promises are recorded at their net realizable value. 
 
Unconditional promises to give at June 30, 2017, are as follows: 
 

 Unrestricted 
 Temporarily 

Restricted 
 Permanently 

Restricted 
 

Total 
Unconditional 
  promises to give 

 
$ - 

  
$ 1,258,833 

  
$ 135,081 

  
$ 1,393,914 

Less discount to 
  present value 

 
 - 

  
 (112,053) 

  
 (5,992) 

  
 (118,045) 

Less allowance for  
  uncollectible prom. 

 
 - 

  
 (15,925) 

  
 - 

  
 (15,925) 

Net unconditional 
  promises to give 

 
$ - 

  
$ 1,130,855 

  
$ 129,089 

  
$ 1,259,944 

 
Estimated future cash flows of unconditional promises are as follows: 
 

 
Estimated  

Cash Flows 
 

Discount 
Discounted 

Value 
Due  6/30/2017 $ 14,600 $ - $ 14,600 
 6/30/2018  595,444  (22,902)  572,542 
 6/30/2019  279,745  (21,105)  258,640 
 6/30/2020  179,700  (19,947)  159,753 
 6/30/2021  168,500  (24,466)  144,034 
 6/30/2022  60,000  (10,684)  49,316 
 More than 5 years    
 6/30/2023-2028  80,000  (18,941)  61,059 
 $ 1,377,989 $ (118,045) $ 1,259,944 

 
The allowance for uncollectible promises represents the unpaid portion of the Phonathon 
pledges.  All other pledges are considered collectible.  At June 30, 2017, $14,600 of other 
pledges were past due including $4,500 that were over 90 days past due.  Other pledges written 
off for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, were $2,250. 
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Note E – Investments 
 
Investments as of June 30, 2017 are summarized as follows: 
 

 Unrestricted 
 Temporarily 

Restricted 
 Permanently 

Restricted 
 6/30/17 

Total 
Money markets $ 4,237  $ 197,220  $ 154,055  $ 355,512 
Certificates of Deposits  35,000   643,978   250,000   928,978 
Commonfund- 
 Equity Fund 

 
 1,756,132 

  
 4,380,821 

  
 10,893,152 

  
 17,030,105 

Commonfund- 
 Bond Fund 

 
 762,904 

  
 717,698 

  
 4,451,687 

  
 5,932,289 

Subtotal Commonfund  2,519,036   5,098,519   15,344,839   22,962,394 
        
Other Securities  -   96,660   37,157   133,817 
Totals  2,558,273   6,036,377   15,786,051   24,380,701 
        
Investments restricted  
   for annuity contracts: 

       

  Commonfund- 
 Equity Fund 

 
 294,165 

  
- 

  
 361,977 

  
 656,142 

  Commonfund- 
 Bond Fund 

 
 114,399 

  
- 

  
 141,094 

  
 255,493 

Totals  408,564  -   503,071   911,635 
        
Investments held in  
   perpetual trust: 

       

  Money Markets -  -   20,731   20,731 
  Bonds and notes -  -   257,884   257,884 
  Equities -  -   585,544   585,544 
  Alternatives -  -   51,464   51,464 
Totals -  -   915,623   915,623 

Total all investments $ 2,966,837  $ 6,036,377  $ 17,204,745  $ 26,207,959 
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Note E – Investments (Continued) 
 
Market Risk from Concentration of Investments with Advisor 
 
At June 30, 2017 the Foundation had investments (including reserved for annuities) with 
Commonfund of $23,874,029, which represents approximately 91% of investments. 
 
Fair Value Measurement 
 
The Foundation adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards 
Codification (FASB ASC) 820-10-35, "Fair Value Measurement," effective July 1, 2008.  FASB 
ASC 820-10-35 established a three-tier hierarchy to prioritize the assumptions, referred to as 
inputs, used in valuation techniques to measure fair value.  The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is 
summarized in the three broad levels listed below. 
 

• Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical investments. 
 

• Level 2: other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar 
investments in active markets, interest rates and yield curves, prepayment speeds, credit 
risks, etc.) 
 

• Level 3: significant unobservable inputs (including the Foundation’s own assumptions in 
determining the fair value of investments).  The Foundation used the share price in the 
preferred offering of the private company to value the stock. 

 
The following is a summary of the inputs used as of June 30, 2017 in valuing the Foundation’s 
investments: 
 

June 30, 2017 Level 1 
 

Level 2 
 

Level 3 
 

Total 
Short Term Cash Investments  
   and Certificates of Deposit 

 
$ 21,962  

 
$ 1,284,491  

 
$ -  

 
$ 1,306,453 

U.S. Equity  585,141   14,679,585             8,988   15,273,714 
International Equity  115,324   2,122,349   -   2,237,673 
Emerging Markets Equity  12,458   884,312   -   896,770 
Fixed Income  305,567   6,187,782   -   6,493,349 

Total $ 1,040,452  $ 25,158,519  $         8,988  $ 26,207,959 
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Note E – Investments (Concluded) 
 
Level 3 Activity 
 
In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 the Foundation received private company stock.  The 
stock value of $8,988 was valued at the current share price in the preferred offering at the date of 
the gift.  There were no realized or unrealized gains or losses and no transfers in or out during the 
fiscal year. 
 
The Foundation did not hold other financial instruments as of June 30, 2017. 
 
Investments Held in Perpetual Trust 
 
The Foundation is the beneficiary of a perpetual trust.  First National Bank – Omaha is the 
trustee.  The trustee may be changed only due to investment performance. 
 
Investment Management Fees 
 
Investment management fees have been deducted from investment income. 

 

 Unrestricted 
 Temporarily 

Restricted 
 Permanently 

Restricted 
 

Total 
Investment  
    Management Fees 

 
$ 7,975 

  
$ 54,196 

  
$ 10,419 

  
$ 72,590 

 
Note F – Property 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2017, Wayne State Foundation traded property at 1308 Main for 
property at 211 East 10th Street. The property at 211 East 10th Street was donated on 
June 30, 2017 to the college for the criminal justice lab. 
 

 Bressler 
Alumni House 1308 Main 

 
Total 

Land $ 20,000 $ -  $ 20,000 
Building  134,417  -   134,417 
 Subtotal  154,417  -   154,417 
Accumulated  
   Depreciation  (65,327)  - 

 
(65,327) 

 Net 6/30/17 $ 89,090 $ -  $ 89,090 

Depreciation Exp.  
   FYE 6/30/17 $ 3,555 $ 1,350 

 

$ 4,905 
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Note G – Life Insurance – Cash Value 
 
The Foundation is the owner of numerous whole life insurance policies with various insurance 
companies.  A policy with the cash value of $25,000 was cashed in the year ended June 30, 2017.  
The policies contain cash values, which are summarized as follows: 

 

 
Policy 

Amount 
 6/30/17 

Cash Value 
Unrestricted $ 323,146  $ 43,620 
Temporarily Restricted  25,000   1,683 
Permanently Restricted  130,499   34,553 

Totals $ 478,645  $ 79,856 

 
Note H – Annuity Contracts 
 
The Foundation has entered into several annuity agreements whereby the donor transfers either 
cash, property, or both and, in consideration, the Foundation agrees to pay the donor a stated 
dollar amount annually for the remainder of his/her life, at which time the remaining assets are 
available for their unrestricted (or restricted if so designated by the donor) use by the Foundation.  
The Foundation records the assets at fair value when received.  The liability is recorded at the 
present value of expected future cash flows to be paid to the annuitant with the difference 
recorded as an unrestricted or restricted contribution.  The liabilities are computed using discount 
rates varying from 1.2% to 8.2% and life expectancies of annuity beneficiaries based on IRS 
tables.  
 
Annuity assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows: 
 

 Unrestricted 
 Permanently 

Restricted 
 

Total 
Investments restricted 
    for annuity contracts $ 408,564  $ 503,071 

 
$ 911,635 

Annuities Payable $ 55,095  $ 281,486 
 

$ 336,581 
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Note I – Unrestricted Net Assets 
 

The Board has designated a portion of unrestricted net assets as follows: 
 

Board Designated: 
     Quasi-Endowment 

 
$ 369,893 

Total board designated $ 369,893 
 
Note J – Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

 
Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at June 30, 2017: 
 

Program Activities:  
   Scholarships and Grants $ 5,211,633 
   Renovation projects  3,430,511 
   College Departments  523,864 
   SSC College Center   11,575 
   Time Only Restriction (Unrestricted receivables)  139,956 
   Other Designated Programs  8,067 

Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets $ 9,325,606 
 
Note K – Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

 
Permanently restricted net assets are endowment funds restricted in perpetuity to provide funding 
for various scholarships and programs annually.  In addition permanently restricted net assets 
include assets being held to fund future endowments. 
 
Note L – Endowment Funds 
 
The Foundation’s endowment consists of approximately 352 individual funds established for a 
variety of purposes.  Its endowment includes both donor restricted funds and funds designated by 
the Executive Committee to function as endowments.  As required by generally accepted 
accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds including funds designated by 
the Executive Committee to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
The Executive Committee of the Foundation has interpreted the Nebraska Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (NUPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair 
value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent 
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.  As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation 
classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the  
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Note L – Endowment Funds (Continued) 
 
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, 
and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.  The 
remaining portion of the donor restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently 
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are 
appropriated for expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of 
prudence described by NUPMIFA.  In accordance with NUPMIFA, the Foundation considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted 
endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the 
donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of 
inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of 
investments, (6) other resources of the Foundation, and (7) the Foundation’s investment policies. 
 

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund as of June 30, 2017 
 

 
Unrestricted  

Temporarily 
Restricted  

Permanently 
Restricted  Total 

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ -
   
 
   

 $ 4,815,741  $ 15,886,638  $ 20,702,379 
Board-designated endowment funds  369,893   -   -   369,893 

 Total Funds $ 369,893  $ 4,815,741  $ 15,886,638  $ 21,072,272 
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Note L – Endowment Funds (Continued) 
 

Changes in Endowment Net Assets for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 

 
Unrestricted  

Temporarily 
Restricted  

Permanently 
Restricted  Total 

Endowment net assets, beg. of year $ 319,370  $ 3,131,631  $ 14,724,417  $ 18,175,418 
Contributions  -   -   1,128,549   1,128,549 
Transfers  -  (27,272)   33,672   6,400 
Net investment income  4,419   233,809   -   238,228 
Net appreciation  46,104   2,243,430   -   2,289,534 
Amounts appropriated for expenditure  -  (765,857)   -  (765,857) 
 Endowment net assets, end of year $ 369,893  $ 4,815,741   15,886,638  $ 21,072,272 
     
Other permanently restricted net assets:     

Interest in Robert Cunningham Perpetual Trust   915,623   
Cash Value of Life Insurance to Fund Permanently Restricted 
   Endowment Funds   34,553   

Charitable Gift Annuity Net Assets to Fund Permanently Restricted 
   Endowments at a Future Date   222,200   

Promises to Fund Permanently Restricted Endowment Funds   129,089   

 Total Permanently Restricted Net Assets  $ 17,188,103   
 

Funds with Deficiencies.  From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with 
individual donor-restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or 
NUPMIFA requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, deficiencies of this nature that are reported in 
unrestricted net assets was $0 as of June 30, 2017.  Deficiencies, if any, result from 
unfavorable market fluctuations that occur after the investment of permanently restricted 
contributions and continued appropriation for certain programs that was deemed prudent by 
the Executive Committee of the Foundation. 
 
Contributions.  Contributions above include the decrease in promises to fund permanently 
restricted endowment funds (net endowment receivables) of $66,143. 
 
Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies.  The Foundation has adopted 
investment spending policies, approved by the Executive Committee, for endowment assets 
that provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment funds 
while also attempting to maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the 
long-term.  Accordingly, the investment process seeks to achieve a net total real rate of 
return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual  
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Note L – Endowment Funds (Concluded) 
 
distribution with acceptable levels of risk.  Endowment assets are invested in a well-
diversified asset mix, which includes debt, equity and real estate securities, that is intended to 
result in a consistent inflation protected rate of return that has sufficient liquidity to make an 
annual distribution of 5%, while growing the funds if possible.  Investment risk is measured 
in terms of the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocation between asset classes 
and strategies are managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable levels of risk. 

 
Spending Policy.  The Foundation has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year 5% 
of its endowment fund’s average fair value of the prior three years through June 30th

 of the 
preceding fiscal year in which the distribution is planned.  In scenarios where the fair value 
of the endowment funds have fallen below the permanently restricted balances or if 
undistributed prior period earnings appear insufficient, the Foundation may, at its discretion, 
set a lower payout rate which appears in line with the current yield from investment and 
general economic conditions.  In establishing this policy, the Foundation considered the long-
term expected return on its investment assets, the nature and duration of the individual 
endowment funds, and the possible effects of inflation.  This is consistent with the 
Foundation’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets as well as 
to provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return. 

 
Note M – Functional Allocation of Expenses 

 
The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the statement of activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated 
among the programs and supporting services benefited. 
 
Note N – Contributed Services 
 
The Foundation receives donated accounting services, secretarial services and rent from Wayne 
State College.  The estimated fair value for these services are $164,111 for the year ended 
June 30, 2017.  The amounts have been recognized in the financial statements. 
 
Note O – Pension Plan 
 
The Foundation contributes to a defined contribution retirement plan and is required to 
contribute 8% of the employee’s salary.  The Foundation’s contributions to the retirement plan 
were $19,261 for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Note P – Vacation, Sick Pay, and Other Employee Benefit Amounts 
 
The costs of sick pay and vacation pay are accrued.  Total accumulated sick pay at June 30, 2017 
was $129,292 and up to 25% of sick pay is payable upon retirement or death under the 
Foundation’s policies.  Therefore, the accrued sick pay payable was $32,323.  Accumulated 
vacation is payable upon termination and at June 30, 2017 was $26,285.  

4.1.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

eb
ra

sk
a 

S
ta

te
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
ys

te
m

 B
as

ic
 A

u
d

it
 R

ep
o

rt
 F

Y
17

  1
6 

 (
21

21
 :

 A
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 o
f 

B
as

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 f
o

r 
Y

ea
r 

E
n

d
ed



NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

WAYNE STATE FOUNDATION (Continued) 
 

- 109 - 

Note Q – Commitments 
 
U.S. Conn Library Renovation 
 
A three-year renovation of the U.S. Conn Library began in May 2014 and was completed in June 
2017.  The Wayne State Foundation raised $3.1 million in gifts and pledges toward the $21.9 
million project while the State of Nebraska, L.B. 301, and Wayne State College funded the 
difference.  The Foundation has reimbursed the College $1,347,049 and at June 30, 2017, the 
Foundation had $860,298 in funds available and $509,759 pledges receivable, for a total of 
$1,370,057 remaining for the U.S. Conn Library renovation project.  The Foundation also has 
$393,211 for a maintenance reserve for the Library. 
 
Press Box Replacement 
 
The Wayne State Foundation agreed to raise up to $1 million toward the approximate $3 million 
project.  As of June 30, 2017, approximately $1,047,209 has been raised in gifts and pledges.  
Construction is scheduled to begin in fall 2017. 
 
Center for Applied Technology 
 
Wayne State College secured $8.9 million through a state bond program underscoring the 
importance of a $15.2 million state-of-the-art Center for Applied Technology to address 
workforce and economic development in Nebraska.  The Wayne State Foundation is working to 
secure $1.5 million in private support for this project.  Construction began in August 2017 and is 
scheduled to be completed in December 2018.  As of June 30, 2017, the Foundation had 
$543,002 in gifts and pledges for this project. 
 
Criminal Justice Lab 
 
In FY 2017, the Wayne State Foundation gifted a piece of land to Wayne State College that will 
be the site of a Criminal Justice Investigation Facility.  In addition to the land donation, the 
Wayne State Foundation agreed to raise $150,000 to support this project.  As of June 30, 2017, 
$135,000 has been raised in gifts and pledges. 
 
Note R – Related Parties  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017 the Foundation provided direct support to Wayne State College 
of $4,469,403 and reimbursed the College for $371,394 for payroll and other operating expenses.  
Direct support consisted of $2,138,089 for annual scholarships, $526,924 for endowed 
scholarships, $17,500 for Neihardt stipends, $353,111 for athletic scholarships; $1,155,559 for 
capital improvements to U.S. Conn Library; $253,828 for athletics administration support; and 
$24,392 for general budget support college departments.  The Foundation also provided 
$151,950 of indirect support, including land donated for the criminal justice lab of $106,378.  

4.1.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

eb
ra

sk
a 

S
ta

te
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
ys

te
m

 B
as

ic
 A

u
d

it
 R

ep
o

rt
 F

Y
17

  1
6 

 (
21

21
 :

 A
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 o
f 

B
as

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
u

d
it

 R
ep

o
rt

 f
o

r 
Y

ea
r 

E
n

d
ed



NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Concluded) 
 

WAYNE STATE FOUNDATION (Concluded) 
 

- 110 - 

Note R – Related Parties (Concluded) 
 
The Foundation leases a vehicle from Arnie’s Ford, which is owned by one of the board 
members of the Foundation (see Note S). 
 
The Foundation had cash totaling $335,240 as of June 30, 2017, at State Nebraska Bank & Trust, 
where one of the board members of the Foundation is the chairman. 
 
Board members, trustees, and employees may pledge amounts to the Foundation for various 
projects and campaigns for support.  At June 30, 2017 the outstanding pledge balances due from 
these individuals totaled $1,034,007. 

 
Note S – Leases 

 
In June of 2016, Wayne State Foundation entered into an interest-free, 24-month lease agreement 
with Ford Motor Credit for the rental of a 2016 Ford Edge expiring in June of 2018. Future lease 
expense is $7,893 for the year ending June 30, 2018. 
 
Note T – Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 

 
In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit 
Entities (Topic 958):  Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.  The 
standard: 
 
Decreases the number of net asset classes from three to two.  The new classes will be net assets 
with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. 
 
Requires reporting of the underwater amounts of donor-restricted endowment funds in net assets 
with restrictions and enhances disclosures about underwater endowments. 
 
Requires a not-for-profit to provide in the notes qualitative information on how it manages its 
liquid available resources and liquidity risks.  Quantitative information communicating the 
availability of a not-for-profit’s financial assets at the balance sheet date to meet cash needs for 
general expenditures within one year will be required to be presented on the face of the financial 
statements and/or in the notes. 
 
Requires reporting of expenses by function and nature, as well as an analysis of expenses by both 
function and nature. 
 
The standard will take effect for annual financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning 
after Dec. 15, 2017, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after Dec. 15, 2018. 
 
The Foundation does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial 
statements. 
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017
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NSCS
CSC PSC WSC Office Total

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,593,630$        5,181,477$         19,867,414$        2,452,070$          34,094,591$          
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,769,430          3,747,574           8,827,662            5,536,859            24,881,525            
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance 230,820             721,608              145,268               28,924                 1,126,620              
Other Receivables 157,026             107,066              152,058               23,262                 439,412                 
Inventories 17,729               47,442                12,004                 -                       77,175                   
Loans to Students, Net -                         -                         222,437               -                       222,437                 
Prepaid Expenses 366,424             221,812              398,849               57,476                 1,044,561              
Deposits with Vendors -                         -                         1,310                   4,105                   5,415                     

Total Current Assets 14,135,059        10,026,979         29,627,002          8,102,696            61,891,736            

Non-current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,041,624          2,835,541           3,097,758            21,010,900          27,985,823            
Restricted Investments -                         -                         604,238               -                           604,238                 
Loans to Students, Net -                         -                         898,169               -                           898,169                 
Prepaid Expenses 16,450               29,421                74,652                 101,755               222,278                 
Capital Assets, Net 56,031,707        58,566,668         103,676,730        2,384,373            220,659,478          

Total Non-current Assets 57,089,781        61,431,630         108,351,547        23,497,028          250,369,986          
Total Assets 71,224,840        71,458,609         137,978,549        31,599,724          312,261,722          

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Unamortized Bond Refunding Amount, Net 21,514               6,491                  11,732                 -                           39,737                   

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 21,514               6,491                  11,732                 -                           39,737                   
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 2,535,320          2,023,893           4,412,803            917,161               9,889,177              
Accrued Compensated Absences 130,399             57,460                146,667               18,526                 353,052                 
Unearned Revenue 76,648               23,372                717,635               -                           817,655                 
Interest Payable 130,622             197,688              276,691               441,261               1,046,262              
Master Lease Payable 153,532             77,089                -                           -                           230,621                 
Long-term Debt 635,000             284,151              845,000               2,635,000            4,399,151              
Deposits Held in Custody for Others 110,644             51,038                39,826                 104,599               306,107                 

Total Current Liabilities 3,772,165          2,714,691           6,438,622            4,116,547            17,042,025            

Non-current Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,243,422          577,242              1,583,120            246,136               3,649,920              
Unearned Revenue -                         -                         249,424               -                           249,424                 
Master Lease Payable 246,689             71,566                -                           -                           318,255                 
Long-term Debt 10,074,371        13,482,533         18,862,857          36,452,351          78,872,112            

Total Non-current Liabilities 11,564,482        14,131,341         20,695,401          36,698,487          83,089,711            

Total Liabilities 15,336,647        16,846,032         27,134,023          40,815,034          100,131,736          

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unamortized Bond Refunding Amount, Net -                         -                         -                           34,355                 34,355                   

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources -                         -                         -                           34,355                 34,355                   

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 46,240,922        46,372,957         85,906,171          (16,013,593)         162,506,457          
Restricted for:

Expendable:
Loans -                         -                         1,280,398            -                           1,280,398              
Debt Service 636,776             259,605              852,239               1,210,500            2,959,120              
Plant 119,476             152,326              599,683               3,326,473            4,197,958              
Other 5,218,731          2,558,592           6,220,924            383,554               14,381,801            

Unrestricted 3,693,802          5,275,588           15,996,843          1,843,401            26,809,634            

Total Net Position 55,909,707$      54,619,068$       110,856,258$      (9,249,665)$         212,135,368$        
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2016

- 112 -

CSC PSC WSC NSCS Office
As Restated As Restated As Restated As Restated Total

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,514,430$       4,333,337$       19,127,687$       3,435,170$        32,410,624$       
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,167,751         3,377,403         9,141,911           5,797,574          25,484,639         
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance 336,923            931,400            315,578              24,430               1,608,331           
Other Receivables 331,436            180,675            88,456                16,127               616,694              
Inventories 16,068              50,516              16,673                -                         83,257                
Loans to Students, Net 1,424                -                       278,168              -                         279,592              
Prepaid Expenses 418,453            239,036            494,458              85,689               1,237,636           
Deposits with Vendors -                       -                       1,310                  4,971                 6,281                  

Total Current Assets 13,786,485       9,112,367         29,464,241         9,363,961          61,727,054         

Non-current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 927,248            9,794,803         11,924,302         2,302,872          24,949,225         
Restricted Investments -                       -                       605,121              -                         605,121              
Loans to Students, Net 9,243                -                       854,492              -                         863,735              
Prepaid Expenses -                       -                       -                          36,369               36,369                
Capital Assets, Net 57,423,810       50,111,388       93,370,387         3,262,522          204,168,107       

Total Non-current Assets 58,360,301       59,906,191       106,754,302       5,601,763          230,622,557       
Total Assets 72,146,786       69,018,558       136,218,543       14,965,724        292,349,611       

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Unamortized Bond Refunding Amount, Net 23,470              7,140                12,905                -                         43,515                

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 23,470              7,140                12,905                -                         43,515                

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 2,250,826         1,353,922         3,969,094           2,555,733          10,129,575         
Accrued Compensated Absences 147,962            57,445              152,742              20,298               378,447              
Unearned Revenue 81,208              34,420              622,511              110                    738,249              
Interest Payable 132,471            240,488            242,460              223,412             838,831              
Master Lease Payable 151,498            76,076              -                          -                         227,574              
Long-term Debt 630,000            343,334            450,000              3,505,000          4,928,334           
Deposits Held in Custody for Others 111,203            17,384              2,867                  110,329             241,783              

Total Current Liabilities 3,505,168         2,123,069         5,439,674           6,414,882          17,482,793         

Non-current Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,221,564         595,174            1,529,420           269,676             3,615,834           
Unearned Revenue -                       -                       605,668              -                         605,668              
Master Lease Payable 400,221            148,655            -                          -                         548,876              
Long-term Debt 10,707,391       13,801,743       19,711,526         18,417,119        62,637,779         

Total Non-current Liabilities 12,329,176       14,545,572       21,846,614         18,686,795        67,408,157         

Total Liabilities 15,834,344       16,668,641       27,286,288         25,101,677        84,890,950         

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 47,008,174       44,819,560       84,549,592         (17,173,995)       159,203,331       
Restricted for:

Expendable:
Loans 465,613            -                       1,294,451           -                         1,760,064           
Debt Service 630,567            320,278            450,265              2,137,528          3,538,638           
Plant 26,602              479,001            316,412              2,750,763          3,572,778           
Other 5,664,324         3,025,009         7,050,621           373,192             16,113,146         

Unrestricted 2,540,632         3,713,209         15,283,819         1,776,559          23,314,219         

Total Net Position 56,335,912$     52,357,057$     108,945,160$     (10,135,953)$     207,502,176$     
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
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NSCS
CSC PSC WSC Office Total

Operating Revenues
Tuition and Fees, Net of Scholarship
  Allowances and Institutional Waivers 10,876,670$     6,977,809$       12,764,481$       -$                    30,618,960$       
Federal Grants and Contracts 4,030,157         3,264,001         4,548,286           -                      11,842,444         
State Grants and Contracts 478,463            568,445            1,049,103           -                      2,096,011           
Private Grants and Contracts 194,100             235,056            765,090              23,593             1,217,839           
Auxiliary Enterprises, Net of Scholarship
  Allowances and Institutional Waivers 6,188,167         3,654,117         7,552,806           -                      17,395,090         
Other Operating Revenues 834,095            199,228            412,661              -                      1,445,984           

Total Operating Revenues 22,601,652       14,898,656       27,092,427         23,593             64,616,328         

Operating Expenses
Compensation and Benefits 24,390,583       13,827,428       30,040,177         1,807,505        70,065,693         
Contractual Services 1,493,790         1,518,870         1,975,452           737,844           5,725,956           
Supplies, Materials, and Other 5,607,413         2,869,327         5,703,165           263,299           14,443,204         
Scholarships and Fellowships 1,416,173         1,393,574         1,640,444           -                      4,450,191           
Depreciation 2,374,196         1,761,912         3,262,867           878,149           8,277,124           
Utilities 1,417,764         720,434            1,743,796           -                      3,881,994           
Repairs and Maintenance 1,995,245         926,119            2,474,774           -                      5,396,138           
Communications 126,495            164,356            164,069              -                      454,920              
Food Service 2,133,265         1,296,700         2,460,779           -                      5,890,744           

Total Operating Expenses 40,954,924       24,478,720       49,465,523         3,686,797        118,585,964       

Operating Loss (18,353,272)     (9,580,064)       (22,373,096)        (3,663,204)      (53,969,636)        

Non-operating Revenue (Expenses)
State Appropriations 17,179,001       9,704,951         21,332,564         2,141,240        50,357,756         
Investment Income 241,508            231,908            726,847              162,700           1,362,963           
Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt (264,566)          (256,691)          (351,125)             (382,417)         (1,254,799)          
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Asset 15,579              5,154                -                          -                      20,733                
Bond Issuance Costs -                       (44,103)            -                          (339,993)         (384,096)             

-                       11,716              (43,187)               17,250             (14,221)               

Net Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 17,171,522       9,652,935         21,665,099         1,598,780        50,088,336         

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues,
 Expenses, Gains or (Losses) (1,181,750)       72,871              (707,997)             (2,064,424)      (3,881,300)          

Capital Facilities Fees -                       -                       -                          2,093,812        2,093,812           
Capital Contributions 288,679            786,314            780,697              -                      1,855,690           
Operating Transfers In (Out) (1,749,134)       862,450            1,454,784           (568,100)         -                          
Capital Appropriations and Grants 2,216,000         540,376            383,614              1,425,000        4,564,990           

Net Other Revenues (Expenses) or 
   Gains (Losses) 755,545            2,189,140         2,619,095           2,950,712        8,514,492           

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position (426,205)          2,262,011         1,911,098           886,288           4,633,192           

56,335,912       52,357,057       108,945,160       (10,135,953)    207,502,176       

Net Position, End of Year 55,909,707$     54,619,068$     110,856,258$     (9,249,665)$    212,135,368$     

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Other Non-operating Revenue 
   (Expense)

Other Revenues (Expenses) or 
   Gains (Losses)
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016
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CSC PSC WSC NSCS Office
As Restated As Restated As Restated As Restated Total

Operating Revenues
Tuition and Fees, Net of Scholarship
  Allowances and Institutional Waivers 10,152,669$     6,891,515$       12,393,906$       -$                       29,438,090$       
Federal Grants and Contracts 4,152,356         3,201,573         4,827,396           -                         12,181,325         
State Grants and Contracts 521,019            452,729            1,062,753           -                         2,036,501           
Private Grants and Contracts 227,156             220,859            492,788               21,535                962,338               
Auxiliary Enterprises, Net of Scholarship
  Allowances and Institutional Waivers 6,479,429         3,676,519         8,732,651           -                         18,888,599         
Other Operating Revenues 886,948            165,327            561,376               -                         1,613,651           

Total Operating Revenues 22,419,577       14,608,522       28,070,870         21,535                65,120,504         

Operating Expenses
Compensation and Benefits 23,831,329       13,582,735       30,083,807         1,685,669          69,183,540         
Contractual Services 1,347,170         1,085,589         2,062,455           710,281             5,205,495           
Supplies, Materials, and Other 6,081,005         2,833,124         5,271,150           272,530             14,457,809         
Scholarships and Fellowships 1,465,333         1,334,340         1,707,767           -                         4,507,440           
Depreciation 2,332,629         1,745,687         3,184,790           878,141             8,141,247           
Utilities 1,518,620         901,066            2,020,789           -                         4,440,475           
Repairs and Maintenance 1,879,889         361,546            1,900,808           -                         4,142,243           
Communications 115,566            154,172            163,244               12,436                445,418               
Food Service 2,151,791         1,312,672         2,563,359           -                         6,027,822           

Total Operating Expenses 40,723,332       23,310,931       48,958,169         3,559,057          116,551,489       

Operating Loss (18,303,755)      (8,702,409)        (20,887,299)        (3,537,522)         (51,430,985)        

Non-operating Revenue (Expenses)
State Appropriations 17,402,028       9,808,485         21,642,044         1,891,485          50,744,042         
Investment Income 227,238            129,767            696,594               147,634             1,201,233           
Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt (268,879)           (198,277)           (250,420)             (494,073)            (1,211,649)          
Bond Issuance Costs -                        (119,214)           (199,662)             -                         (318,876)             
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Asset 17,592              40                     (2,774)                 -                         14,858                 

-                        8,905                (58,270)               (14,068)              (63,433)               

Net Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 17,377,979       9,629,706         21,827,512         1,530,978          50,366,175         

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues, Expenses,
 Gains or (Losses) (925,776)           927,297            940,213               (2,006,544)         (1,064,810)          

Capital Facilities Fees -                        -                        -                           2,058,500          2,058,500           
Capital Contributions 316,338            1,976,043         71,873                 -                         2,364,254           
Operating Transfers In (Out) (1,465,172)        397,340            4,239,240           (3,171,408)         -                           
Capital Appropriations and Grants 2,216,000         498,354            -                           1,425,000          4,139,354           

Net Other Revenues (Expenses) or 
   Gains (Losses) 1,067,166         2,871,737         4,311,113           312,092             8,562,108           

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 141,390            3,799,034         5,251,326           (1,694,452)         7,497,298           

56,194,522       48,558,023       103,693,834       (8,441,501)         200,004,878       

Net Position, End of Year 56,335,912$     52,357,057$     108,945,160$     (10,135,953)$     207,502,176$     
 

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Other Non-operating Revenue 
   (Expense)

Other Revenues (Expenses) or 
   Gains (Losses)
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NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
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NSCS
CSC PSC WSC Office Total

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Tuition and Fees 10,933,858$      7,041,486$        12,862,682$      -$                      30,838,026$     
Grants and Contracts 4,723,204          4,131,500          6,356,900          23,319              15,234,923       
Payments to Suppliers (11,055,868)       (6,768,895)         (12,480,483)       (919,531)           (31,224,777)      
Payments for Utilities (1,406,330)         (734,754)            (1,909,987)         -                        (4,051,071)        
Payments to Employees (24,380,861)       (13,838,329)       (30,094,165)       (2,935,841)        (71,249,196)      
Loans Issued to Students (4)                       -                         (148,668)            -                        (148,672)           
Collections of Loans to Students 10,671               -                         192,879             -                        203,550            
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises 6,268,420          3,721,935          7,337,150          -                        17,327,505       
Other Payments (462,053)            (1,208,186)         (1,276,600)         -                        (2,946,839)        

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (15,368,963)       (7,655,243)         (19,160,292)       (3,832,053)        (46,016,551)      

State Appropriations 17,179,001        9,704,951          21,332,564        2,141,240         50,357,756       
Receipt of Flex Contributions -                         -                         -                         289,575            289,575            
Payment of Flex Contributions -                         -                         -                         (292,834)           (292,834)           
Direct Lending Receipts 10,825,747        9,166,109          11,435,701        -                        31,427,557       
Direct Lending Payments (10,825,747)       (9,166,109)         (11,435,701)       -                        (31,427,557)      
Other Receipts (Payments) (151,499)            46,096               (6,724)                34,901              (77,226)             

-                        
Net Cash Provided by  
   Non-capital Financing Activities 17,027,502        9,751,047          21,325,840        2,172,882         50,277,271       

Proceeds from Capital Debt -                         2,865,000          -                         29,202,551       32,067,551       
Capital Contributions 288,679             786,314             780,697             -                        1,855,690         
Purchase of Capital Assets (698,140)            (9,260,051)         (13,335,388)       -                        (23,293,579)      
Disposal of Capital Assets 14,079               6,543                 -                         -                        20,622              
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (630,000)            (3,324,410)         (450,000)            (11,905,000)      (16,309,410)      
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (367,823)            (570,899)            (822,132)            (722,729)           (2,483,583)        
Bond Issuance Costs -                         (44,103)              -                         -                        (44,103)             
Capital Facilities Fees -                         -                         -                         2,084,928         2,084,928         
Transfers In (Out) (1,925,031)         934,992             2,138,065          (1,148,026)        -                        
Other -                         -                         -                         32,402              32,402              
Capital Appropriations 2,216,000          540,376             383,614             1,425,000         4,564,990         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
  Related Financing Activities (1,102,236)         (8,066,238)         (11,305,144)       18,969,126       (1,504,492)        

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment Income 238,952             229,483             738,530             154,258            1,361,223         

Net Cash Provided by Investing 
   Activities 238,952             229,483             738,530             154,258            1,361,223         

795,255             (5,740,951)         (8,401,066)         17,464,213       4,117,451         

13,609,429        17,505,543        40,193,900        11,535,616       82,844,488       

14,404,684$      11,764,592$      31,792,834$      28,999,829$     86,961,939$     

(Continued)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash 
   Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, 
   Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, 
   End of Year

Cash Flows From Capital and Related 
  Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Non-capital 
   Financing Activities
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(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
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NSCS
CSC PSC WSC Office Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,593,630$        5,181,477$        19,867,414$      2,452,070$       34,094,591$     

6,769,430          3,747,574$        8,827,662          5,536,859         24,881,525       

1,041,624          2,835,541          3,097,758          21,010,900       27,985,823       

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,404,684$      11,764,592$      31,792,834$      28,999,829$     86,961,939$     

Operating Loss (18,353,272)$     (9,580,064)$       (22,373,096)$     (3,663,204)$      (53,969,636)$    
Depreciation Expense 2,374,196          1,761,912          3,262,867          878,149            8,277,124         

Receivables, Net 283,069             255,461             107,962             4,391                650,883            
Inventories (1,661)                3,074                 4,669                 -                        6,082                
Accounts Payable and 
   Accrued Liabilities 283,282             (84,103)              29,329               (1,060,368)        (831,860)           
Accrued Compensated Absences 4,295                 (17,917)              47,625               (25,312)             8,691                
Other Assets and Liabilities 41,128               6,394                 (239,648)            34,291              (157,835)           

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (15,368,963)$     (7,655,243)$       (19,160,292)$     (3,832,053)$      (46,016,551)$    

Supplemental Cash Flows Information

Accounts Payable Incurred for Capital  
   Asset Purchases 3,145$               872,379$           1,176,769$        492,484$          2,544,777$       

(Concluded)

Changes in Operating Assets 
   and Liabilities:

Reconciliation of Cash and 
   Cash Equivalents to the Statement of 
   Net Position

Restricted Cash and Cash 
   Equivalents - Current
Restricted Cash and Cash 
   Equivalents - Non-current

Reconciliation of Net Operating 
   Loss to Net Cash Used in
   Operating Activities
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CSC PSC WSC NSCS Office
As Restated As Restated As Restated As Restated Total

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Tuition and Fees 10,355,650$      6,766,482$      12,249,814$      -$                      29,371,946$      
Grants and Contracts 4,848,701          3,820,326        6,376,175          10,973              15,056,175        
Payments to Suppliers (11,214,684)       (5,646,858)       (12,635,882)       (867,534)           (30,364,958)       
Payments for Utilities (1,436,154)         (863,937)          (1,898,443)         -                        (4,198,534)         
Payments to Employees (23,569,008)       (13,576,060)     (29,857,671)       (1,663,739)        (68,666,478)       
Loans Issued to Students (680)                   -                       (242,885)            -                        (243,565)            
Collections of Loans to Students 435,398             -                       256,015             -                        691,413             
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises 6,446,821          3,569,220        8,463,341          -                        18,479,382        
Other Payments (640,382)            (1,169,013)       (1,146,391)         (1,216)               (2,957,002)         

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (14,774,338)       (7,099,840)       (18,435,927)       (2,521,516)        (42,831,621)       

State Appropriations 17,402,028        9,808,485        21,642,044        1,891,485         50,744,042        
Receipt of Flex Contributions -                         -                       -                         307,685            307,685             
Payment of Flex Contributions -                         -                       -                         (308,742)           (308,742)            
Direct Lending Receipts 10,375,947        9,077,967        11,710,022        -                        31,163,936        
Direct Lending Payments (10,375,947)       (9,077,967)       (11,710,022)       -                        (31,163,936)       
Other Receipts (Payments) (149,492)            15,187             (58,270)              759                   (191,816)            

Net Cash Provided by  
   Non-capital Financing Activities 17,252,536        9,823,672        21,583,774        1,891,187         50,551,169        

Proceeds from Capital Debt -                         8,817,564        15,266,232        -                        24,083,796        
Capital Contributions 316,338             1,976,043        71,873               -                        2,364,254          
Purchase of Capital Assets (2,295,899)         (4,178,326)       (7,575,182)         -                        (14,049,407)       
Disposal of Capital Assets 3,592                 40                    -                         -                        3,632                 
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (620,000)            (402,621)          (4,515,000)         (3,385,000)        (8,922,621)         
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (280,290)            (190,344)          (505,350)            (797,584)           (1,773,568)         
Bond Issuance Costs -                         (119,214)          (199,662)            -                        (318,876)            
Capital Facilities Fees -                         -                       -                         2,058,473         2,058,473          
Transfers In (Out) (710,672)            183,462           4,261,085          (3,733,875)        -                         
Other -                         -                       -                         (9,980)               (9,980)                
Capital Appropriations 2,216,000          498,354           -                         1,425,000         4,139,354          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
  and Related Financing Activities (1,370,931)         6,584,958        6,803,996          (4,442,966)        7,575,057          

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase/Sale of Investments -                         -                       (605,000)            -                        (605,000)            
Investment Income 224,048             127,131           679,193             146,175            1,176,547          

Net Cash Provided by Investing 
   Activities 224,048             127,131           74,193               146,175            571,547             

1,331,315          9,435,921        10,026,036        (4,927,120)        15,866,152        

12,278,114        8,069,622        30,167,864        16,462,736       66,978,336        

13,609,429$      17,505,543$    40,193,900$      11,535,616$     82,844,488$      

(Continued)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash 
   Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, 
   End of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, 
   Beginning of Year

Cash Flows From Capital and Related 
  Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Non-capital 
   Financing Activities
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(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA)

SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
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CSC PSC WSC NSCS Office
As Restated As Restated As Restated As Restated Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,514,430$        4,333,337$      19,127,687$      3,435,170$       32,410,624$      

7,167,751          3,377,403        9,141,911          5,797,574         25,484,639        

927,248             9,794,803        11,924,302        2,302,872         24,949,225        

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,609,429$      17,505,543$    40,193,900$      11,535,616$     82,844,488$      

Operating Loss (18,303,755)$     (8,702,409)$     (20,887,299)$     (3,537,522)$      (51,430,985)$     
Depreciation Expense 2,332,629          1,745,687        3,184,790          878,141            8,141,247          

Receivables, Net (26,142)              (327,724)          (68,610)              (2,644)               (425,120)            
Inventories (3,335)                (2,507)              13,264               -                        7,422                 
Accounts Payable and 
   Accrued Liabilities 580,290             128,393           (430,409)            97,961              376,235             
Accrued Compensated Absences 165,861             12,515             94,943               23,967              297,286             
Other Assets and Liabilities 480,114             46,205             (342,606)            18,581              202,294             

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (14,774,338)$     (7,099,840)$     (18,435,927)$     (2,521,516)$      (42,831,621)$     

Supplemental Cash Flows Information

Accounts Payable Incurred for Capital  
   Asset Purchases 1,933$               118,304$         762,408$           1,072,409$       1,955,054$        

(Concluded)

Reconciliation of Net Operating 
   Loss to Net Cash Used in
   Operating Activities

Changes in Operating Assets 
   and Liabilities:

Reconciliation of Cash and 
   Cash Equivalents to the Statement of 
   Net Position

Restricted Cash and Cash 
   Equivalents - Current
Restricted Cash and Cash 
   Equivalents - Non-current
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NEBRASKA AUDITOR OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
 Charlie Janssen Charlie.Janssen@nebraska.gov 

 State Auditor PO Box 98917 
State Capitol, Suite 2303 

Lincoln, Nebraska  68509 
402-471-2111, FAX 402-471-3301 

www.auditors.nebraska.gov 
 
 
 

NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEBRASKA) 

 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND  

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State College System 
Lincoln, NE 
 
We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
business type activities and the discretely presented component units of the Nebraska State 
College System (NSCS) (a component unit of the State of Nebraska), as of and for the years 
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise Nebraska State College System’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 11, 2017.  Our report includes a reference to other 
auditors who audited the financial statements of the Nebraska State College System Foundations, 
the Nebraska State Colleges Facilities Corporation, and the activity of the Nebraska State 
College System Revenue and Refunding Bond Program, as described in our report on the 
NSCS’s financial statements.  The financial statements of these entities and program were not 
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and, accordingly, this report does 
not include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable 
noncompliance associated with these entities.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the NSCS’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the NSCS’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the NSCS’s 
internal control. 
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the NSCS’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  We consider the following deficiency to be a material weakness:  
Comment Number 2017-001 (Financial Statement Preparation and Errors).   
 
 The NSCS lacked personnel with the required knowledge and expertise to prepare accurate 

financial statements in accordance with governmental accounting standards.  Additionally, 
the NSCS control environment was not conducive to fair and complete financial reporting as 
there were no review procedures in place to ensure accurate financial statements were 
prepared in accordance with the required governmental accounting standards.  In general, one 
individual at each campus was responsible for preparing the financial statements, with no 
other review procedures in place to ensure accuracy and consistency among campuses.  

 
As a result of this lack of expertise and control procedures, the NSCS submitted draft 
financial statements that were materially misstated and required numerous adjustments and 
revisions.  The excessive number of financial statement errors led one campus to contract 
with two separate outside CPAs for assistance, resulting in a complete revision of the 
financials, significant timing delays, and $22,500 in payments made for such assistance.  In 
the end, the inadequate NSCS control environment caused adjustments to 74 of the 96 
financial statement line items – for an overall error rate of 77% of the available line items.  
The financial line item changes ranged from $60 to $19,714,900.  The table below 
summarizes the errors by campus and by financial statement for fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017.   

 

Financial Statement 
Statement of 
Net Position 

Statement 
of Changes 

Cash Flows 
Statement Totals 

Available Line Items 32 27 37 96 
          
Peru State College (PSC) 
Lines Revised 16 20 28 64 
PSC Error Rate 50% 74% 76% 67% 
          
Wayne State College (WSC) 
Lines Revised 11 14 20 45 
WSC Error Rate 34% 52% 54% 47% 
          
System Office (SO) Lines 
Revised 5 9 15 29 
SO Error Rate 16% 33% 41% 30% 
          
Chadron State College 
(CSC) Lines Revised 2 8 17 27 
CSC Error Rate 6% 30% 46% 28% 
          
NSCS Total Lines Revised 19 23 32 74 
NSCS Total Error Rate 59% 85% 86% 77% 
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It is important to note that the number of errors illustrated in the above table does not account 
for instances in which the same financial statement line item was revised numerous times.  
Such instances occurred frequently.  As an example of one such instance, the following table 
illustrates the hours spent corresponding with Peru State College (PSC) on multiple 
occasions regarding a one-sided credit-only entry that was found in PSC’s financial 
statements.   
 

Date Description 
9/25/2017 The APA questioned a manual adjusting entry made to the financial statements that appeared to 

be a one-sided credit-only entry, which should have caused the financial statements to be out of 
balance. 

9/26/2017 The APA met with PSC staff to discuss the question.  Some additional documentation was 
provided; however, the question could not be adequately addressed. 

9/27/2017 According to PSC, removal of this entry would prevent the financials from balancing.  The APA 
responded by asking why the financials did not balance.  The APA met with PSC staff again and 
discussed the need to determine why the financials did not balance. 

10/3/2017 The APA met with SO staff and discussed PSC's financials, which did not balance.  It was 
determined that PSC would revise its financials with the assistance of an outside CPA firm. 

10/17/2017 The APA received completely revised and reformatted financial statements from PSC with the 
assistance of an outside CPA firm.  The same manual entry was still included, now with a debit 
directly to the beginning fund balance.  

10/25/2017 The APA again questioned why the same manual entry was being made.  PSC responded that 
the amount was not included in tuition revenue in the accounting system but should be.  The 
APA requested the specific account codes used to verify that the amount was not included in 
tuition revenue in the accounting system.  PSC provided account codes.  The APA outlined our 
understanding of how tuition and fees are processed through the accounting system, which 
would result in the manually adjusted amount already being included in the account codes 
noted. 

10/26/2017 PSC stated that this instance differed from the normal process because cash was not received. 
10/30/2017 The APA agreed that cash was not received but noted an entry had already been made in the 

accounting system to adjust for that; therefore, the manual entry appeared to duplicate tuition 
revenue. 

11/1/2017 The APA met with PSC staff and PSC agreed to remove the manual entry. 
11/2/2017 The APA requested revised financial statements. 
11/3/2017 The APA again requested revised financials.  PSC responded that the financials did not balance 

after removing the manual entry, and they could not determine why. 
11/3/2017 The APA spent a significant amount of time investigating the balancing error and discovered 

that PSC had recorded entries in the accounting system for fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, in 
December 2016 despite that prior fiscal year having been audited and issued already.  These 
entries were not recorded in the prior financial statements and therefore caused a balancing 
error.  PSC sent revised financial statements with the necessary corrections made. 

 
Furthermore, the amounts disclosed in the footnotes, Foundations’ financials, and MD&A 
were found to contain several additional errors.  Lastly, the APA noted numerous other errors 
that were not significant enough to require correction.  All material adjustments were 
subsequently corrected by the NSCS. 
 
A similar finding was noted as a significant deficiency in the prior year. 
 
A good internal control plan requires the NSCS to maintain staff with adequate knowledge 
and expertise of governmental accounting standards to ensure financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with such standards.  Furthermore, the NSCS should have sufficient 
review procedures in place to ensure the financials are prepared accurately and consistently 
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among campuses based upon the underlying financial information.  The NSCS’s lack of such 
knowledge and procedures increases the risk that material misstatements may occur and 
remain undetected.  More details of the adjusted errors are included in the separately issued 
management letter dated December 11, 2017. 
 

NSCS’s Response: The NSCS will look at ways to improve existing procedures for the financial 
statement preparation in order to reduce financial statement errors.  The NSCS plans to meet as 
a group to improve consistency and address concerns that arose during the audit, as well as 
implement continued training opportunities, when available and where necessary, to ensure staff 
are informed and up to date on the proper financial statement line item handling of 
transactions.  Many of the items noted were due to “reclassifications”, which moved balances 
from one line item to another, with no resulting changes in total net assets.  The one specific 
instance noted for PSC was a journal entry of $9,181, which is immaterial to the financial 
statement.  However, we understand that the entries are the responsibility of the NSCS.  We will 
re-examine the closing process to determine how to better capture reclassifications and ensure 
proper support for the end of year transactions being made at the college level while preparing 
the financial statements.   

 
APA Response: An audit of the financial statements in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards requires evaluation of all the financial statement line items.  
Reclassifications are a major component of whether financial statement line items are 
materially accurate; therefore, focusing only on net position would have caused material 
misstatements within the financial statements.  Though immaterial, the illustrative example 
provided was included to show the amount of time spent on, as well as the apparent 
confusion related to, one entry with multiple errors.  In addition, the APA was required to 
investigate the entry despite its immaterial amount, as it was entirely unsupported and 
unexplained, yet removal of the entry caused the financial statements to be completely out 
of balance.  The APA would also like to emphasize that this was only one example.  There 
were numerous other errors for more significant dollar amounts that required similar 
back-and-forth correspondence.   

 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  We consider the following deficiency in the NSCS’s internal control to be a 
significant deficiency:  Comment Number 2017-002 (Wayne State College Athletics 
Department’s Control Environment). 
 
 The control environment within the Wayne State College (WSC) Athletics Department 

(Department) was inadequate. This defect was due primarily to the fact that, despite a 
significant amount of high-risk cash transactions collected by the Department, virtually no 
procedures were in place to prevent someone from perpetuating or concealing fraud or 
irregularities.  In particular, the WSC Assistant Athletic Director of Business Management 
(AADBM) was entirely in control of all cash transactions that flowed through the 
Department, with little or no review by any other individuals.  
 
A good internal control plan requires procedures be in place to prevent an individual from 
concealing fraud or irregularities related to high-risk cash transactions and ensure accuracy of 
financial reporting over these transactions.  However, as a result of the insufficient control 
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environment, numerous errors were noted during the APA’s review of the various types of 
Department revenues.  These errors not only give rise to serious concerns about the 
possibility of theft but also produced evidence – including an actual admission – of altered 
records, which is a criminal offense.  Details of the errors were disclosed in an early 
management letter dated September 13, 2017, and are also included in the separately issued 
management letter dated December 11, 2017. 
 

NSCS’s Response: Existing procedures have been reviewed and updated to establish a strong 
control environment within the WSC Athletics Department and include the items noted by the 
APA.  The reporting structure for the athletic business position has moved to the Administration 
and Finance area.  Additional training will be provided in the future, as well as an improved 
communication structure.  Program sales revenue is now deposited with the College rather than 
the Wayne State Foundation.   
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.   
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the NSCS’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  
 
Nebraska State College System’s Findings and Responses 
We also noted in our separately issued management letter dated December 11, 2017, certain 
other matters that we reported to management of the NSCS.  The NSCS’s responses to the 
findings identified in our audit are described above and in the separately issued management 
letter.  The NSCS’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements; accordingly, we express no opinion on them.   
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the NSCS’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the NSCS’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  
 
 
  
 
December 11, 2017 Kris Kucera, CPA, CFE 
 Audit Manager 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\FISCAL, FACILITIES AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 12/21/2017 11:26 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Acceptance of Single Audit for Year Ended June 30, 
2017 

 
 
 
BKD has completed the Nebraska State College System (NSCS) Single (federal) audit for the 
year ending June 30, 2017.  A copy of the audit is attached. 
 
The System Office recommends approval of the Acceptance of Single Audit for Year Ended 
June 30, 2017. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 NSCS SEFA and Uniform Guidance Reports (PDF) 
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

Single Audit Reports 
June 30, 2017
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

June 30, 2017 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 

The Board of Trustees  
Nebraska State College System 
Lincoln, Nebraska 
 
 
Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards of the Nebraska State 
College System (System), a component unit of the State of Nebraska, for the year ended June 30, 2017 
and the related notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

Management’s Responsibility  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of a schedule of expenditures of federal awards that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards based on our 
audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly,   
we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards referred to above presents fairly, in all 
material respects, the expenditures of federal awards of the Nebraska State College System for the year 
ended June 30, 2017, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 

 
 
Lincoln, Nebraska 
December 19, 2017 
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

      3 

Grant
Number/Pass-
Through Entity Passed

Federal Grantor Federal Agency Pass-Through     Identifying FY 2017 Through to
Cluster/Program Subdivision Entity CFDA # Number Wayne Peru Chadron Expenditures Subrecipients

Student Financial Aid Cluster:
U.S. Department of Education:

P007A1624690
Federal Supplemental Educational Office of Federal P007A1624810
Opportunity Grant Student Aid 84.007 P007A1624400 60,329$         49,727$         51,317$         161,373$       -$             

P033A1624690
P033A1524810
P033A1624810

Office of Federal P033A1524400
Federal Work-Study Program Student Aid 84.033 P033A1624400 104,795         84,247           286,482         475,524         -               

Office of Federal
Federal Perkins Loan Program Student Aid 84.038 1,428,379      -               12,516           1,440,895      -               

P063P1517840
P063P1617840
P063Q1517840
P063Q1617840
P063P1517870
P063P1617870
P063Q1517870
P063Q1617870
P063P1502640
P063P1602640

Office of Federal P063Q1502640
Federal Pell Grant Program Student Aid 84.063 P063Q1602640 3,948,528      2,847,203      3,115,273      9,911,004      -               
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Continued 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

      4 

Grant
Number/Pass-
Through Entity Passed

Federal Grantor Federal Agency Pass-Through    Identifying FY 2017 Through to
Cluster/Program Subdivision Entity CFDA # Number Wayne Peru Chadron Expenditures Subrecipients

P268K1617840
P268K1717840
P268K1617870
P268K1717870

Office of Federal P268K1602640
Federal Direct Student Loans Student Aid 84.268 P268K1702640 11,435,701$       9,166,109$         10,825,747$       31,427,557$       -$             
Teacher Education Assistance for

College & Higher Education Grants Office of Federal
(TEACH Grants) Student Aid 84.379 P379T1717870 20,502                -                    -                    20,502                -               

Total Student Financial Aid Cluster 16,998,234         12,147,286         14,291,335         43,436,855         -               

TRIO Cluster:
U.S. Department of Education:

P042A1003470
P042A1504830

Office of Postsecondary P042A1511580
Trio - Student Support Services Education 84.042 P042A1504220 286,226              258,611              236,656              781,493              -               

Office of Postsecondary
Trio - Upward Bound Education 84.047 P047A1201560 -                    -                    265,337              265,337              -               

Total Trio Cluster 286,226              258,611              501,993              1,046,830           -               

Coordinating Commission
Office of Elementary & for Postsecondary

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants Secondary Education Education (CCPE) 84.367 S367B140024 6,949                  -                    -                    6,949                  -               
Office of Elementary &

College Access Challenge Grant Secondary Education CCPE 84.378 P378A140002 15,750                -                    -                    15,750                -               

Total U.S. Department of Education 17,307,159         12,405,897         14,793,328         44,506,384         -               
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Continued 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

      5 

Grant
Number/Pass-
Through Entity Passed

Federal Grantor Federal Agency Pass-Through  Identifying FY 2017 Through to
Cluster/Program Subdivision Entity CFDA # Number Wayne Peru Chadron Expenditures Subrecipients

Research and Development Cluster:
National Science Foundation:

1253129
Biological Sciences 47.074 1442507 6,190$           22,874$         -$             29,064$         -$             

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services:
University of Nebraska
Medical Center (UNMC) & 5P20GM103427-15

National Institutes of NE Health & Human 5P20GM103427-16
Biomedical Research & Research Training Health Services 93.859 34-5150-2057-015 37,684           -               34,827           72,511           -               

Total Research and Development Cluster 43,874           22,874           34,827           101,575         -               
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Continued 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

      6 

Grant
Number/Pass-
Through Entity Passed

Federal Grantor Federal Agency Pass-Through   Identifying FY 2017 Through to
Cluster/Program Subdivision Entity CFDA # Number Wayne Peru Chadron Expenditures Subrecipients

Other Programs:
National Aeronautics & Space Administration:

NASA NE Space Grant 44-0307-1019-344
Education Consortium 43.008 44-0307-1019-361 -$                 -$                 15,901$             15,901$             -$             

U.S. Small Business Administration:
45-0606-1088-205
45-0606-1092-202

University of Nebraska - 45-0606-1092-201
Small Business Development Centers Omaha (UNO) 59.037 45-0606-1088-201 96,103               -                   19,014               115,117             -               

Environmental Protection Agency:
Environmental Education Grants 66.951 EPA-WTW-02 -                   -                   2,356                 2,356                 -               

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services:
Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for Center for DiseaseNE Health & Human

Infectious Diseases (ELC) Control Services 93.323 26352-y3 -                   -                   2,994                 2,994                 -               

Corporation for National and Community
Service:
AmeriCorps 94.006 -                   13,455               -                   13,455               -               

Total Other Programs 96,103               13,455               40,265               149,823             -               

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 17,447,136$      12,442,226$      14,868,420$      44,757,782$      -$             
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

 7 

Notes to Schedule 

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) includes the federal 
award activity of the Nebraska State College System (System) under programs of the federal 
government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  The accompanying notes are an integral part 
of this Schedule.  The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the System, it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net asset or cash flows of the 
System.   

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such 
expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-
21, Cost Principles for Educational Institutions or the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to 
reimbursement.  Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in 
the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.  The System has 
elected not to use the ten percent de minimis cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Loans Outstanding 

The federal loan program listed subsequently is administered directly by the System, and balances 
and transactions relating to this program are included in the System’s basic financial statements, 
which are issued separately.  Loans outstanding at the beginning of the year and loans made during 
the year are included in the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule.  The balance of loans 
outstanding at June 30, 2017 consists of: 

Program Title 

Federal Perkins Loan Program CFDA #84.038 

Wayne    $1,120,612 
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Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 

The Board of Trustees 
Nebraska State College System 
Lincoln, Nebraska 
 
 
Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

We have audited the compliance of the Nebraska State College System (the System), a component unit of 
the State of Nebraska, with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended 
June 30, 2017.  The System’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, contracts and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the System’s major federal program based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the System’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances.   

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the System’s compliance. 
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9 

Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the System complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year 
ended June 30, 2017. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the System is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the System’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the System’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Lincoln, Nebraska 
December 19, 2017 
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska  

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

 10 

Summary of Auditor’s Results 

The financial statements of the Nebraska State College System were audited by the Nebraska Auditor of 
Public Accounts and were provided under separate cover.  Certain items are summarized below. 

Financial Statements 

1. The type of report the Nebraska Auditor of Public Accounts issued on whether the financial 
statements audited were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) was: 
 

 Unmodified    Qualified   Adverse  Disclaimer 
 

2. The Nebraska Auditor of Public Accounts independent auditor’s report on internal control over 
financial reporting disclosed: 

Significant deficiency(ies)?  Yes  None reported  

Material weakness(es)?  Yes   No  

 

3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements 
was disclosed by the audit by the Nebraska Auditor of Public 
Accounts? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 

Federal Awards 

4. The independent auditor’s report on internal control over compliance for major federal awards 
programs disclosed: 

Significant deficiency(ies)?  Yes  None reported  

Material weakness(es)?  Yes   No  

 

5. The opinion expressed in the independent auditor’s report on compliance for major federal awards 
was: 

  

 Unmodified    Qualified   Adverse  Disclaimer 
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - Continued 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

 11 

6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by 2 CFR 
200.516(a)? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 

7. The System’s major program was: 

Cluster/Program CFDA Number
Student Financial Assistance Cluster  

Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants 84.007 
Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 
Federal Work Study Program 84.033 
Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 
Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education 

(TEACH) Grant 84.379 
 

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $750,000. 

 

9. The System qualified as a low-risk auditee?  Yes  No 
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - Continued 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

 12 

Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards 

Reference 
Number Finding  

   
 The Nebraska Auditor of Public Accounts issued under separate 

cover the report in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards related to the financial statements of the System.  See 
that report for the material weakness and significant deficiency 
identified.  

   

Findings Required to be Reported by Uniform Guidance 

Reference 
Number Finding  

   
 No matters are reportable. 
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Nebraska State College System  
A Component Unit of the State of Nebraska 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

 13 

Reference 
Number Summary of Finding Status 

   
2016-001 The Nebraska Auditor of Public Accounts (APA) issued under 

separate cover the report in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards related to the financial statements for the 
System for the year ended June 30, 2016, that identified the 
following. 

Unresolved - See 
Finding 2017-001 

reported by the APA 
under separate cover.

   
 Finding – The System should have adequate internal controls 

to help ensure the amounts reported in the draft financial 
statements and related footnotes are accurate and properly 
classified in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  

   
 Reasons for Recurrence and Planned Corrective Action -   
 Management reviewed the current finding that was noted as 

similar to the finding noted in prior year.  Many of the items 
noted in the current year were due to reclassification of 
particular line items that were not repeat adjustments of the 
prior year items noted.  All material adjustments were 
subsequently corrected by the NSCS.  The NSCS will look at 
ways to improve existing procedures for the financial 
statement preparation in order to reduce financial statement 
errors and improve in the consistency of such preparations. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\FISCAL, FACILITIES AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 1/3/2018 2:56 PM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Continuation of Bookstore Contracts 
 
 
 

 
Chadron State contracted with MBS Direct Corporation to provide a full service online bookstore 
to serve the College beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019 with up to 2 one-year 
renewal terms ending on June 30, 2021. For 2018-19, the College will continue to receive a 
commission of 10% on sales of print course materials, 2% on digital course materials, and 20-
25% commission on books purchased at wholesale during book buyback; plus $2,500 in 
textbook scholarships.  Chadron State respectfully requests that the Board approve continuance 
of the online bookstore contract with MBS Direct Corporation for the period of July 1, 2018 
through June 30, 2019. 
 
Peru State recommends continuation of its bookstore contract with Akademos for the operation 
of the online bookstore for 2018-2019. The College's contract is for three years - 2016-17, 2017-
18, and 2018-19. This approval is for the last year of the three year contract. There is an option 
to enter into two additional one year contracts with Akademos following the initial three year 
term of the contract with Board approval. For the right to operate the bookstore, Akademos 
agrees to pay the College a commission of 7.5% of gross sales. In addition, Akademos will 
provide the College us to $7,500 during the term of the contract for any of the following services 
or combination of services: Adademos Campus Store Consulting Services, On-Campus Pop-Up 
Storefront, or other campus marketing initiatives. The College will also receive two $500 
internships and $2,000 in textbook scholarships annually.  Peru State respectfully requests that 
the Board approve continuance of the online bookstore contract with Akademos for the period of 
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
Wayne State recommends continuation of an Agreement with Follett Higher Education Group, 
Inc. (Follett) for the operation of the bookstore. The initial term of the Agreement is for the period 
of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019; and allows for one successive two-year renewal term 
from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021. For the right to operate the bookstore, Follett will 
continue to pay commission of 11.6% of Net Revenue up to $1 Million; 12.6% of Net Revenue 
over $1 Million, but less than $1.5 Million; 13.6% of Net Revenue over $1.5 Million. There is a 
commission guarantee of an amount equal to 95% of the calculated commission on net revenue 
of the immediately preceding year.  In addition, Follett will provide a $4,000 annual accounts 
receivable account.  Wayne State respectfully requests that the Board approve continuance of 
its bookstore contract with Follett for the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
The System Office recommends approval of the Continuation of Bookstore Contracts. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\FISCAL, FACILITIES AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 1/4/2018 3:29 PM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Budget Request Guidelines and Preliminary Capital 
Construction Requests 

 
 
 
Approval is requested for guidelines for the Colleges' and System Office's request for the 2019-
2021 Biennium Budget. 
 
The budget request for the 2019-2021 biennium request period, assuming it follows previous 
biennium schedules, must be submitted to the Coordinating Commission by August 15, 2018, 

and to the Governor and Legislature by September 15, 2018.  
 
Board approved guidelines are necessary at this time to allow the NSCS to prepare a 
preliminary request document for review by the Board at its April 2018 meeting. At that meeting, 
the Board will consider the preliminary requests and make any revisions thereto, with a final 
version provided for Board approval at its June 2018 meeting. 
 
Unless otherwise requested by the Governor and Legislature, we do not include salary request 
funding as part of the initial biennium request, but rather follow up later in the bargaining 
process with the estimated impact of any negotiated increases. The Governor and Legislature 
are attuned to the bargaining time frames. 
 
 

CORE NEEDS 
 
Meeting core needs remains a high priority. Core needs include those items that allow for 
continued operations at the same level. The recommended annual increases above the 2017-
2018 base amounts include the following: 
 
Health insurance rate increase     8.0% 
Utilities rate increase         4.0% 
DAS rate increases     actual (Note 1) 
Operating increases not covered above    3.0% 
New building opening costs    actual 
Mandatory Compliance Obligations    tbd (Note 2) 
 

(1) Information not available until July as part of the budget request guidelines distributed 
by the Department of Administrative Services (DAS) - Budget Division 

(2) This item is for any new identified compliance obligations required of the Colleges 
 

 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 

 
In lieu of the specific Strategic Initiatives that the NSCS has prepared for many years, the NSCS 
is proposing to focus on the cost share between state appropriations and the Colleges’ cash 
funds.  That cost share has shifted gradually and considerably over history from around 68% 
appropriations and 32% cash funds in FY00 to the current split of 57% appropriations and 43% 
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Action Item (ID # 2141)  Meeting of January 16, 2018 

Updated: 1/4/2018 3:29 PM  Page 2 

cash funds in FY18.  The Strategic Initiative proposal would request consideration of a gradual 
shift back to a higher share of state support, which would in turn lower the financial burden on 
students and make the NSCS more affordable to students who may not be able to consider a 
four year higher education.  This request supports the NSCS’s core mission of affordability and 
access. 
 

CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION 
 
Capital requests being considered generally must be listed for the Coordinating Commission for 
Postsecondary Education by April 1 (2018). 

 
Capital construction projects for the 2019-21 biennium request include (but are limited to): 
CSC  Math/Science Renovation & Addition 
PSC  Geothermal Utilities Conversion 
WSC       Benthack Renovation 

WSC  Peterson Fine Arts Building Renovation Planning 
 
The System Office recommends approval of the Budget Request Guidelines and Preliminary 
Capital Construction Requests. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\FISCAL, FACILITIES AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 12/21/2017 10:14 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve 2019-2021 Biennium NSCS Capital Construction 
Board Initiatives 

 
 
 
Capital construction initiatives for the 2019-2021 biennium will be directed by language 
considered and approved by the Board. 
 
One of the items upon which the Coordinating Commission judges and prioritizes capital 
construction requests is how well our requests fit within the Board's stated capital construction 
initiatives. For the next biennium, the following language is recommended for wording the 
Board's capital construction priorities: 
 
“To enhance educational opportunities for students and increase the potential for enrollment 
and retention, the Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State College System will focus its 
attention during the 2019-2021 biennium on capital projects that renovate existing instructional 
and recreational facilities to the most efficient, productive condition possible. 
 
Where new construction is necessary to replace a deteriorating facility, enhance technology 
learning and utilization, or accommodate enrollment growth, the facilities will incorporate the 
most energy efficient, easily maintained construction components that can be acquired within 
allowable resources. Technology resources will be designed to facilitate cooperative ventures 
with educational partners and enhance opportunities for student access and administrative 
savings.” 
 
The System Office recommends approval of the 2019-2021 Biennium NSCS Capital 
Construction Board Requests. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\FISCAL, FACILITIES AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 11/22/2017 10:58 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Naming of Foundation Suite in Press Box at New 
Sports Complex/Stadium for Chadron State College 

 
 
 

 
Board Policy 8020 provides the naming of NSCS buildings and other facilities. According to 
paragraph 4 of the policy, "The proposed name shall come to the Board as a recommendation 
of the College President." Pursuant to this policy, Chadron State seeks to name the Foundation 
Suite in the Press Box in the new Sports Complex/Stadium in recognition of Lee and Virginia 
Wahlstrom and Family who provided a substantial gift for the renovation project. The area will 
be named the "Lee and Virginia Wahlstrom Family Foundation Suite." 

 
The naming request brings honor to the Wahlstrom family, Chadron State and to the 
Nebraska State College System. 
 
The Chancellor supports this request and recommends approval. 
 
The System Office and Chadron State College recommend approval of the Naming of 
Foundation Suite in Press Box at New Sports Complex/Stadium for Chadron State College. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\FISCAL, FACILITIES AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 11/22/2017 10:59 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Reallocation of Contingency Maintenance Funds for 
Chadron State College 

 
 
 
Chadron State College requests the following reallocation of contingency maintenance funds: 
 
From Resolution: 
 
3/18/16  $17,793.19 #3 Andrews Hall Fire Sprinkler System 
 
To: Resolution: 
 
3/24/17 $17,793.19 #2 Andrews Hall Fire Alarm Upgrade 
 
 
From Resolution: 
 
3/24/17 $15,890.95 #11 West Court Demolition 
 
To Resolution: 
 
3/24/17 $15,890.95 #2 Andrews Hall Fire Alarm Upgrade 
 
 
From Resolution: 
 
3/18/16 $22,012.88 #9 Residence Hall - Wireless 
 
To Resolution: 
 
3/24/17 $22,012.88 #2 Andrews Hall Fire Alarm Upgrade 
 
 
From Resolution: 
 
3/18/16 $3,302.98 #12 Revenue Bond Buildings - Flooring 
 
To Resolution: 
 
3/24/17 $3,302.98 #2 Andrews Hall Fire Alarm Upgrade 
 
 
Chadron State respectfully requests the Board of Trustees to approve the transfer of funds 
between these contingency maintenance allocations.  
 
The System Office and Chadron State College recommend approval of the Reallocation of 
Contingency Maintenance Funds for Chadron State College. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\FISCAL, FACILITIES AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 11/22/2017 11:01 AM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Real Property Acquisition for Wayne State College 
 
 
 

 
The System Office and Wayne State respectfully request authorization for the College to 
acquire real property located at 1001 Schreiner Drive, Wayne, Nebraska. The legal description 
of the property is Lots 13-14-15, Block 27, College Hill First Addition to the City of Wayne, 
Wayne County, Nebraska. The property includes the land as well as a single-dwelling house. 
The 2012 Campus Master Plan called for the creation of stronger entries and edges on the 
campus, particularly for visitors and prospective students who come to campus for the first time. 
Specifically, it called for acquisition of property with a focus on potential parking and/or use of 
the current structure for support services such as Campus Security. The acquisition of this 
property is in compliance with Board Policy 8002. 
 
The System Office and Wayne State College recommend approval of the Real Property 
Acquisition for Wayne State College. 
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ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION\FISCAL, FACILITIES AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 12/21/2017 3:06 PM  Page 1 

ACTION: Approve Use of Unappropriated Cash Funds on a One-Time 
Basis for Property Acquisition for Wayne State College 

 
 
 

 
Wayne State requests Board approval to use $80,000 on a one-time basis from unappropriated 
cash funds for the acquisition of real property located at 1001 Schreiner Drive, Wayne, 
Nebraska. A separate agenda item requests approval for the property acquisition. Approval of 
this funding will allow the College to move forward with acquisition of the property. The cash 
fund balance adequately supports this request. 
 
The System Office and Wayne State College recommend approval of the Use of 
Unappropriated Cash Funds on a One-Time Basis for Property Acquisition for Wayne State. 
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ITEMS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION\ACADEMIC AND PERSONNEL 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 12/18/2017 2:19 PM A Page 1 

INFORMATION ONLY: Reports of Personnel Actions 
 
 
 
The personnel action reports are provided to the Board for information. 
 
Board Policy 5021 states that all full-time (0.75 FTE or more) and part-time (less than 0.75 FTE) 
personnel appointments must be reviewed and approved by the President and reported to the 
Chancellor.  All full-time employment separations are also reported to the Chancellor.  The 
Chancellor is required to report these changes along with the changes to the System Office 
staffing to the Board on a regular basis. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 CSC Personnel Report January 2018 (PDF) 

 PSC Personnel Report January 2018 (PDF) 

 WSC Personnel Report January 2018 (PDF) 

 SO Personnel Report January 2018 (PDF) 
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR

COLLEGE: Chadron State College

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2018

RANKED FACULTY

(FULL-TIME/.75 FTE OR MORE)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary

Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Haynes, Janice

Social & Communication 

Arts

Associate 

Professor $59,896 State

08/20/2015-

05/09/2018 1.000 Deceased NA

Moody, Yvonne Applied Sciences Professor $89,723 State

08/27/1979-

05/09/2018 1.000 Retirement NA

Wilburn, Brad English & Humanities Professor $70,360 State

08/15/2005-

05/09/2018 1.000 Retirement NA

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary

Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Hovendick, Jessyca Project Coordinator NA

$34,848 

prorated 

$24,156 State

10/23/2017-

06/30/2018 1.000 New hire Special

Jersild, Craig

Assistant Coach- 

Football NA $7,712 State

06/04/2017- 

06/15/2017 1.000 Camp Duties Special

Larson, Jeff

Football Defensive 

Coordinator NA $7,712 State

06/04/2017- 

06/15/2017 1.000 Camp Duties Special

Masters, Logan

Assistant Coach- 

Football NA $7,712 State

06/04/2017- 

06/15/2017 1.000 Camp Duties Special

McCaw, Christa

Assistant Coach- 

Volleyball NA

$33,943 

prorated 

$9,832 State

9/18/2017-

12/31/2017 0.290 New hire Special

O'Daniel Tyler

Admissions 

Representative NA

$32,409 

prorated 

$22,588 State

10/20/2017-

06/30/2018 1.000 New hire Special

Parker, Samuel Academic Advisor NA $40,089 State

07/28/2016-

10/22/2017 1.000 Resignation NA

Roberts, Alva IT Specialist NA

$49,245 

prorated 

$36,000 State

10/9/2017-

06/30/2018 1.000 New hire Special

Roberts, Alva IT Technician NA $39,437 State

11/10/2014-

10/08/2017 1.000 Resignation NA

Stein, Christopher

Football Offensive 

Coordinator NA $7,712 State

06/04/2017- 

06/15/2017 1.000 Camp Duties Special

UNIONIZED PROFESSIONAL STAFF

(FULL-TIME/.75 FTE OR MORE)
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR

COLLEGE: Chadron State College

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2018

NON-UNIONIZED PROFESSIONAL STAFF

(FULL TIME/.75 FTE OR MORE)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary

Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Bren, Megan

Interim Student Activities 

Coordinator NA

$27,443 

prorated 

$19,754

Revenue 

Bond

11/1/2017-

05/15/2018 1.000 New hire Special

Gaswick, Kari Comptroller NA

$71,000 

prorated 

$47,333 State

11/01/2017-

06/30/2018 1.000 Market adjustment increase NA

Hughes, Melany Budget Director NA

$60,000 

prorated 

$40,000 State

11/01/2017-

06/30/2018 1.000 Market adjustment increase NA

Hunter, Brett Head Coach Wrestling NA $10,219 State

05/7/2017, 

05/10/2017, 

05/14/2017, 

05/21/2017, 

05/24/2017, 

05/31/2017, 

06/04/2017, 

06/07/2017, 

06/11/2017, 

06/14/2017, 

06/18/2017-

06/21/2017, 

06/25/2017, 

06/28/2017, 

07/02/2017, 

07/05/2017, 

07/09/2017, 

07/12/2017, 

07/16/2017, 

07/19/2017, 

07/23/2017 1.000 Camp Duties Special

Long, Jay Head Coach- Football NA $7,712 State

06/04/2017- 

06/15/2017 1.000 Camp Duties Special

Mullis, Riann

Head Coach- Women's 

Basketball NA $2,337 State

4,2/2017, 

07/17/2017-

07/19/2017, 

07/21/2017 1.000 Camp Duties Special
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR

COLLEGE: Chadron State College

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2018

NON-UNIONIZED PROFESSIONAL STAFF

(FULL TIME/.75 FTE OR MORE)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary

Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Parker, Samuel

Associate Director-

Residence Life NA

$46,000 

prorated 

$32,060

Revenue 

Bond

10/23/2017-

06/30/2018 1.000 New hire Special

Raymer, Janet

Head Coach- Women's 

Basketball NA $5,111 State

06/04/2017-

06/06/2017, 

06/23/2017-

06/24/2017, 

07/07/2017-

07/08/2017 1.000 Camp Duties Special

Reed, Houston

Head Coach- Men's 

Basketball NA $4,334 State

05/23/2017-

05/25/2017, 

06/02/2017-

06/03/2017, 

06/05/2017, 

06/12/2017, 

06/16/2017-

06/17/2017, 

06/19/2017, 

06/26/2017, 

07/01/2017-

07/02/2017, 

07/10/2017, 

07/17/2017 1.000 Camp Duties Special

(FULL TIME/.75 FTE OR MORE)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary

Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Grimm, Joyce OA I NA $1,786 State

07/14/2014-

11/22/2017 1.000 Termination NA

Hovendick, Jessyca OA II NA $1,993 State

07/21/2017-

10/22/2017 1.000 Resignation NA

Medigovich, Tara Custodian NA $1,746 State 11/27/2017 1.000 New Hire Probationary

Morsett, Jerri OA II NA $1,958 State

07/31/2017-

10/19/2017 1.000 Termination NA

UNIONIZED SUPPORT STAFF 
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR

COLLEGE: Chadron State College

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2018

(FULL TIME/.75 FTE OR MORE)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary

Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Risseeuw, Colby Custodian NA $1,746 

Revenue 

Bond

07/28/2016-

11/15/2017 1.000 Resignation NA

Watkins, Dustin Custodian NA $1,746 

Revenue 

Bond 11/20/2017 1.000 New Hire Probationary

Zuver, Donald MRW III NA $2,515 State 11/1/2017 1.000 New Hire Probationary

UNIONIZED SUPPORT STAFF 
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR

COLLEGE:   PERU STATE COLLEGE 

(Full-time/.75 FTE or more)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary
Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment
FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Clemente, William Arts and Sciences Professor $80,822 State 8/23/93 - 5/9/18 1.00 Retirement N/A

Gardner, John Paul Arts and Sciences

Asst. 

Professor $53,288 State 8/18/16 - 5/9/18 1.00 Resignation N/A

(Part-time/less than .75 FTE)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary
Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment
FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Anderson, Josh Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

ART 206 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Anderson, Elizabeth Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

CMIS 101 049Y (3 cr 

hr) Special

Baldwin, Rebecca Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

SPED 540 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Benscoter, Andrew Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

ENG 101 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Benscoter, Andrew Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 8/21/17 - 10/13/17 N/A

ENG 101 049X (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Betts, Gregory Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/28/17 - 11/24/17 N/A

EDUC 540 OBDX (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Betts, Gregory Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/28/17 - 11/24/17 N/A

EDUC 540 OCDX (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Betts, Gregory Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 9/30/17 - 11/24/17 N/A

EDUC 623 OCDX (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Bliss, Stacy Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

PSYC 345 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Bliss, Stacy Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

PSYC 450 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Brand, Lesa Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

EDUC 530 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Christiansen, Cori Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

PSYC 121 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Christiansen, Cori Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

PSYC 450 049W (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Christiansen, Heath Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

BUS  335 049A (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Colwell, Lisa Beaudion Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/28/17 - 11/24/17 N/A

EDUC 540 ODDX (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Falcon, Lori Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

INS 500 049S (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Friesen, Brent Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

MATH 112 049A (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Jacobsen, Linda Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

BUS 339 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

RANKED FACULTY

MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2018

NON-RANKED FACULTY
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR

COLLEGE:   PERU STATE COLLEGE 

(Part-time/less than .75 FTE)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary
Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment
FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Kramer, Melissa Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

CJUS 360 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Kuchera, Evan Adjunct N/A $3,340 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

ESCI 240 049Y (4 cr 

hrs) Special

Langstraat, Rick Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

BUS 232 049AY (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Lottman, Brent Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

CJUS 340 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Martinelli, Jason Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 8/21/17 - 10/13/17 N/A

ESCI 215 049X (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Martinelli, Jason Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

ESCI 215 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

McKee, Mary Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 9/30/17 - 10/27/17 N/A

EDUC 553 ODCX (3 cr 

hrs) Special

McKee, Mary Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 9/30/17 - 10/27/17 N/A

EDUC 553 ODDX (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Muthersbaugh, Kelly Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/28/17 - 11/24/17 N/A

EDUC 540 ODAX (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Odum, Jay Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

BUS 331 049A (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Roberts, Laura Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

PSYC 250 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Sharp, Cole Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

BUS 201 049X (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Snyder, Randall Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

MUSC 211 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Tanner, Colby Adjunct N/A $3,340 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

BIOL 130 049Y (4 cr 

hrs) Special

Tracy, Brenda Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

SPED 300 115Z (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Weichel, Mark Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 9/30/17 - 11/24/17 N/A

EDUC 623 OCCX (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Weninger, Hope Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

BUS 373 049W (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Weninger, Hope Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

BUS 373 049Y (3 cr 

hrs) Special

Woodman, Rosemary Adjunct N/A $2,505 State 10/23/17 - 12/15/17 N/A

SPED 353 000Z (3 cr 

hrs) Special

NON-RANKED FACULTY

MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2018
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR

COLLEGE:   PERU STATE COLLEGE 

UNIONIZED PROFESSIONAL STAFF

(Full-time/.75 FTE or more)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary
Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment
FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Barrett, Amy

Distance Learning 

Coordinator N/A

$32,513 (pro 

rated $18,289) State 12/4/17 - 6/30/18 1.00 New Appointment Special

Pfeifer, Stephanie

Educational Support and 

Disability Services 

Coordinator N/A

$42,856 (pro 

rated $30,357) State 10/16/17 - 6/30/18 1.00 New Appointment Special

UNIONIZED SUPPORT STAFF

(Full-time/.75 FTE or more)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary
Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment
FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Comstock, Richard MRW II N/A $2,076/mo. Rev Bond 4/8/16 - 10/31/17 1.00 Resignation N/A

Fulton, Verlin MRW III N/A $2,401/mo. State 11/1/15 - 12/8/17 1.00 Resignation N/A

Hagen, Sheena OA II N/A $1,879/mo. State 11/1/17 - 6/30/18 1.00 New Hire probationary

Harding, Jacob Custodian N/A $1,746/mo. State 11/15/17 - 6/30/18 1.00 New Hire probationary

Lewin, Elise Custodian N/A $1,746/mo. Rev Bond 9/1/17 - 9/30/17 1.00 Termination N/A

Wright, Robert Custodian N/A $1,746/mo. State 11/15/17 - 6/30/18 1.00 New Hire probationary

MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2018
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR Page 1 
COLLEGE:  Wayne State College 
MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2018 

Ranked Faculty  

(Full-Time/.75 FTE or More) 

 
Name 

 
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Christensen, Douglas Life Sciences Professor $4,100.00 Grant 10/01/17-
04/30/18 

N/A INBRE Steering 
Committee member 
for WSC 

Special 

Pearcy, Shawn Life Sciences Professor $7,000.00 Grant 10/01/17-
04/30/18 

N/A INBRE Senior 
Executive 
Committee member 
for WSC 

Special 

 

Non-Ranked Faculty  

(Part-Time/less than .75 FTE) 

 
Name 

 
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Calkin, Lauren Adjunct N/A $225.00* State 08/14/17-
08/18/17 

N/A *Assist with 
Marching Band 
Camp, up to a max 
of 15 hours at a 
rate of $15/hr. 

Special 
 

Dion, Lora Adjunct N/A $835.00 State 10/23/17-
12/15/17 

N/A GST 196B-ND01 (1 
cr hr) 

Special 

Johnson, Kathy Adjunct N/A $368.00 State 08/21/17-
12/19/17 

N/A EDU 452 (.44 cr hr)  Special 

Jorgensen, Kate Adjunct N/A $1,536.00 State 08/21/17-
12/19/17 

N/A CJA 200-01 (1.84 
cr hrs) 

Special 

Larson, Beth Adjunct N/A $1,253.00 State 08/21/17-
12/19/17 

N/A CSL 662 (1.5 cr 
hrs) 

Special 

Magnuson, Grant Adjunct N/A $2,505.00 State 10/23/17-
12/15/17 

N/A ITE 510-00W0 (3 cr 
hrs) 

Special 

Parker, Karen Adjunct N/A $835.00 State 09/26/17-
10/31/17 

N/A CIS 233-01 (1 cr hr) Special 

Tucker, Anne Adjunct N/A $835.00 State 10/23/17-
12/15/17 

N/A EDU 457/557-
00W1 (1 cr hr) 

Special 

Von Glan, Leroy Adjunct N/A $120.00* State 08/15/17-
08/18/17 

N/A *Work in Ceramics 
Lab up to a max of 
8 hours at a rate of 
$15/hr. 

Special 

Von Glan, Leroy Adjunct N/A $4,163.00* State 08/21/17-
12/19/17 

N/A *Assist as Studio 
Arts Technician up 
to a max of 277.5 
hours at a rate of 
$15/hr. 

Special 

5.1.c

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

S
C

 P
er

so
n

n
el

 R
ep

o
rt

 J
an

u
ar

y 
20

18
  (

21
27

 :
 R

ep
o

rt
s 

o
f 

P
er

so
n

n
el

 A
ct

io
n

s)



REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR Page 2 
COLLEGE:  Wayne State College 
MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2018 

 
Non-Ranked Faculty  

(Part-Time/less than .75 FTE) 

 
Name 

 
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Weber, Brad Adjunct N/A $6,380.00 State 08/21/17-
12/19/17 

N/A MUS 110-003 (3 cr 
hrs), MUS 128-
0001 (.66 cr hr), 
MUS 128-002 (1.32 
cr hrs), MUS 136-
0001 (1 cr hr), MUS 
328-0001 (.33 cr 
hr), Mus 633-0001 
(.66 cr hr), Studio 
Class (.67 cr hr) 

Special 

Weber, Brad Adjunct N/A $1,133.00* State 08/21/17-
12/19/17 

N/A *Assist with 
Marching Band up 
to a max of 75.48 
hours at a rate of 
$15/hr. 

Special 

Weber, Brad Adjunct N/A $450.00* State 08/14/17-
08/18/17 

N/A *Assist with 
Marching Band 
Camp, up to a max 
of 30 hours at a 
rate of $15/hr. 

Special 

 

Unionized Professional Staff 

(Full-Time/.75 FTE or More) 

 
Name 

 
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Curran, Benjamin Football Coordinator 
Offensive  

N/A $1,791.59 State 06/23/17-
06/27/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

DeBoer, Mitchell Comptroller N/A $18,000.00* State 10/1/17-
03/31/18 

N/A *Additional duties 
associated with 
business 
operations in the 
athletic department 

N/A 

DePew, Kimberly Assistant Coach N/A $5,168.41 State 06/28/17-
07/08/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

Hartnett, Daniel Coordinator of 
Admissions 

N/A $38,500.00; 
prorated 
$26,688.00 
 

State 10/23/17-
06/30/18 

1.0 New Appointment, 
replaced Jana 
Burns 

Special 

Honnold, Dennis Assistant Coach N/A $1,791.70 State 06/23/17-
06/27/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

5.1.c
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR Page 3 
COLLEGE:  Wayne State College 
MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2018 

 
Unionized Professional Staff 

(Full-Time/.75 FTE or More) 

 
Name 

 
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Kielsmeier, Kelly Assistant Coach N/A $1,641.76 State 05/31/17-
06/28/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

McLaughlin, Scott Football Coordinator 
Defensive 

N/A $2,398.49 State 06/23/17-
06/27/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

Meyer, Michelle Licensed Student 
Counselor 

N/A $48,269.00 State 08/23/93-
10/31/17 

0.875 Layoff N/A 

Mohlfeld, Kathy Licensed Student 
Counselor 

N/A $835.00 State 10/23/17-
12/19/17 

N/A CSL 105-02 (1 cr 
hr) 

Special 

Piekarski, Alex Assistant Coach N/A $774.73 State 07/01/17-
09/30/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

Schademann, Abby Admissions 
Representative 

N/A $34,030.00; 
prorated 
$24,878.00* 

State 10/09/17-
06/30/18 

N/A *Additional 
compensation for 
significantly 
increased job 
responsibilities 

N/A 

Schademann, Abby Admissions 
Representative 

N/A $34,030.00 State 08/17/16-
11/22/17 

1.0 Resignation N/A 

Stover, Nathan Assistant Coach N/A $933.43 State 05/30/17-
08/05/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

Voborny, Madison IT Specialist N/A $49,245.00; 
prorated 
$35,069.00 
 

State 10/16/17-
06/30/18 

1.0 New Appointment, 
replaced Karla 
Dolezal-Soukup 

Special  

 

Non-Unionized Professional Staff 

(Full-Time/.75 FTE or More) 

 
Name 

 
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Kaminsky, Jeff Head Coach N/A $929.56 State 05/30/17-
08/05/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

Kielsmeier, Chris Head Coach N/A $2,461.11 State 05/31/17-
06/28/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

Kneifl, Scott Head Coach N/A $7,713.94 State 06/28/17-
07/08/17 

N/A 2017 Summer 
Camp 

Special 

 

5.1.c

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

S
C

 P
er

so
n

n
el

 R
ep

o
rt

 J
an

u
ar

y 
20

18
  (

21
27

 :
 R

ep
o

rt
s 

o
f 

P
er

so
n

n
el

 A
ct

io
n

s)



REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR Page 4 
COLLEGE:  Wayne State College 
MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2018 

 
Non-Unionized Professional Staff 

(Part-Time/less than .75 FTE) 

   
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Finley, Shane Graduate Assistant N/A $6,400.00 State 08/01/17-
11/17/17 

N/A Resignation N/A 

Oliver, Brandon Graduate Assistant N/A $6,400.00 State 08/01/17-
08/03/17 

N/A Resignation N/A 

 
Unionized Support Staff 

(Full-Time/.75 FTE or More) 

 
Name 

 
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Bathke, Cristy Accounting Clerk II N/A $2,038.08/mo. State 11/15/17 1.0 New Hire, replaced 
Kaylen Tunink 

Probationary 

Belt, Randy Maintenance Repair 
Worker II 

N/A $2,015.92/mo. State 10/16/17 1.0 New Hire, replaced 
Sean Gansebom  

Probationary 

Lowe, Kimberlee Custodian N/A $1,995.08/mo. Revenue 
Bond 

09/17/12-
11/20/17 

1.0 Terminated N/A 

Wiggins, Jessica Accounting Clerk III N/A $2,549.75/mo. State 01/04/16-
11/10/17 

1.0 Resignation N/A 

 

Non-Unionized Support Staff 

(Full-Time/.75 FTE or more) 

 
Name 

 
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Granquist, Megan Office Assistant II N/A $2,091.17/mo. State 10/30/17 1.0 New Hire, replaced 
JoAnn Hauptmann 

Probationary 

 
 

Non-Unionized Support Staff 

(Part-Time/less than .75 FTE) 

 
Name 

 
Title/Assignment 

 
Rank 

 
Salary 

Funding 
Source 

Period of 
Employment 

 
FTE 

 
Reason for Action 

 
Type of Appointment 

Blake, Cally Office Assistant I N/A $866.67/mo. State 11/6/17 .50 New Hire, replaced 
Heather Headley 

Probationary 

5.1.c
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REPORT OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS TO THE CHANCELLOR

NEBRASKA STATE COLLEGE SYSTEM OFFICE

MEETING DATE: 1/16/2018

NON-UNIONIZED PROFESSIONAL STAFF

(PART TIME/LESS THAN .75 FTE)

Name Title/Assignment Rank Salary Funding 

Source

Period of 

Employment

FTE Reason for Action Type of Appointment

Dunbar, Shelley Temporary Worker NA $800 State

12/1/17-

12/31/17 N/A $20/hr not to exceed $800 NA

Simons, Sheryl Temporary Worker NA $3,500 State 12/1/17-1/31/18 N/A

$35/hr not to exceed 

$3,500 NA

1

5.1.d
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ITEMS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION\ACADEMIC AND PERSONNEL 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 11/27/2017 4:05 PM  Page 1 

INFORMATION ONLY: Foundation Employee Compensation Report 
 
 
 
The Peru State College Foundation employee compensation report is provided to the Board for 
information. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 PSC Foundation Employee Compensation Report (PDF) 

5.2
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Peru State College Foundation 
 

Employee Name Rank or Position FTE 2017 Salary 
Salary 
Increase 2018 Salary Notes 

Cole, Kelly Office Manager 1 $39,000.00  $39,000.00  

Jewell, Rebecca Advancement Officer 1 $72,040.00  $72,040.00  

Neveau, Annie Program Specialist 1 $32,000.00  $32,000.00  

Simpson, R. Todd Chief Executive Officer 1 $140,000.00  $140,000.00  

Solie, Deborah Director of Alumni Relations and Annual Giving 1 $60,000.00 $2,000.00 $62,000.00  
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ITEMS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION\STUDENT AFFAIRS, MARKETING, 
AND ENROLLMENT 

  
January 16, 2018 

 
 
  
   

Updated: 12/20/2017 8:36 AM  Page 1 

INFORMATION ONLY: Marketing Activities and Events Update 
 
 
 
Scholarship Luncheon 
 
This year the Nebraska State College System will be hosting two (2) scholarship luncheons for 
recipients of the Board of Trustees scholarships and the Governor's Opportunity Awards with 
one in Lincoln and one in Chadron. The Lincoln luncheon will take place on Friday, April 27 at 
Wilderness Ridge. The Chadron luncheon will take place on Friday, April 13 at Chadron State 
College. We are offering two events this year to accommodate students from the western side 
of the state. All students will still have the option to attend the Lincoln luncheon. We are excited 
to see attendance improve from Chadron State College Board of Trustees Scholarship and 
Governor's Opportunity Award recipients. 
 
Student Trustee Selection 
 
Jon Hansen, CSC; Jesse Dorman, PSC; and Jeff Carstens, WSC, will coordinate the 2018-2019 
Student Trustees' nomination process at their respective Colleges. The nominations will be sent 
to the NSCS Office and will be forwarded to the office of Governor Ricketts. The appointed 
students along with College personnel will be notified of the Governor's selections upon receipt 
of the information. 

 
Important Dates: 
 
Senator's Reception - January 16, 2018 
 
Scholarship Luncheon (Chadron) - April 13, 2018 
 
Scholarship Luncheon (Lincoln) - April 27, 2018 

6.1
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ITEMS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION\STUDENT AFFAIRS, MARKETING, 
AND ENROLLMENT 

  
January 16, 2018 

 
 
  
   

Updated: 12/19/2017 11:31 AM  Page 1 

INFORMATION ONLY: Fall Enrollment Reports 
 
 
 
Fall enrollment reports from each of the Colleges are provided to the Board for information. 
 
 2016 FTE 

Enrollment 

2017 FTE 

Enrollment 

Percent 

Change 

2016 

Headcount 

2017 

Headcount 

Percent 

Change 

Chadron 2,126 1,990 -6.40% 2,998 2,772 -7.54% 

Peru 1,609 1,466 -8.86% 2,584 2,348 -9.13% 

Wayne 2,740 2,676 -2.34% 3,361 3,306 -1.64% 

System 

Total 

6,475 6,132 -5.30% 8,943 8,426 -5.78% 

 

 

 % of Full-Time 

Students 

(Headcount) 

% of 

Undergraduate 

Students 

(Headcount) 

% of On-Campus 

Students 

(Headcount) 

% of Resident 

Students 

(Headcount) 

Chadron 62% 79% 54% 56% 

Peru 49% 87% 39% 80% 

Wayne 77% 84% 78% 84% 

2017 System 

Totals 

68% 83% 59% 74% 

2016 System 

Totals 

63% 83% 58% 72% 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 CSC End of Term Enrollment-Fall 2017 (PDF) 

 PSC End of Term Enrollment-Fall 2017 (PDF) 

 WSC End of Term Enrollment--Fall 2017 (PDF) 

 System Fall Enrollment Report (PDF) 

6.2

Packet Pg. 213



END OF TERM ENROLLMENT REPORT*

CHADRON STATE COLLEGE

TERM: Fall 2017

Percent Full Part FTE FTE

Type of Instruction 2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017

Lower Division 1228 1092 -11% 812 280 919 846

Upper Division 1124 1088 -3% 802 286 918 884

Graduate Division 646 592 -8% 104 488 289 260

TOTALS 2,998 2,772 -8% 1,718 1,054 2,126 1,990

Change Percent

Degree Seeking 2,561 2,399 -6.33% in FTE Change

Non-Degree Seeking 437 373 -14.65% -136 -6.40%

Percent Full Part FTE FTE

Class Location 2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017

On-Campus Students

Undergrads 1,547 1,460 -6% 1,387 73 1,435 1,375

Graduates 30 46 53% 22 24 20 26

TOTALS 1,577 1,506 -5% 1,409 97 1,455 1,401

Off-Campus Students

Undergrads 805 720 -11% 227 493 402 355

Graduates 616 546 -11% 82 464 269 234

TOTALS 1,421 1,266 -11% 309 957 671 589

Percent Full Part FTE FTE

Resident Status 2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017

Resident Students

Undergrads 1,335 1,253 -6% 854 399 987 939

Graduates 289 293 1% 44 249 127 122

TOTALS 1,624 1,546 -5% 898 648 1,114 1,061

Non-Resident Students

Undergrads 1,017 927 -9% 760 167 850 792

Graduates 357 299 -16% 60 239 162 137

TOTALS 1,374 1,226 -11% 820 406 1,012 929

Headcount

Headcount

Headcount

*Class Location is determined by course format.  "On-campus" students are taking at least one face-to-face course.  

"Off-Campus" students are taking courses through other delivery formats, including online and additional location courses.

Oct. 13, 1978

Revised: Dec. 1982; Dec. 1990; May 1997; Aug. 2002
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END OF TERM ENROLLMENT REPORT

PERU STATE COLLEGE

TERM:  2017 FALL

Percent Full Part FTE FTE

Type of Instruction 2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017

Lower Division 1378 1257 -9% 529 728 773 690

Upper Division 845 785 -7% 547 238 654 620

Graduate Division 361 306 -15% 75 231 181 156

TOTALS 2,584 2,348 -9.13% 1,151 1,197 1,609 1,466

Change Percent

in FTE Change

-143 -8.86%

Percent Full Part FTE FTE

Class Location 2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017

On-Campus Students

Undergrads 1,006 919 -9% 846 73 927 856

Graduates 1 6 0% 0 6 0 1

TOTALS 1,007 925 -8.14% 846 79 927 858

Off-Campus Students

Undergrads 1,217 1,123 -8% 230 893 500 454

Graduates 360 300 -17% 75 225 181 154

TOTALS 1,577 1,423 -10% 305 1,118 681 608

Percent Full Part FTE FTE

Resident Status 2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017

Resident Students

Undergrads 1,729 1,626 -6% 754 872 1,034 966

Graduates 292 250 -14% 61 189 146 126

TOTALS 2,021 1,876 -7% 815 1,061 1,180 1,092

Non-Resident Students

Undergrads 494 416 -16% 322 94 393 344

Graduates 69 56 -19% 14 42 35 30

TOTALS 563 472 -16% 336 136 428 374

Headcount

Headcount

Headcount

*Totaling errors may occur as a result of rounding
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END OF TERM ENROLLMENT REPORT

WAYNE STATE COLLEGE

TERM:  2017 FALL

Percent Full Part FTE FTE

Type of Instruction 2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017

Lower Division 1,489 1,454 -2% 1,271 183 1,281 1,268

Upper Division 1,347 1,311 -3% 1,132 179 1,219 1,167

Graduate Division 525 541 3% 133 408 240 241

TOTALS 3,361 3,306 -2% 2,536 770 2,740 2,676

Change Percent

in FTE Change

-64 -2.34%

Percent Full Part FTE FTE

Class Location* 2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017

On-Campus Students

Undergrads 2,576 2,503 -3% 2,360 143 2,423 2,340

Graduates 71 65 -8% 20 45 39 36

TOTALS 2,647 2,568 -3% 2,380 188 2,462 2,376

Off-Campus Students

Undergrads 260 262 1% 43 219 77 95

Graduates 454 476 5% 113 363 201 205

TOTALS 714 738 3% 156 582 278 300

Percent Full Part FTE FTE

Resident Status 2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017

Resident Students

Undergrads 2,446 2,363 -3% 2,031 332 2,143 2,069

Graduates 389 426 10% 97 329 171 185

TOTALS 2,835 2,789 -2% 2,128 661 2,314 2,254

Non-Resident Students

Undergrads 390 402 3% 372 30 357 366

Graduates 136 115 -15% 36 79 69 56

TOTALS 526 517 -2% 408 109 426 422

NOTE:  Beginning in Fall 2012, Undergrad/Grad breakdowns now follow IPEDS definitions 
where students who have already earned a bachelor's degree but are taking undergraduate courses 
for credit are included as undergraduates.   In past years, all Post-baccs were counted as Graduates.

Headcount

Headcount

Headcount

Oct. 13, 1978

Revised: Dec. 1982; Dec. 1990; May 1997; Aug. 2002

6.2.c

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

S
C

 E
n

d
 o

f 
T

er
m

 E
n

ro
llm

en
t-

-F
al

l 2
01

7 
 (

21
19

 :
 F

al
l E

n
ro

llm
en

t 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



System-wide End of Term Enrollment Report 

Fall 2017 

 

  2016 FTE Enrollment 
2017 FTE 

Enrollment Change in FTE % Change 

Chadron 2,126 1,990 -136 -6.40% 

Peru 1,609 1,466 -143 -8.86% 

Wayne 2,740 2,676 -64 -2.34% 

SystemTotals 6,475 6,132 -343 -5.29% 

 

 
 

 Fall 2017 Student Demogrphics by College  

     

  
% Full-time Students 
(HeadCount) 

% Undergraduate 
Students 
(Headcount) 

% On-Campus 
Students 
(Headcount) 

% In-State Students 
(Headcount) 

Chadron 62% 79% 54% 56% 

Peru 49% 87% 39% 80% 

Wayne 77% 84% 78% 84% 

System 64% 83% 55% 74% 
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System-Wide Summary Enrollment Report – Fall 2017 

 

Type of Instruction 

Headcount Percent Full Part FTE FTE 

2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017 

Lower Division 4,095 3,803 -7% 2,612 1,191 2,973 2,804 

Upper Division 3,316 3,184 -4% 2,481 703 2,791 2,671 

Graduate Division 1,532 1,439 -6% 312 1,127 710 657 

TOTALS 8,943 8,426 -6% 5,405 3,021 6,475 6,132 

      Change 
in FTE 

Percent 
Change       

      -343 -5.29% 

          

          

Class Location 

Headcount Percent Full Part FTE FTE 

2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017 

On-Campus Students          

Undergrads 5,129 4,882 -5% 4,593 289 4,785 4,571 

Graduates 102 117 15% 42 75 59 63 

TOTALS 4,865 4,641 -5% 4,635 364 4,844 4,635 

Off-Campus Students            

Undergrads 2,282 2,105 -8% 500 1,605 979 904 

Graduates 1,430 1,322 -8% 270 1,052 651 593 

TOTALS 3,712 3,427 -8% 770 2,657 1,630 1,497 

          

          

          

Resident Status 

Headcount Percent Full Part FTE FTE 

2016 2017 Change Time Time 2016 2017 

Resident Students           

Undergrads 5,510 5,242 -5% 3,639 1,603 4,164 3,974 

Graduates 970 969 0% 202 767 444 433 

TOTALS 6,480 6,211 -4% 3,841 2,370 4,608 4,407 

Non-Resident 
Students          

Undergrads 1,901 1,745 -8% 1,454 291 1,600 1,502 

Graduates 562 470 -16% 110 360 266 223 

TOTALS 2,463 2,215 -10% 1,564 651 1,866 1,725 
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ITEMS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION\STUDENT AFFAIRS, MARKETING, 
AND ENROLLMENT 

  
January 16, 2018 

 
 
  
   

Updated: 1/4/2018 1:21 PM  Page 1 

INFORMATION ONLY: Chancellor's Summary Report 
 
 
 
The Chancellor's Summary Report (CSR) was developed to provide data regarding the NSCS in 
a summary format for the Board of Trustees and the general public. The data is a snapshot of 
information taken from various reports submitted by the Colleges at different times during the 
year. 
 
Data on the report indicates that systemwide enrollment decreased at the undergraduate level 
with an increase at the graduate level when compared to enrollment numbers from last year. 
When combined, there has been a slight decrease (-0.32 percent) of the total undergraduate 
and graduate enrollment compared to data reported last year. 
 
The Colleges continue their efforts toward improving the retention and graduation rates of their 
students. The freshmen retention rates are reported for first-time full-time freshmen (those 
enrolling Fall 2015 and returning Fall 2016). The systemwide retention rate is sixty five percent 
(65%), which is a decrease of one percent (-1%) from last year. 
 
The success rates that are reported represent the entering class for Fall 2010, which includes 
full- and part-time students as well as transfer students. The systemwide success rate is eighty 
three percent (83%) which is consistent across several years. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Chancellor's Summary Report (PDF) 
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Chancellor’s Summary Report 

2017 
 

Enrollment by Headcount - Fall 2016 
 

Undergraduate 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

Fall 2016 Total 2352 2223 2836 7411 

1-year Change -1.09% 1.39% -1.46% -0.50% 

5-year Change -0.19% 2.23% -3.13% -0.64% 

On Campus 1547 1006 2576 5129 

Off Campus 805 1217 260 2282 

  

Graduate 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

Fall 2016 Total 646 361 525 1532 

1-year Change 0.94% 1.83% -0.76% 0.56% 

5-year Change 0.16% 15.89% -1.32% 2.92% 

On Campus 30 1 71 102 

Off Campus 616 360 454 1430 

  

Total 2016 Headcount 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

Total 2016 Headcount 2998 2584 3361 8943 

System 1-Year Change -0.32% 

System 5-Year Change -0.04% 

Sources:  Enrollment Reports Fall 2016; Fall 2015; Fall 2012 

 

Enrollment by FTE - Fall 2016 
 

Undergraduate 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

Fall 2016 Total 1837 1427 2500 5764 

1-year Change -2.29% 0.99% -2.40% -1.55% 

5-year Change -2.34% 0.42% -5.05% -2.93% 

On Campus 1435 927 2423 4785 

Off Campus 402 500 77 979 

  

Graduate 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

Fall 2016 Total 289 181 240 710 

1-year Change 1.58% -1.63% 1.69% 0.78% 

5-year Change -1.20% 16.77% 0.63% 3.50% 

On Campus 20 0 39 59 

Off Campus 269 181 201 651 

  

Total 2016 FTE 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

Total 2016 FTE 2126 1608 2740 6474 

System 1-Year Change -1.30% 

System 5-Year Change -2.26% 

Sources:  Enrollment Reports Fall 2016; Fall 2015; Fall 2012 
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Student Credit Hour Production - Fall 2016 

 CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

On Campus 17,962.00  11,169.00 34,360.00  63,491.00  

Off Campus    933.00   1,930.00    1,794.00    4,657.00  

Online/Hybrid 12,119.00  10,491.00     4,171.50   26,781.50  

Other Asynchronous         12.00             -            55.00            67.00  

Total 31,026.00 23,590.00  40,380.50    94,996.50  

1-year Change -1.86% 0.77% -2.11% -1.33% 

5-year Change -1.29% 1.30% -4.12% -1.90% 

Sources:  Fall Instructional Load Reports 2016; 2015; 2012 

 

Faculty FTE – Fall 2016 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

Full-time Faculty FTE 100.4 53 116.6 270 

Adjunct Faculty FTE 19.5 45 48.3 112.8 

Graduate Assistants FTE 0.3 0 4.2 4.5 

Total 120.2 98 169.1 387.3 

Student FTE 2126 1615 2740 6481 

Faculty Student Ratio 17:1 16:1 16:1 N/A 

Sources:  Fall Instructional Load Reports 2016 

 

Annual Graduation Summary (Spring 2016-December 2016) 
Degrees Awarded 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

Baccalaureate Degrees 387 285 602 1274 

Graduate Degrees 179 143 200 522 

Total 566 428 802 1796 

Source:  Spring 2016 and Fall 2016 Graduation Summaries 

Retention Rates (First to Second Year) 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

Percent Returning 64% 64% 67% 65% 

One Year Change -1% 11% -1% -1% 

Sources:  As reported by college staff for first time/full time freshman for 
2015 cohort  Fall 2015 to Fall 2016, as reported to IPEDS. 

 

 

Graduation Rates  

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

% Graduate in 6 Years 43% 35% 48% 44% 

One Year Change 2% -1% -2% 0% 

Sources:  As reported by college staff for first time/full time freshman for 2010 
cohort graduating within 6 years, as reported to IPEDS. 

 

 

Success Rates 

  CSC PSC WSC NSCS 

% Graduate in 6 Years* 44% 44%  50% 47% 

Good Standing** 34% 29%  39% 36% 

Success Rate 78% 73%  90% 83% 

Source:  As reported by college institutional research staff. 

*Includes full and part time freshman and transfers for the 2010 cohort 
graduating within 6 years. 

** Includes full and part time, first-time freshman and transfers still enrolled or 
left the institution but are eligible to re-enroll or enroll elsewhere or have 
already transferred to another institution. 
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Cost of Attendance 2017-18 

NSCS Tuition Rate (Per Credit Hour) 

Undergraduate $172.00 

Graduate Resident $215.00 

Undergraduate Non-Res $344.00 

Graduate Non-Res $430.00 

PSC & CSC UG, Non-Res $173.00 

Approved June 16, 2017 Board of Trustees meeting. 

 

NSCS Online Rate (in-state and out-of-state students) 

Online Undergraduate $279.00 

Online Graduate $348.75 

 

Room and Board (Per Semester - Double Room) 

  CSC PSC WSC 

Room $1,681.00 $2,161.00 $1,820.00 

Board $1,654.00 $1,654.00 $1,895.00 

Approved March 24, 2017 Board of Trustees meeting. 

Board based upon 14 or 15 Meal/7 day plan. 

 

Fees (Mandatory) 2017-2018 Academic Year 

  CSC PSC WSC 

Health Service $53.40 $75.00 $63.00 

Capital Improvement Fee $165.00 $165.00 $165.00 

Facilities Fee $315.00 $420.00 $255.00 

Student Activity Fee $84.00 $90.00 $75.00 

Event Fee $162.00 $116.25 $135.00 

Technology Fee $150.00 $151.50 $123.75 

Record/Publication  $6.15 $15.00 $15.00 

Total $935.55 $1,032.75 $831.75 

Approved June 16, 2017 Board of Trustees meeting. 

 

Approximate Total Annual Cost of Attendance (2017-18) 

  CSC PSC WSC 

Tuition $5,160.00 $5,160.00 $5,160.00 

Mandatory Fees $1,871.10 $2,065.50 $1,663.50 

Room & Board $6,670.00 $7,630.00 $7,430.00 

Total $13,701.10 $14,855.50 $14,253.50 

Based upon 30 credit hours - resident undergraduate. 

 

General Fund Appropriations per Nebraska State College System Student FTE 

  FY2011-12 FY2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 

General Fund Appropriation $44,846,037 $45,450,893 $47,496,183 $49,396,030 $50,877,911 $50,308,078 

FTE Students* 7,162 7,175 7,268 7,137 7,067 6,881 

GF Appropriation/FTE Student $6,262 $6,335 $6,535 $6,921 $7,199 $7,311 

Increase Over Prior Year -0.81% 1.17% 3.16% 5.91% 4.02% 1.55% 

*From Supplemental Budget Reports, Annual FTE     
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ITEMS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION\FISCAL, FACILITIES, AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 1/4/2018 1:22 PM  Page 1 

INFORMATION ONLY: Grant Applications and Awards for Information 
 
 
 
The following grant application and award are provided to the Board for information. 
 
Wayne State Application 

 Nebraska Business Development Center (U.S. Small Business Administration) -- 
$65,000 

 
Wayne State Award 

 Nebraska Research Network in Functional Genomics (National Institutes of Health) - 
additional $5,125 for award period 5/17-4/18 bringing total to $37,375 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 WSC Grant Application-NBDC 2018 (PDF) 

 WSC Grant Additional Award-INBRE (PDF) 
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NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPLY FOR, OR TO ACCEPT, AWARDS OF NON-STATE CONTRACTS OR GRANTS 

 
 
College:  Wayne State College 

 
Date: January 16, 2018  

 
Notice of Intent 

 
Application:  X 

 
Accept Award:  

 
Name of Program: Nebraska Business Development Center  

 
Funding Source: U.S. Small Business Administration  

Also indicate if the source is federal, state or private:  Federal 

 
Is this grant a Sub-Award? 

 
Yes:  X 

 
No:   

 
If a sub-award, indicate the agency the sub-award is through: University of Nebraska at Omaha 
   
 
Amount Requested:  $65,000 

 
Amount Awarded:  

 
Funding Period: 01/01/18-12/31/18  

Please indicate specific dates for the 
grant.  

 
Closing Date for Application Submission:   

 
When reporting Grant Award-- 
Has Grant Application been approved/reviewed by the Board?  

 
Date Approved/Reviewed: 

 
Does this grant include Indirect Cost Funds for the College's use? 

 
Yes: 

 
No:  X 

 
If yes, indicate dollar amount and/or percentage rate allowed:   
 
 
Will this grant require State Matching Funds? 

 
Yes:  X 

 
No:   

 
If yes, indicate dollar amount and specific uses of funds (i.e., salaries, honorariums, travel, office supplies, phone, 
postage, space rental, equipment, etc.): Matching funds of $18,971 includes a portion of salary and benefits of the 
director as well as communications, supplies and travel expenses. 
 
Will this grant require In-Kind Support? 

 
Yes:  X 

 
No:   

 
If yes, describe briefly (i.e., faculty release time, support personnel, use of office space, telephone, office supplies, 
etc.): In-Kind support includes the College’s indirect cost rate with the U.S. Small Business Administration. 
 
Is State Maintenance of Effort or Future Fiscal Responsibility required? 

 
Yes:  

 
No: X 

If yes, describe briefly  

 
Are there restrictions imposed by regulation on claiming indirect costs? 

 
Yes: 

 
No:  X 

 
How many FTE positions will the grant fund? 

 
FTE:  0.91 

 
How many of these are new positions? 

 
New FTE:  0.00 

 
Briefly describe the purpose(s) of this application/award:  This proposed subagreement with the University of 
Nebraska-Omaha would provide funding to continue the operation of a regional center of the Nebraska Business 
Development Center at Wayne State College. It would provide partial funding for salary and benefit costs of the 
director. 
 
Is this grant a continuation of a previous/existing grant? 

 
Yes: 

 
No: X 

 
If a continuation grant, describe the previous grant in terms of amount, funding period, and any differences in 
program: While not technically a continuation, this subcontract would continue to fund the Nebraska Business 
Development Center at Wayne as it has for a number of years. 
 
Has this grant application been previously denied? 

 
Yes: 

 
No: X 

 
If yes, please state the reason: 

Person responsible for the preparation of the application: Mr. Loren Kucera, Director of Nebraska Business 
Development Center 

 
Administrator responsible for approving the application: Ms. Angie Fredrickson, Vice President, Administration and 
Finance 
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NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPLY FOR, OR TO ACCEPT, AWARDS OF NON-STATE CONTRACTS OR GRANTS 

 
 
College: :  Wayne State College  

 
Date:  January 16, 2018 

 
Notice of Intent 

 
Application:   

 
Accept Award:  X 

 
Name of Program: Nebraska Research Network in Functional Genomics 
 
Funding Source: National Institutes of Health 

Also indicate if the source is federal, state or private  Federal 
 
Is this grant a Sub-Award? 

 
Yes: X  

 
No:   

 
If a sub-award, indicate the agency the sub-award is through: University of Nebraska Medical Center 
   
 
Amount Requested: $248,250 over 
the 5 year period   

 
Amount Awarded: Additional 
$5,125 for award period 5/17-4/18 
bringing total to $37,375 

 
Funding Period: 07/01/15-04/30/20 

Please indicate specific dates for 
the grant. 

 
Closing Date for Application Submission:   
 
When reporting Grant Award-- 
Has Grant Application been approved/reviewed by the Board?   Yes  

 
Date Approved/Reviewed: 9/6/14 

 
Does this grant include Indirect Cost Funds for the College's use? 

 
Yes: X 

 
No:   

If yes, indicate dollar amount and/or percentage rate allowed: 40% of direct salaries and wages including all fringe 
benefits  
 
Will this grant require State Matching Funds? 

 
Yes:   

 
No:  X 

 
If yes, indicate dollar amount and specific uses of funds (i.e., salaries, honorariums, travel, office supplies, phone, 
postage, space rental, equipment, etc.):   
 
Will this grant require In-Kind Support? 

 
Yes:  

 
No: X  

 
If yes, describe briefly (i.e., faculty release time, support personnel, use of office space, telephone, office 
supplies, etc.):  
 
Is State Maintenance of Effort or Future Fiscal Responsibility required? 

 
Yes:  

 
No: X 

If yes, describe briefly  

 
Are there restrictions imposed by regulation on claiming indirect costs? 

 
Yes: X 

 
No:   

 
How many FTE positions will the grant fund? 

 
FTE:  0.74 

 
How many of these are new positions? 

 
New FTE:  0.06 

 
Briefly describe the purpose(s) of this application/award: The additional funds will provide for salary and benefit 
costs for an additional faculty member with INBRE Grant responsibilities as of 10/01/2017.  Dr. Shawn Pearcy’s 
INBRE Grant duties changed from WSC Steering Committee member to WSC Senior Executive Committee 
member and Dr. Douglas Christensen has now assumed the WSC Steering Committee member responsibilities 
for managing all INBRE activities on the Wayne State College campus. 
 
Is this grant a continuation of a previous/existing grant? 

 
Yes: 

 
No: X 

 
If a continuation grant, describe the previous grant in terms of amount, funding period, and any differences in 
program: While not technically a continuation, this subaward funds another five year phase of the IDeA Networks 
of Biomedical Research Excellence (INBRE) grants awarded for the periods 05/09-05/14 and 09/04-04/09 and the 
Biomedical Research Infrastructure Network (BRIN) grant from 09/01-09/04. 
 
Has this grant application been previously denied? 

 
Yes: X 

 
No:  

 
If yes, please state the reason: This was a revised resubmission of a proposal by UNMC, with Wayne State 
College as a participant, which was not funded for 2014-2015. 

Person responsible for the preparation of the application:Dr. Shawn Pearcy, Professor, Life Sciences Department  
 
Administrator responsible for approving the application: : Ms. Angie Fredrickson, Vice President, Administration 
and Finance   
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ITEMS FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION\FISCAL, FACILITIES, AND AUDIT 
  

January 16, 2018 
 

 
  
   

Updated: 1/4/2018 1:23 PM  Page 1 

INFORMATION ONLY: Contracts and Change Orders for Information 
 
 
 
The following contracts and change orders are provided to the Board for information. 
 

Chadron State Contracts 

 Crites Hall (design ADA ramp/entrance) -- $7,500 

 Student Center (lighting upgrade design) -- $18,500 

 King Library (lighting upgrade design) -- $17,500 
 
 
Peru State Contracts 

 Administration (consulting services) - not to exceed $20,400 

 Oak Bowl (construction drawings) -- $4,570 

 Administration (consulting services Addendum I) - not to exceed $34,500 

 Student Center (replace condensate lines) -- $16,687 
 
Peru State Change Order 

 Delzell Hall (#10-revise TIR optics from “medium” to “flood” beam distribution at 
printer area at corridor #136 and tack wall area at north wall of corridor 002; rebuild 
base of truss support; infill existing air intake holes at terrazzo base and provide 
shelving in pantry #131A) -- $6,682 

 
 
Wayne State Contracts 

 Student Center (air handling units evaluation) -- $6,000 

 Rec Center Room 202 (remove old carpet, install new) -- $864 

 Central Energy Plant (energy study) -- $4,500 plus reimbursable expenses not to 
exceed $500 

 Anderson Hall (construct wood ramp) -- $2,968 

 Neihardt Hall (engineering and design services for fire alarm replacement) -- 
$16,000 plus reimbursable expenses not to exceed $300 

 Connell Hall (professional services for windows/entry/south ornamental wood 
replacement) -- $50,200 plus reimbursable expenses not to exceed $1,600 

 Campuswide (parking lot/visitor parking signs) -- $3,942.39 

 Bowen Hall (connect door strikes to fire alarm system) -- $560 

 Bowen Hall (remove fencing and concrete east of building) -- $1,850 

 Bowen Hall (connect card reader system to north elevator) -- $4,212.16 
 
Wayne State Change Orders 

 Bowen Hall (#18-terazzo patch; mag hold ext.; drywall changes; doorframes; paint 
touchup; and credits for seeding, door stops/grab bars and casework locks) -- 
$14,296.87 
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 Bowen Hall (#2-upgrade north elevator motor) -- $9,687.88 

 Bowen Hall (#19-spray foam at 4 study alcoves and toilet partition changes) -- 
$4,168.31 

 
 
Nebraska State College System Contract 

 Wayne State College (internal control review) -- $250-$300 per hour; not to exceed 
$5,000 

 Peru and Wayne State Colleges (search firm for comptroller positions) -- $54,000 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 CSC Contracts and Change Orders for Information (PDF) 

 PSC Contracts and Change Orders for Information (PDF) 

 WSC Contracts and Change Orders for Information (PDF) 

 NSCS Contracts and Change Orders for Information (PDF) 
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CHADRON STATE COLLEGE January 16, 2018 
CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS FOR INFORMATION 
  
CONTRACTS – a) construction contracts for less than $100,000; b) architect/engineer fees of 
less than $65,000; c) consultant contracts for less than $70,000 (between $35,000 and $70,000 
must have Chancellor’s approval); d) exempt contracts over $50,000; e) legal counsel, auditor, 
lobbyist and search consultant contracts for durations greater than 5 days, requiring Chancellor’s 
approval; and f) contracts that the Board has authorized the Chancellor to approve. 
 

Chadron State College 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Crites Hall 
Design ADA ramp/entrance 
$7,500 
Contingency Maintenance 
Lee Davies, Architect 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Student Center 
Lighting Upgrade Design 
$18,500 
Contingency Maintenance 
Olsson Associates 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

King Library 
Lighting Upgrade Design 
$17,500 
LB309 
Olsson Associates 
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CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS FOR INFORMATION 
  
CONTRACTS – a) construction contracts for less than $100,000; b) architect/engineer fees of 
less than $65,000; c) consultant contracts for less than $70,000 (between $35,000 and $70,000 
must have Chancellor’s approval); d) exempt contracts over $50,000; e) legal counsel, auditor, 
lobbyist and search consultant contracts for durations greater than 5 days, requiring Chancellor’s 
approval; and f) contracts that the Board has authorized the Chancellor to approve. 
 

Peru State College 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Administration  
Consulting Services 
Not to exceed: $20,400.00  
Cash Funds 
Financial Aid Services, Inc.  

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Oak Bowl 
Construction Drawings 
$4,570.00 
Cash Funds 
Big Muddy Workshop, Inc.  

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Administration  
Consulting Services 
Not to exceed: $34,500.00  
Cash Funds 
Financial Aid Services, Inc., Addendum I 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Student Center 
Replace Condensate Lines 
$16,687.00 
Cash Funds 
Grunwald Mechanical Contractors and Engineers 

 
CHANGE ORDERS – (including architect/engineer fees, construction contracts, equipment 
purchases and all other miscellaneous expenditures) which are equal to $50,000.  If approval of 
change order is critical to project schedule, $50,000 to $100,000 range change orders may be 
approved by the Chancellor and reported for ratification at the next Board meeting. 
 

Peru State College 

Location on Campus: 
No. & Description: 
 
 
 
 
Change Order Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Delzell Hall 
#10 – Revise TIR Optics from “Medium” to “Flood” beam distribution at 
printer area at corridor #136 and tack wall area at north wall of corridor 002.  
Rebuild base of truss support as shown on drawing from Ing-Wah Lin, 
structural engineer.  Infill existing air intake holes at terrazzo base.  Provide 
shelving in pantry #131A, as shown in plan 8/A2.1.   
$6,682.00 
Bond Proceeds  
F & B Constructors, Inc.  
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CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS FOR INFORMATION 
  
CONTRACTS – a) construction contracts for less than $100,000; b) architect/engineer fees of 
less than $65,000; c) consultant contracts for less than $70,000 (between $35,000 and $70,000 
must have Chancellor’s approval); d) exempt contracts over $50,000; e) legal counsel, auditor, 
lobbyist and search consultant contracts for durations greater than 5 days, requiring 
Chancellor’s approval; and f) contracts that the Board has authorized the Chancellor to approve. 
 
 

Wayne State College 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Student Center 
Air Handling Units Evaluation 
$6,000.00 
Revenue Bond 
Morrissey Engineering, Inc., Omaha, NE 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Rec Center-Room 202 
Remove old carpet, install new 
$864.00 
Cash/Revenue Bond 
Phipps Commercial Flooring, Wayne, NE 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Central (Energy) Plant 
Energy Study 
$4,500.00 plus reimbursable expenses not to exceed $500.00 
LB 309 
Alvine Engineering, Lincoln, NE 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Anderson Hall 
Construct wood ramp 
$2,968.00 
Revenue Bond 
Christiansen Construction Co., Pender, NE 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Neihardt Hall  
Engineering & Design Services for Fire Alarm Replacement 
$16,000.00 plus reimbursable expenses not to exceed $300.00 
Contingency Maintenance 
Farris Engineering, Lincoln, NE 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Connell Hall  
Professional Services-Windows/Entry/S. Ornamental Wood Replacement 
$50,200.00 plus reimbursable expenses not to exceed $1,600.00 
LB 309 
Jackson-Jackson & Associates, Omaha, NE 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Campus-Wide 
Parking lot/visitor parking signs 
$3,942.39 
Revenue Bond 
Love Signs, Inc., Norfolk, NE 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Bowen Hall 
Connect door strikes to fire alarm system 
$560.00 
Revenue Bond 
Electronic Systems, Hastings, NE 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Bowen Hall 
Remove fencing and concrete east of building 
$1,850.00 
Revenue Bond 
Robbie Gamble Landscapes, Wayne, NE 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Bowen Hall 
Connect card reader system to N. elevator 
$4,212.16 
Revenue Bond 
Eletech, Inc., Omaha, NE 
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CHANGE ORDERS – (including architect/engineer fees, construction contracts, equipment 
purchases and all other miscellaneous expenditures) which are less than $50,000.  If approval 
of change order is critical to project schedule, $50,000 to $100,000 range change orders may 
be approved by the Chancellor and reported for ratification at the next Board meeting. 
 
 

Wayne State College 

Location on Campus: 
No. & Description: 
 
Change Order Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Bowen Hall 
#18, Terazzo patch, mag hold ext., drywall changes, doorframes, paint touchup, 

and credits for seeding, door stops/grab bars, & casework locks. 

$14,296.87 
Revenue Bond Construction Fund 
Hausmann Construction, Inc., Lincoln, NE 

Location on Campus: 
No. & Description: 
Change Order Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Bowen Hall  
#2, Upgrade North Elevator motor 
$9,687.88 
Revenue Bond Construction Fund 
Eletech, Inc., Omaha, NE 

Location on Campus: 
No. & Description: 
Change Order Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Bowen Hall 
#19, Spray foam at 4 study alcoves & toilet partition changes 
$4,168.31 
Revenue Bond Construction Fund 
Hausmann Construction, Inc., Lincoln, NE 
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CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS FOR INFORMATION 
  
CONTRACTS – a) construction contracts for less than $100,000; b) architect/engineer fees of 
less than $65,000; c) consultant contracts for less than $70,000 (between $35,000 and $70,000 
must have Chancellor’s approval); d) exempt contracts over $50,000; e) legal counsel, auditor, 
lobbyist and search consultant contracts for durations greater than 5 days, requiring 
Chancellor’s approval; and f) contracts that the Board has authorized the Chancellor to approve. 
 

Nebraska State College System 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Wayne State College 
Internal control review for Wayne State College 
$250 - $300/hour; not to exceed $5,000 
Cash 
BKD , LLP 

Location on Campus: 
Contracted Work: 
Contract Amount: 
Fund Source: 
Contractor: 

Peru State and Wayne State Colleges 
Search Firm for Comptroller Positions 
$54,000 
Cash 
Lutz Talent, LLC 
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Chancellor’s Report 
January Board of Trustees Meeting 
Nebraska State College System 
 

Winter Commencement  

Wayne State College held its winter commencement ceremony on December 15, 2017. 46 
graduate and 159 undergraduate degrees were awarded. Cap Peterson provided the welcome 
on behalf of the Board of Trustees.  

Chadron State College hosted its winter commencement ceremony for graduate students on 
Friday, December 15, 2017. 47 graduate degrees were awarded. The undergraduate ceremony 
was held on Saturday, December 16, 2017, with 152 undergraduate degrees awarded. John 
Chaney provided the welcome on behalf of the Board of Trustees.   

2018 Senators Reception 

The Senators Reception will be held after the board meeting on January 16, 2018. The 
reception will be at the Ferguson House from 4:00 pm to 7:00 pm. Please join us for heavy hors 
d'oeuvres and conversation. 

Carryover Bills from the 2017 Legislative Session 

The Legislative Session is just underway and there are several carryforward bills from the 2017 
Session that we are watching. Some of the key carryforward bills are: 

LB426 (Murante) would change expense reimbursements for meals and incidentals from 
“actual” expenditures to a “per diem”.  The per diem would be established by the Governor’s 
Department of Administrative Services as a % of the federal General Services Administration 
(GSA) rates, as the bill currently stands. 

LB490 (Walz) would create the College Choice Grant Program, intended to provide additional 
financial aid to students who attend Nebraska independent non-profit colleges and universities.  
No actual appropriations are included in the bill at this time. 

LB611 (Stinner) would require the annual reporting of federal funds received by agencies 
participating in the state budgeting process.  The report would also require each agency to 
report operating plans in the event federal receipts for each program were reduced by 10% or 
more and 25% or more.  The Committee Amendment would exempt the University and the 
State Colleges from this requirement. 

LB655 (Murante) would allow employees to volunteer in public schools or with nonprofits that 
focus on such education without loss of pay, vacation time, sick leave, or earned overtime 
accumulation -- with the approval of the Director of the Department of Administrative Services 
(DAS).  A Committee Amendment to the bill changes the authority from DAS to the individual or 
entity that is responsible for governance of the entity for which the employee works. 

New bills for the 2018 Session are being introduced through January 18 (the 10th day of the 
Session) and we will keep you informed of any with potential significant impact for the NSCS. 
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Marketing Updates 

The Nebraska State College System introduced a new logo and tagline earlier this month as a 
part of our brand enhancement initiative. All of us are very excited to have a refreshed look that 
matches the quality of our colleges and the education we provide. In addition to this update, we 
have launched our first social media accounts starting in 2018. Please follow us on Facebook, 
Twitter, and LinkedIn to become a part of our online community. We just distributed our 
rebranded annual calendar and will be rolling out new marketing collateral and other materials in 
the coming weeks. Stay tuned for continued updates regarding the NSCS brand.  

Federal Tax Reform 

Tax Reform Legislation has passed. We were watching all of the potential impacts to the NSCS. 
There are a few provisions in the final legislation that may impact the NSCS. 

 Repeal of advance refunding bonds. Interest on advance refunding bonds (issued more 
than 90 days before the redemption of the refunded bonds) will become taxable. The 
NSCS has not used advance refunding in recent history, and we do not anticipate any 
significant impact from losing this tax-exempt option. 

 Charitable deductions. It is anticipated that the increase in the standard deduction for 
individuals and joint filers will reduce the number of taxpayers who itemize deductions, 
which could have an impact on donor behavior. While we hope this will not have an 
impact on donations to our Foundations, resulting in fewer or smaller scholarships for 
students. 

 New taxes on fringe benefits provided to employees. We will be watching for any 
potential impact on taxes to tax-exempt entities on the value of providing employees with 
transportation fringe benefits and on-premises gyms and other athletic facilities. 

Other impacts to higher education do not apply to the NSCS. 
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Presidents’ Reports 
Chadron State College 

January 2018 
 

Chadron State continues to demonstrate its commitment to helping the campus community, the 
local community, and the panhandle area of Nebraska have diversity-related educational 
experiences that emphasize the value and importance of cultural enrichment. 
 
To further the opportunity for cultural enrichment experiences, especially for students, the 
Director of Student Activities and Recreation provides essential support for multicultural 
activities at Chadron State College, as does the Campus Activity Board, which emphasizes 
student participation in the creation of events.   One of the essential functions of the Director of 
Student Activities and Recreation is to coordinate efforts and events that emphasize diversity 
awareness/appreciation.  Along with the efforts of the Diversity Committee and the Campus 
Activity Board, the Director of Student Activities and Recreation is instrumental in providing the 
students with life-enriching experiences that emphasize the value of living and learning on a 
campus rich with diversity. 
 
Aside from the specific goals that Chadron State has regarding diversity, the Diversity 
Committee has designed specific goals, as well, to bolster and support the Diversity Committee 
plan to encourage appreciation and respect for diversity on the CSC campus.  These goals, 
while allowing for flexibility, remain constant year-to-year: 
 
1.   Diversity will be encouraged and welcomed on the CSC campus. 
2.   Recognition of the worth of diversity will be promoted on the CSC campus. 
3.   Diversity will be obvious in its representation on the CSC campus. 
4.   Chadron State College will be recognized at the Nebraska state-college level as  
      doing all things appropriate and possible to promote diversity on the CSC campus 
      as well as in the Chadron community.       
        
The Committee believes the college is meeting all the goals but also believes there is more 
work to be done before goal number four, more-or-less a summation of the first three goals, can 
be seen as being met sufficiently.  The challenges to fully presenting as a campus with full 
diversity involvement can be broken down into three areas:  first, the rural nature of the campus, 
second, the lack of the influence of a large metropolitan city/area, and, third, the nature of the 
student body at CSC.   
 
There is no question but that Chadron State College is very successfully achieving the goal of 
bringing diversity to the campus; however, the Diversity Committee has identified the lack of 
more Native American students on the campus as an area of concern.  The committee has 
agreed to more closely examine what might be done to encourage enrollment of more Native 
American students. 
 
Regarding diversity in the faculty, progress has been slow.  Still, the Diversity Committee sees 
reason to believe that progress will occur over time. This view is held in large part because of 
the master Academic Plan of 2014 which emphasizes in its sixth priority (#6 of 6), that the 
campus will, “Evaluate campus wide processes for faculty and staff recruitment and retention; 
recommend a plan for continuous improvement.” 
 
Along with promoting appreciation of diversity in general, the Diversity Committee emphasizes 
and targets specific categories of diversity with designated months devoted to each although 
events related to any of the categories can occur at any time during the school year: 
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Hispanic Heritage—September 
Differently-Abled Awareness—October 
LGBT Pride—October 
Native American Heritage—November 

Martin Luther King, Jr.—January 
African American/Black History—February 
Women and Leadership—March 
Asian-Pacific-American Heritage—April 

 
During each of the months specified above, the Diversity Committee encourages committee 
members to actively involve the Committee in a diversity-inspired event that will reach out to the 
campus and the community.  The Diversity Committee cannot be successful in its efforts without 
the support of the campus community.  It cannot be the purpose of the Committee to simply 
offer diversity events; success can only come when the Committee asks for and gets 
involvement from the campus and the community.  The more the campus and the community 
are involved in the production of diversity events, working in unison with the Committee, the 
more likely it is that appreciation of diversity will be shared among all.  Nevertheless, it is the 
responsibility of the Diversity Committee to ensure that diversity is an integral component of the 
campus conversation. 
 
Chadron State faculty incorporate multicultural perspectives into classroom curriculum through 
the selection of textbooks, required readings, class discussions, classroom activities, debates, 
speakers, and video presentations.   Whenever possible, faculty also include field trips to 
regional and international locations as a way to incorporate diverse topics into the educational 
experience.   
 
The Residence Life Association incorporates cultural enrichment opportunities into their 
programming and on average provides two or three such events each month for students. 
 
This report does represent in totality all the diversity-related events or experiences that occurred 
on the CSC campus during the 2016-2017 school year.  There were certainly many others, but 
the import of this report is perhaps less about the specific events and more about the overall 
evidence of the spirit of welcoming diversity that exists as an obvious strength of this college.   
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Peru State College 
January 2018 

 
In the fall of 2016, Peru State began a new strategic planning process for a plan to begin in 2018.  
This plan identified a number of new initiatives to promote diversity and inclusion on campus. 
Moreover, new values were chosen including Pride, Excellence, Resilience and Unity.  To describe 
the value of Unity, the plan states:  
 
“We embrace unity as a diverse and inclusive community. We believe in creating a culture of 
mutual support, acceptance and respect. We embrace the College’s role to lead and model this 
culture on campus, in the region and in the world.” 
 
This new value upholds a long tradition of inclusion and diversity at Peru State. As part of the 
celebration of the College’s sesquicentennial, a coffee table book was written about the long 
history of the College.  A large part of that history has been the inclusion of women, African-
Americans and other students of color in our educational opportunities.  Our earliest classes 
included women and black veterans that had served with Colonel T.J. Majors.   
 
Today, with more women than men on campus and almost thirty percent of this year’s freshman 
class from underrepresented groups, the tradition of inclusion continues at Peru State College.  
  
President’s Advisory Council 
The President’s Advisory Council that was created last year continues to meet. The group consists 
of 10 members selected to represent diverse student viewpoints and includes students living on 
and off campus. The Council meets with the President and Mrs. Hanson in the President’s 
residence three times a semester. 
  
The President’s Advisory Council provides advice to the College on ways to build positive 
relationships on campus, in the community and throughout the surrounding area. Specific 
purposes are as follows: 

 Provide insight into the student experience at Peru State College and the surrounding 
community. 

 Advise the President and the Council for Diversity, Equality and Inclusion on proactive ways 
to create an inclusive environment. 

 Give the President and the Council for Diversity, Equality and Inclusion guidance on ways 
to respond to events and occurrences affecting PSC students. 

  
Activities to support these purposes have included conversations about off campus housing, 
communication strategies for campus events and activities, and ways to engage all students in 
campus opportunities. One meeting included dinner with the Nemaha County Sheriff, Brent 
Lottman, and Peru resident and Nebraska Highway Patrolman, Jason Jones. This conversation 
focused on ways for law enforcement and students to work collaboratively in the City of Peru to 
keep students safe and to build positive community relationships. 
  
Several times this year members have been consulted about issues that have developed on 
campus and provided valuable insight and support in addressing these issues.  
 
Black Student Union 
The Black Student Union continues to be an active and productive group on campus. This past 
year they helped host Diversity Awareness Month in February.  Their work included assistance with 
presentations on slavery in Nebraska, Rosa Parks, and Kings and Queens of Africa. They hosted 
other campus activities including an open mic night, a talent show and the Pajama Jam 
collaboration with the Campus Activities Board. 
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BSU members attended the “Unity Across Cultures” student leadership conference held at Wayne 
State (March 2017). The group also provides service throughout the region including assisting with 
Feeding 44, picking up campus recycling, picking up trash along Highway 67, working with Peru 
Kiwanis members, hosting a trunk at the Peru Chamber of Commerce Trunk-or-Treat event, 
campus holiday decorating, and assisting with serving and cleanup at the Good Samaritan Society 
Soup Supper. 
 
Hispanic Latino Student Association 
In its third year, the Hispanic Latino Student Association has been active on campus and in the 
community. Members organized an on-campus food and toy drive. They also co-hosted the 
Freshman Retention Event. 
 
Speakers and Events 
Being a home to a population more diverse than the general public is an important aspect of the 
Peru State College experience.  The College also continues to provide opportunities for its 
students to discover new perspectives and engage with men and women of national importance.  
In a world where diversity includes more than the color of your skin, Peru State students continue 
to seek new experiences and better understanding. 
 

Ghostlight Project: On January 19, the Peru Theatre Company hosted the Ghostlight 
Project. Students gathered outside the Jindra Fine Arts building to write pledges about who 
they are and what they are fighting for. Laura Lippman, the assistant professor of theatre at 
Peru State, sponsored the event. She said, “The Peru Theatre Company pledges to 
collaboratively produce work that encourages and invites brave spaces for our campus 
community.” 
 
Aaron Davis: Aaron Davis, a member of the 1994 University of Nebraska Football Team 
spoke on campus as part of Peru State’s 2017-2018 Distinguished Speaker Series. Davis 
has shared with more than a million people how to perform like a champion. Davis 
understands firsthand what it takes to perform like a champion and experience incredible 
results both personally and professionally.   
 
Davis spoke on race relations and the need for personal accountability.  His F.I.N.I.S.H. 
advice focused on how anyone can perform like a champion.   

 
Diversity Month: In February, the College hosted ten events as a part of Diversity Month 
including: 
 

 Mayhew Cabin “The Twelve” 

 Which Way Home Presented by HLSA 

 Creating A Welcoming Environment presented by Speaker Anita Patel sponsored by Open 
Door Program 

 Colors Personality and Team Building presented by Anita Patel sponsored by Professional 
Staff Senate 

 A Visit with Rosa Parks 

 Kings and Queens of Africa 

 Trip to Hispanic Heritage Museum and Midwest African Art Museum sponsored by 
HLSA/BSU 

 Dr. Bruce Garver “Nebraska Czechs 1867-2017” 

 History Day sponsored by History Department 

 Civil Rights Facts Scavenger Hunt 
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Mental Health Awareness Month:  This year Mental Health Awareness’ ten activities were folded 
into College Success Month.  

 Healing Heart Therapy Dogs 

 Self-Medicating and Mental Health 

 Native American Healing with artist Sarah Rowe 

 Mindful Coloring 

 Healthy Eating 

 Yoga 

 Relaxation Station – Mindful Walk 

 Nature, Exercise and Success 

 Annual Glow Walk 

 Relaxation Station with Aromatherapy, Guided Imagery, Deep Breathing Guided Session 
 
Conclusion: 
 
One report is never enough to list all the wonderful opportunities to engage and learn at Peru State 
College.  With an eye on its historical legacy, the College continues to be a regional leader in its 
efforts to support the educational efforts of a diverse student population and its efforts to engage 
students in new experiences outside their everyday understanding of the world.  Inclusion, and its 
products of respect and empathy, continues to be among the most important values at Peru State. 
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Wayne State College 
January 2018 

 
A comprehensive education should provide opportunities for cultural enrichment. Wayne State 
promotes and delivers cultural enrichment through a powerful combination of the work of each of 
the college’s four schools, the President’s Council for Diversity, Office of Student Activities, student 
clubs and organizations, and the Office of Multicultural and International Programs.  
 
A Wayne State education provides a sustained, dynamic encounter with cultural enrichment 
through a broad curriculum that explores human history, the sciences, global economics, 
technology, educational pedagogy, counseling, literature, sociology, psychology, music, art, and 
communications. Activities outside of the classroom include guest speakers, workshops, and a 
wide range of cultural events and opportunities that showcase the human experience and serve 
the college’s region.  
 
The academic coursework in Art, Communication Arts, Language and Literature, and Music in the 
School of Arts and Humanities covers diverse issues and communities within America and around 
the world. The courses include treatment of texts and techniques produced by traditionally 
underrepresented groups to include gender, ethnicity, national origin, LGBTQIA orientation, 
disability, and illness. Not only are different cultures from around the world represented in 
coursework, a diversity of time periods within those cultures are represented, as well. 
 
The co-curricular activities sponsored by the school also represent underrepresented voices and 
intellectual traditions: WSC Student Media outlets The Wayne Stater and KWSC take their 
responsibility to represent their communities seriously, including covering stories about less-
frequently represented groups. 
 
WSC’s many music ensembles perform music from traditions from around the world, using 
instruments from around the world. A prime example of WSC Music’s inclusivity is the Mariachi 
Negro y Oro ensemble, which performs mariachi music on traditional instruments in costume and 
singing in Spanish. 
 
In the School of Business and Technology, junior and senior students in Dr. Trish Kolterman’s 
Management Theory and Concepts course completed a diversity project that focused on personal 
perspectives to discover the perspectives of international students. With two students per team, the 
36 teams watched a video about diversity, color blindness, and color bravery. The teams 
discussed the diversity concepts, then interviewed students from different nationalities to gain an 
understanding of the diversity challenges on campus. After the completion of the interviews, each 
team submitted a detailed report, about the experiences while also providing three strategies for 
improving diversity on the campus.  
 
Cultural enrichment in the School of Education and Counseling provides significant professional 
educational opportunities in the curriculum. Students are challenged to think about their roles as 
future educators in relation to diversity within family structures, school administration, educational 
psychology, school law, and counseling. Examples include EDU 150 – Professional Education in a 
Diverse Society; EDU 217 – Diversity in Family Systems, which incorporates more than 10 
National School Reform Faculty discussion protocols; EDU 611 – Secondary School 
Administration, in which students examine approaches to implementation of policies that require 
principals to support and enhance the self-esteem and learning for all students regardless of 
diversity or their sexual orientation; EDU 655 – School Law, in which students examine statutory 
and case laws for schools regarding minority populations in public schools including discrimination 
based on race, ethnicity, gender, disability, and sexual orientation; and CSL 580 – Professional 
Ethics for School Counselors, which uses case studies and professional development assignments 
that require multicultural and inclusion components and analysis. 
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Within the School of Natural and Social Sciences, Dr. Randy Bertolas and Dr. Lesli Rawlings 
featured daily insights into ethnic and cultural diversity around the world in every section of World 
Regional Geography (GEO 120). Dr. Eric Colvard, Dr. Brian Hanson, Dr. Susan Ellis, Bertolas, and 
Rawlings gave Global Seminar presentations to visiting LEAD Fellows on Nov. 12-13 in 
preparation for the agriculturalists’ travel to Chile, Argentina, and Uruguay in January 2018. 
Rawlings’ course on Geography of Latin America (GEO 370) requires students to learn about—and 
conduct—a Day of the Dead observance. She also organized Gamma Theta Upsilon’s (the 
International Geographic Honor Society) 7th Annual WSC Geography Bowl in November.    
 
Dr. Joe Blankenau travelled to Zambia to observe a non-governmental organization (the SAM 
Project) build a dam in the rural drylands. He gave a presentation to the campus community about 
his travel and Zambian culture and life. He is also working on a research project with the SAM 
project regarding the effects of the dam and is working with a WSC student on the project. 
Blankenau and Dr. Monica Snowden coordinated a presentation with the Women’s Fund from 
Omaha to discuss sex trafficking in Nebraska. And finally, Dr. Don Hickey is writing a book on 
Tecumseh’s War (1811-1815), which he calls the last great Indian war. Further, his book explores 
Native American culture in the early 19th century. 
 
The Presidents Council for Diversity, student organizations, and Multicultural and International 
Programs sponsor cultural enrichment opportunities throughout the academic year. Prominent 
among these opportunities are the celebrations of several heritage months: African American 
Heritage; Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. “Celebrating the Dream” week of service; Hispanic Heritage 
Month; Native American Heritage Month; and Women’s History Month. For each of these months, 
students work with staff and faculty to lead events and campus dialogue.  
 
Campus events also include the opportunity for students to explore the role of activism and the 
shape of activist efforts in the past and in contemporary American society. These included 
women’s marches, interfaith dialogue, the Dakota Access Pipeline protests and marches, LGBTQ 
workshops around community and safe spaces led annually by Wayne State alumnus Ron Holt 
’89, and a Drag Show presented by the college’s PRIDE group. Global perspectives were 
highlighted in campus events that included International Week; faculty travels and service in 
Southern Africa, Asia, South America and Europe; the annual International Dinner; Fulbright 
presentations by Dr. Barbara Engebretsen; and Study Abroad presentations by returning 
participants. 
 
Various student-led programs on campus and conference attendance by students also serve to 
boost cultural enrichment efforts. Wayne State students are active planners and participants in the 
annual Student Leadership and Diversity Conference that rotates among the Nebraska State 
College System campuses. We are proud to be part of this system-wide effort to enrich the lives of 
our students. 
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